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2019 Annual Report

On behalf of the board (the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of OCI
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present to our
Shareholders the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group") for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY 2019"

or the “Year Under Review").

REVIEW OF OPERATION

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in securities trading and investments, provision of asset
management services including portfolio management and investment advice to
qualified corporate and individual professional investors, provision of investment

and financial advisory services and trading of wines.

The Group's investment team that has been in place since the second half of
2017, has over the past two years delivered satisfactory results in building and
managing (by deploying financing tools such as repurchase arrangement (“Repo”)
and bond-linked notes effectively) the Group's public offering bond investment
portfolio which contributed HK$50.43 million towards the Group's income from
securities trading and investments for the Year Under Review (compared with
HKS$ I 1.14 million for the year ended 31 December 2018) representing a 352.7%
increase in revenue contribution. The Group's public offering bond investment
portfolio was valued at HK$550.33 million as at 31 December 2019 as compared
to HK$357.40 million as at 31 December 2018.
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REBEBRZERARDA

As China’s de-leveraging monetary policy continues during the Year Under
Review, the credit liquidity of the private business sector was worsened with
massive credit and liquidity issues occurred amongst private enterprises. Apart
from the default of the note issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company Limited
in the second half of 2018, another note issued by Rundong Fortune Investment
Limited was defaulted by the issuer upon maturity on 15 April 2019. The Group
had tried all necessary recovery actions to collect the related default amount
including but not limited through selling the collateral on the market and block
sale to LanHai International Trading Limited and Ms. Ding Yi for HK$80 million.
Nonetheless, both of them did not pay any consideration to the Group. On
16 August 2019, a Writ of Summons to LanHai International Trading Limited
and Ms. Ding Yi was filed to High Court of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. The Group is in the process of negotiation for repayment solution with
the note issuers and guarantors while impairment loss on these two notes are

incorporated in the results of the Group for the Year Under Review.

Following the grant in May 2018 of type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9
(asset management) license by the Securities and Future Commission of Hong
Kong (the “SFC") pursuant to the Group's application in second half of 2017,
the Group commenced its asset management business through providing a series
of asset management services and investment advisory services to qualified
corporate and individual professional investors. The fund size managed by us
as at 31 December 2019 was US$736 million which is an increase by [1.2% as
compared to the fund size managed by us of US$662 million as at 31 December
2018, the Group is acting as the fund manager of three funds with sizes varies
from US$20 million to US$642 million. Asset management fee of HK$35.20
million was recorded and contributed a segment profit of HK$27.04 million to

the Group for the Year Under Review.
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Investment advisory services fee amounting to HK$0.31 million was recorded as

income with a breakeven results for the Year Under Review.

During the Year Under Review, the Group maintains the listed securities
investment portfolio brought forward from previous year. In view of the
downturn of the market sentiment due to world trade tension and interest rate
hike, the Group had disposed the listed securities investment portfolio to cut
losses on stocks with adverse performance. The Group earned HK$0.40 million
dividend income from the portfolio and recorded realised loss of HK$4.48 million

from the disposal of the entire portfolio of investment in listed securities.

We believe that our strategy of developing our asset management and
investment and financial advisory operations riding on track record established
through our proprietary investment portfolio has shown promise, as

demonstrated by the performance of those segments.

By contrast, with the downturn of the market sentiment of premium wine, the
turnover for wine trading segment was severely hit and decreased to HK$6.87
million and incurred an operation loss of HK$2.59 million for the segment for

the Year Under Review.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As we move into 2020, looking at the state of the global economy, with signs
of a growth slowdown amplified by trade tensions, political concerns and other
issues. Central banks will continue to play an enormous role in both economic
policy and markets. Lead by the US Fed, interest rate started its downward trend
by the last quarter of 2019 and the trend will continue in 2020. “Living with a
low yields world" is expected in year 2020 at least. More emphasis should be

placed on risk diversification over investment portfolio and cost control.
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REBEBRZERARDA

Back to Hong Kong, Hong Kong's economy was affected by the slowdown of
world economy and the local political turmoil starting the second half of 2019.
The condition was worsen further with the outbreak of novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) cases by end of 2019. There would be a negative impact on
consumers. This situation will last till the spreading condition of the novel
coronavirus is under control. The latest economic figures released shown sign
of economic depression for Hong Kong. Hard time for Hong Kong ahead seems

inevitable.

Based on the current economic environment, we are not optimistic on the
premium wine trading segment in the year 2020. We will focus more resources
into developing the asset management business with securities investment
business to provide a stable income and to support the development of the

Group.

We believe that we will be able to continue to scale up our asset management
operations, not only through the reputation of our asset management investment
team in the industry, but also with the visible performance of the Group's

proprietary investment portfolio.

The Group will concentrate investment in Greater China region as the
economical environment is more transparent to us. Though the economy of
China is facing a lot of challenges in 2020, China possesses merits like stable
economic base, huge market base, industrial benefits driven by government
policies, high potential for business growth for emerging businesses in
consumables and innovative technology field, strong governmental capability of
economic and financial risk control, broad asset with low valuation, monetary and

fiscal measures turn positive, etc.

The Group intends to continue its investment strategy though enhancing
bonds, fixed income products, listed securities and equity investment portfolios.
Investing in fixed income financial products or equity issued by large state-owned
companies with government support and companies operating in the real estate,
educational, renewable energy, consumables and innovative technology sectors

to enhance the Group's revenue base and operational contribution.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded total revenue of HK$101.52 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 (the “Year Under Review") (year ended 31 December 2018:
HK$124.61 million). The decrease in turnover was mainly due to decrease
in sales of wine trading and decrease of revenue from asset management.
Consolidated net loss of approximately HK$97.43 million (year ended 3|
December 2018: loss of HK$60.83 million) was incurred by the Group for the
Year Under Review. The consolidated losses from operations were mainly due
to the impairment losses in relation to the fixed income investment in the senior
secured guaranteed notes issued by Rundong Fortune Investment Limited and
Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company Limited. amounting to HK$91.39 million (year
ended 3| December 2018: Nil) and HK$25.84 million respectively (year ended
31 December 2018: HK$53.40 million).

Securities Trading and Investments

The Group has been actively building up its securities and investment operations
during the Year Under Review. Dividend income, income from debt investments,
gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets, and the change in fair value of the
financial assets recognised under this segment amounted to approximately
HK$59.14 million (year ended 31 December 2018: HK$45.56 million). Loss
attributed to this business segment amounted to approximately HK$69.73
million (year ended 31 December 2018: HK$27.28 million) mainly due to the
impairment losses on debt investments and other receivables in this business
segment amounted to HK$116.38 million (year ended 31 December 2018:
HK$54.28 million).

Fixed Income Products

The Group actively invested in the fixed income products during the Year Under
Review. Other than the fixed income products brought forward from the year
ended 31 December 2018, certain investment notes listed below were acquired

by the Group during the Year Under Review.
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Vlanagement Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

The key factors considered by the Group when making the investment decisions
included, but not limited to, (i) the credit rating of the issuers; (ii) the financial
position and financial performance of the underlying assets; (iii) the returns
offered by and the relevant costs incurred from the fixed income products;
(iv) the terms of the fixed income products; (v) any guarantor or collaterals in
association with the fixed income products; (vi) leverage which can be applied in
the fixed income products; (vii) the economic environment; and (viii) government
policies. The Company developed a fixed income portfolio in order to manage

the interest rate risk.

One of the investment strategies of the Group is to obtain leverage on the
fixed income products through entering into financial arrangements with financial
institutions such as total return swap (“TRS") agreements and US Dollar bond
linked notes. Through these financial arrangements, the Company can obtain the
economic benefits including the interest and capital gain of an underlying assets
without paying the entire amount to buy the underlying asset. The Company
only needs to pay part of the market value of the underlying assets as upfront
payment to the financial institution. In return, the financial institutions will pay the
Company the return of the underlying asset net of the funding cost pre-agreed

between the Company and the financial institutions.

The Group also enters into repurchase agreement (“Repo”) with financial
institutions to obtain leverage. A Repo is an agreement whereby the Company
sells its debt securities to the financial institutions and agrees to repurchase it
at a pre-agreed price in the future. The economic benefits including the interest
and capital gain of its debt securities are retained by the seller, i.e. the Group. It
is in substance a form of borrowing with its debt securities as collaterals, and the
funding cost is embedded in the pre-agreed price to repurchase the security in

the future.

2019 Annual Report
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As at 3| December 2019, the Group held interests in the following eight debt

securities:

(i)

US$ 15 million 10% senior secured guaranteed notes (“RD Note") issued
by Rundong Fortune Investment Limited (“RD Note Issuer”) maturing on
I5 April 2019. The RD Note was secured by a charge over 78,000,000
shares of China Rundong Auto Group Limited (China Rundong Charged
Shares), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (1365.HK). The Group
issued an notice of event of default (“EOD Notice”) to the RD Note
Issuer and demands for payment from RD Note Issuer on 16 April 2019.
Following the RD Note Issuer failure to repay the outstanding principal
amount of the RD Note of US$15 million and the outstanding interest and
handling fee receivable upon maturity on 15 April 2019, the Group has
taken proactive steps towards options to maximise recovery of amounts
due under the RD Note. Steps taken included, amongst others, the sale
of 2,019,000 of the China Rundong Charged Shares on the market for
HK$3,648,440 and subsequently also contracted with LanHai International
Trading Limited (BBBERESHEMRAF]) and Ms. Ding Yi (T18), both
of them are third parties ("RD Charged Shares Purchasers”) which are
independent of the Company and its connected person as defined in the
Listing Rules to sell the remaining 75,981,000 China Rundong Charged
Shares (“Remaining RD Shares”) for HK$80 million. LanHai International
Trading Limited is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and is the wholly
owned subsidiary of Lanhai Holding (Group) Company Limited (&£
(RE)BRZAF]), which is in turn 99% controlled by Mr. Mi Chunlei (& %&
B). Nonetheless, neither of the RD Charged Shares Purchasers paid any
consideration to the Group. The Group has commenced legal proceedings
against them. On 16 August 2019, a Writ of Summons to LanHai
International Trading Limited and Ms. Ding Yi was filed to the High Court
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group made an impairment loss of HK$91.39 million being the difference
between (a) the outstanding principal amount and interest and handling
fee receivable of the RD Note less the proceeds from the sale of 2,019,000
China Rundong Charged Shares, held by the Group and (b) the fair value
of the Remaining RD Shares noted above assessed by an independent

valuer.
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(i

As at 3| December 2019, the carrying amount of the RD Note was
HK$25.46 million (31 December 2018: HK$117.50 million), representing
2.8% of the consolidated total assets of the Group (31 December 2018:
14.6%).

The valuation of the carrying amount of the RD Note was based on
projected collateral values, historical discounts on placing of shares and
expense of placement and recovery costs observed. Factors considered
include the aggregate closing price of the Remaining RD Shares as at 3|
December 2019, discount rate and expenses determined by reference to
average share price discounts and expenses for placings by Hong Kong
listed issuers and adjustment factor on the projected shares value such as
possible impact to collateral value due to highly fluctuations of share price

movement.

US$ 13 million 8% senior secured guaranteed notes (“SP Note") issued by
Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“SP Note Issuer”) matured on
30 July 2019 with a right to extend the maturity date by further |2 months

exercisable by the Company.

The Group issued in October 2018 an EOD Notice to the SP Note
Issuer and demands for payment from the Sanpower Group Co., Ltd. (the
“Corporate Guarantor”) and Mr. Yuan Yafei (the “Personal Guarantor”) as
guarantors, in respect of all outstanding sums owing by the SP Note Issuer
under the SP Note. The SP Note is secured also by charges over a total of
131,000,000 shares of C.banner International Holdings Limited (“C.banner
Shares”), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (1028.HK). For detalls,

please refer to our annual report 2018.

(i)
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(i)

On 9 January 2019, the Group submitted an application to the Intermediate
People's Court of Jiangsu Province (the “Court”) for the enforcement of
amounts due under the Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement.
Such court application is still in progress and the Company is searching for

potential buyer to bulk sell the C.banner Shares.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the SP Note was
HK$22.04 million (2018: HK$48.43 million), representing 2.4% of the total
asset of the Group (31 December 2018: 6.0%). Accordingly, in relation
to the SP Note, the Group made a provision for impairment loss as at
31 December 2019 of HK$79.24 million (31 December 2018: HK$53.40

million).

The valuation of the carrying amount of the SP Note was based on
projected collateral values, historical discounts on placing of shares and
expense of placement and recovery costs observed. Factors considered
include the aggregate closing price of the C.banner Shares as at 3|
December 2019, discount rate and expenses determined by reference to
average share price discounts and expenses for placings by Hong Kong
listed issuers and adjustment factor on the projected shares value such as
possible impact to collateral value due to highly fluctuations of share price

movement.

US$1.74 million (face value) of 5.7% senior bonds issued by Shangrao City
Construction Investment Development Group Company Limited maturing
on 28 December 2020 (“SCC Note").

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the SCC Note was HK$13.51
million (31 December 2018: Nil), representing 1.5% of the total asset of
the Group (31 December 2018: Nil).
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(iv)

(vii)

gaki

US$0.40 million (face value) of 5.7% guaranteed bonds issued by Shangrao
Investment Holding Group Co., Limited maturing on [4 February 2021
("SIH Note").

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the SIH Note was HK$3.20
million (31 December 2018: Nil), representing 0.3% of the total asset of
the Group (31 December 2018: Nil).

US$10 million (face value) of 7.5% bonds issued by Jiaozuo Investment

Group Co., Ltd. maturing on 23 February 2020 ("JZ Note").

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the JZ Note was HK$77.83
million (31 December 2018: Nil), representing 8.4% of the total asset of
the Group (31 December 2018: Nil).

US$I5 million (face value) of 6.8% guaranteed notes issued by Huaxin
Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Co., Limited maturing on |5 March 2021
("HX Note"), that are subject to a Repo arrangement between the Group

and Haitong International Financial Solutions Limited (“HIFSL™).

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the HX Note was HK$113.41
million (31 December 2018: Nil), representing 12.3% of the total asset of
the Group (31 December 2018: Nil).

US$4.97 million (face value) of 7.5% senior bonds issued by Chengdu
Economic & Technological Development Zone State-owned Assets
Investment Co., Ltd. maturing on 12 February 2022 (“CD Note"), that are

subject to a Repo arrangement between the Group and HIFSL.
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(viil)

As at 3| December 2019, the fair value of the CD Note was HK$39.90
million (31 December 2018: Nil), representing 4.3% of the total asset of
the Group (31 December 2018: Nil).

US$18 million 10.5% note issued by SOL OMNIBUS SPC (“SOL Note")
maturing on 17 June 2021. The SOL Note was charged over 5,400,000
shares of US$0.0001 each of S Global Lifestyle Company Limited (the “S
Charged Shares”). Based on the Subscription Agreement dated 28 May
2019, the Company released the S Charged Shares to SOL OMNIBUS SPC
on the date when |S Global Lifestyle Company Limited was listed on the
Stock Exchange, i.e. 18 December 2019, until the date falling six months
thereafter (the “Lockup Period”). SOL OMNIBUS SPC undertakes to take
all necessary actions to execute the share charge (with the aggregate value
of the shares of S Global Lifestyle Company Limited (1691.HK) to be
charged being no less than 300% of the aggregate principal amount of the
SOL Note outstanding) once the period for Lockup Period ended.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the SOL Note was
HK$140.23 million (31 December 2018: Nil), representing 15.2% of the
consolidated total assets of the Group (31 December 2018: Nil).

(vii)
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Brief information on the US dollar bond linked notes held by the Group as at 3|

December 2019 are as follow:

Date of announcement

12 October 2018 and
amended on |8 October 2018

AEER " T-NET-_A=t—BAFAEX
TEFHBRBEOEREENT :

AMEBH

“E-NFt+A+=RH"
YR=FB-NF+A+N\AB
fEHERT

Brief nature of the
financial instrument
in which the Group

invested
Amount invested

Fair value

Note Issuer

Guarantor

Coupon

A guaranteed note ("KWG Note") issued by the
issuer named below, the amount payable upon
redemption of which is linked to the reference

bond described below.
US$5.03 million

US$5.57 million, equivalent to HK$43.43 million,
representing 4.7% of the total assets of the Group
as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
US$5.14 million, equivalent to HK$40.23 million,
representing 5.0% of the total assets of the Group).

Haitong International Products & Solutions Limited

(“HIPSL")

Haitong International Securities Group Limited
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Date of announcement

2 October 2018 and
amended on 18 October 2018

MMEH

—E-N\Ft+A+=AH>
YR-ZZB-NE+A+/N\H
1EHEET

Reference bond

Amount payable by
the note issuer on

redemption

US$10 million in the principal amount of the
7.875% senior notes issued by KWG Group
Holdings Limited (1813.HK) due on 9 August 2021.
As at 12 October 2018, the market value of the

reference bond was US$10.05 million.

The principal activities of KWG Group Holdings
Limited is investment holding and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in property development,

property investment and construction in the PRC.

On redemption upon maturity being 6 August
2021 or earlier due to an early termination event
(which includes drop in market value, acceleration
or default, adverse rating changes of the reference
bond) the amount payable by the issuer is to be
calculated by a pre-agreed formula that can be

summarised as follows:

a) The aggregate of market value of the
reference bond plus interest and principal
(net of tax) received by HIPSL minus the
aggregate of US$5.03 million (as hypothetical
loan notional amount) plus hypothetical
interest thereon at the rate of USD 3-month
LIBOR-BBA (floored at zero) plus 2.7% per

annum; less
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Date of announcement

2 October 2018 and
amended on 18 October 2018

MMEH
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—E-N\Ft+A+=AH>
YR-ZZB-NE+A+/N\H
1EHEET

Benefits

b) In case of early redemption, cost and
expenses incurred by HIPSL and/or affiliates
in connection with the redemption of the
KWG Note.

In the worst case scenario, for example, if market
value of the reference bond drops to zero and/
or HIPSL is in default in payment of interest and
principal amount to the Company, the redemption
amount can be zero in which case the Company

will not recover its investment.

Taking into account the terms of the KWG Note,
including the potential return upon redemption
based on returns from the reference bond (in
the absence of default or a significant reduction
of market value of the reference bond) and the
amount of investment made in the KWG Note,
which is less than the face value of the reference
bond (whose shares is listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange) and the ultimate holding company
of the note guarantor (whose shares are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (600837.SH) and H
shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(6837.HK)),

investment in the note may generate investment

the Company believes that the

income (based on the Group's income recognition
policy in accordance with HKFRS) and a reasonable
return to the Group through the amount receivable

on redemption of the KWG Note.
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REBEBEZERARAA

Date of announcement 2 July 2019 AFBEH “E-NFtAZ=H
Brief nature of the A guaranteed note (“G| Note 2") issued by the ZAEEFT B NETABTHNERERE
financial instrument issuer named below, the amount payable upon RE2BMIAE RBUIGRE2) REREE
in which the Group redemption of which is linked to the US Dollar  ZHE#HE NEBHETRETLZESH
invested reference bond described below. 8 o
Amount invested US$12.18 million RETR 1218 B&EET
Fair value US$11.67 million, equivalent to HK$90.92 million, A& IL67ABETL  HER9092
representing 9.8% of the total assets of the Group BEBT HER-T-NF
as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil) +TZA=+T—BAKEEE
BEISK(ZT—\F+_A
=t—H: &)
Note Issuer Guotai Junan Financial Products Limited (“GJ") FBETA BEREZEREMBRAA
([BEHEZ])
Guarantor Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited ERA ERERERERERAA]
Coupon Zero Z8 s
Reference bond [, US$10 million of the 6.5% guaranteed senior 2E{EH FIRIRA PR A 7 P

notes issued by New Metro Global Limited
due on 20 May 2022 (“New Metro Notes").
As at 2 July 2019, the market value of this
reference bond was US$10,108,889.

New Metro Global Limited is a special
purpose vehicle incorporated for bond issues.
lts obligations under the New Metro Notes

are guaranteed by Seazen Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Date of announcement 2 July 2019 AFBEH “E-NFtAZ=H
2. US$10 million of the 575% bonds issued EASREEREER
by Guangxi Financial Investment Group Co., NRMETR S —
Ltd. due on 23 January 2021 (“GX Note"). F—RA-+=B3%H

As at 2 July 2019, the market value of this
reference bond was US$10,018,056.

Guangxi Financial Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. through its subsidiaries is principally
engaged in the provision of micro and small
loans, credit guarantees, property insurance,
financial leasing and other businesses,
including asset management, internet finance,
fund management, venture investment and

urban construction.

US$10 million in principal amount of the
6.875% guaranteed notes issued by Logan
Property Holdings Company Limited (“LP
Note") due on 24 April 2021. As at 2 July
2019, the market value of the reference bond
was US$10,321,771.

Logan Property Holdings Company Limited
is a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(3380.HK) and is an investment holding
company principally engaged in property
development, property investment and

construction in the PRC.
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REBEBEZERARAA

Date of announcement

2 July 2019

MMEH

—E-hnFtAZH

Amount payable by
the note issuer on

redemption

On redemption upon maturity being 24 May 2020
or earlier due to an early termination event (which
includes drop in market value, and default of the
reference bond) the amount payable by G is to
be calculated by a pre-agreed formula that can be

summarised as follows:

a) The aggregate of market value of the
reference bonds realised by GJ or its affiliate;
less aggregate financing amount together with
the finance costs for the relevant period;
plus aggregate cash distribution unpaid to the

noteholder.

b) In case of early redemption, cost and
expenses incurred by GJ and/or affiliates in
connection with the redemption of the GJ
Note 2.

In the worst case scenario, for example, when
market value of the reference bond drops to zero
and/or GJ is in default in payment of interest and
principal amount to the Company, the redemption
amount can be zero, in which case the Company

will not recover its investment.
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Date of announcement 2 July 2019 AFBEH “E-NFtAZ=H
Benefits Taking into account the terms of the G| Note 2, Fl& ZRICIER2MIET - B3E

including the potential return upon redemption
based on returns from the reference bond (in
the absence of default or a significant reduction
of market value of the reference bond) and the
amount of investment made in the GJ Note 2,
which is less than the face value of the reference
bond, and the credit rating of the reference bond
issuer and the creditability of GJ and the guarantor
(whose A shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and H shares are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange), the Company believes that
the investment in the GJ Note 2 may generate
investment income (based on the Group's income
recognition policy in accordance with HKFRS) and
a reasonable return to the Group through the
amount receivable on redemption of the GJ Note
2.
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Equity Securities

The Group maintained the listed securities investment portfolio brought forward
from previous year during the Year Under Review. In view of the downturn of
the market sentiment due to world trade tension and interest rate hike, the
Group had disposed the entire listed securities investment portfolio to cut losses
on stocks with adverse performance. Realised loss on disposal of these listed
equity investment amounting to HK$4.48 million as at 31 December 2019 (year
ended 3| December 2018: HK$5.24 million). Dividend income from listed equity
investment amounted to approximately HK$0.40 million for the Year Under
Review (year ended 31 December 2018: HK$1.49 million).

Fund Investment

On 23 May 2019, the Company entered into the subscription agreement with
the ICBC AMG China Fund | SPC, in respect of its segregated portfolio, ICBC
US Dollar Debt Fund SP (the “Sub-Fund"), pursuant to which the Company
subscribed for the Class B Shares issued by the Sub-Fund in an amount of US$20
million (equivalent to approximately HK$156 million). The fund size was US$60
million including both Class A Shares of US$40 million and Class B Shares of
US$20 million.

Both Class A and Class B Shares are entitled to a fixed return accruing on
each anniversary of 3 June 2019 (“Distribution Date") at 4% per annum on its
subscription amount. Provided that the portfolio has sufficient distributable assets
after payment of the Class A fixed return and deduction of all fees, expenses
and other liabilities of the Sub-Fund (including but not limited to management
fees), each Class B Share carries the right to a fixed return accruing on each
distribution date calculated at the rate of 4% per annum on the subscription
amount. On redemption, Class A Shares will not be entitled to any amount in
excess of the subscription price and any accrued and unpaid fixed return. Class
B Shares are entitled to the remaining portion of the NAV of the Sub-Fund. The
Sub-Fund will generate income through investing in US dollar-denominated bonds
(including, but not limited to, investment-grade bonds, high-yield bonds, and
convertible bonds), notes and other fixed income products and money market
instruments (each a “Financial Instrument”) issued by companies based in or with
their headquarters in the PRC (each an “Issuer”). Target Issuers are stated to
include qualified real estate bond issuers; financial institutions with high incomes

and other corporate bonds and local government financing vehicles.

Vlanagement Discussion and Analysis
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In accordance with the terms of the transaction documents, (i) the management
fee is calculated at the rate of 0.30% per annum on the net asset value of the
Sub-Fund; (i) the set up fees, including costs incurred in connection with the
preparation and execution of the agreements relating to the Sub-Fund and all
initial legal and printing costs, are estimated to be US$50,000; and (iii) the fees
payable to the administrator, the custodian and the registrar with respect to their
provision of services to the Sub-Fund are to be agreed by the relevant service

provider with the manager of the Sub-Fund from time to time.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the Fund was HK$168.14 million (31
December 2018: Nil), representing 18.2% of the total asset of the Group (3|
December 2018: Nil).

Wine Trading

Sales performance of wine trading was affected substantially by the downturn of
market growth of premium wine during the Year Under Review with a turnover
of HK$6.87 million (year ended 31 December 2018: HK$27.15 million). Loss
attributable to this business segment amounted to HK$2.59 million for the Year
Under Review (year ended 3| December 2018: HK$0.49 million) with the profit
margin lowered. The Group has constructed a sale web page (https://www.rt-
wines.com) in April 2019 for putting our products for sale on web and joined
membership in March 2019 with wine sale platform like Wine-Searcher (https://
www.wine-searcher.com) in order to broaden our sale channel in local market. In
the coming years the Group will co-operate with some selected organisation to
perform workshops to introduce and promote our wine and broaden our sales

through direct sales.
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REBEBEZERARAA

Asset Management Services

With the registration of the Group's asset management subsidiary for type 4
(advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities by
“SFC") on 9 May

2018, the Group commenced its asset management business through providing a

the Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong (the

range of asset management services and investment advisory services to qualified

corporate, individual and financial institutional professional investors.

As at 31 December 2019, the asset management subsidiary is engaged in
management of three funds with fund size varies from US$20 million to
approximately US$642 million. Asset management fee income of HK$35.20
million was recorded for the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December
2018: HK$51.91 million). Profit attributable to this business segment amounted
to HK$27.04 million for the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2018:
HK$8.77 million).

Investment and Financial Advisory Services

Investment advisory services fee amounting to HK$0.31 million was recorded as
income for the Group for the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December
2018: Nil). Nil financial advisory services fee income was recorded for the Group
for the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2018: Nil). The result of
this business segment is breakeven for the Year Under Review (year ended 31
December 2018: loss of HK$0.69 million).
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had two fixed-rate, unsecured revolving
facilities of US$100 million each. One from Cheer Hope Holdings Limited, one
of our substantial shareholders, and the other one from Orient Finance Holdings
(Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of another substantial shareholder of the
Company. The outstanding principal amount of the loans as at 31 December
2019 amounted to US$12 million and US$32 million respectively. In addition, the
Group was granted an unsecured revolving facility of HK$500 million from a local
bank, in respect of which HK$200 million in principal amount was outstanding as
at 31 December 2019.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019 is 289.3% (31
December 2018: 132.0%), calculated based on total borrowings (including
borrowings, obligations under Repo and lease liabilities) of HK$665.00 million
(31 December 2018: HK$431.58 million) divided by shareholders' equity of

HK$229.86 million (31 December 2018: HK$327.04 million) as at that date.

The Group's bank balances and cash as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
HK$102.13 million (31 December 2018: HK$185.06 million). Its total assets as at
the same date were HK$923.41 million (31 December 2018: HK$805.41 million).

The Group recorded net current assets of HK$80.60 million (31 December
2018: HK$178.39 million), inventories decreased from HK$17.27 million as at 31
December 2018 to HK$12.32 million as at 31 December 2019. The current ratio
of I.I times (31 December 2018: [.4 times) calculated based on the current
assets of HK$763.33 million (31 December 2018: HK$656.94 million) over the
current liabilities of HK$682.73 million (31 December 2018: HK$478.55 million).

As at 3| December 2019 and 3| December 2018, the issued capital of the
Company was HK$10.60 million.
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DETAILS OF MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
The Group did not carry out any material acquisition nor disposal of any

subsidiary during the Year Under Review.

PROSPECTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Trade tensions, political changes and other issues had slow down the growth of
the world economy at large with unemployment rates going on the rising trend
in 2019. This trend is expected to continue in 2020 and may even worsen by
the middle-east turmoil. The condition was worsen further with the outbreak of
novel coronavirus (COVID-19) by end of 2019. The World Health Organisation
has characterised COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic on 12 March 2020 because
of the speed and scale of transmission globally. There will be a negative impact
on consumers. This situation will last till the spreading condition of the novel
coronavirus is under control. Interest rate cut and accommodative monetary
policy measures are expected from most of the central banks of developed

countries to stimulate growth.

The global economic downturn triggers delayed investment till we recognise the
right time to reinvest along our core businesses. As those unfavourable events
are testing businesses to the limit, sustainable/valuable business will emerge as

our targets when the crisis are over.

The Group will be cautious on business development for 2020 in view of the
prevailing uncertainties that are affecting the growth of the world economy.
The Group will remain focus on investing in the Greater China area which will
continue to grow as China will continue to monitor the economic growth of
the country through monetary and fiscal relief measures. Apart from focusing
on investing in fixed income financial products issued by large state-owned
enterprises with municipal background or companies operating in the various
sectors, the Group will allocate more resources towards the development of its
asset management business, which will be the group’s core business sectors for
further expansion. More investment funds will be structured in the coming future.
The Group will explore the possibilities of conducting other licensed business,
including but not limited to investment advising service which have underlying

synergies with the existing asset management and securities investment business.
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BEENWED

In view of the present economic condition, we are not optimistic on the
premium wine trading segment in the coming year. We expected to pool
more resources into developing the asset management business with securities
investment business to provide a stable income to support the development
of the Group. The Company will continue its prudent development strategic
direction, expand the business scale, enhance its capability and improve its
financial performance, creating higher value for our customers, shareholders and

business partners.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group's operations are conducted (and its borrowings are denominated) in
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars while wine trading billings are mainly settled
in Euro, Sterling Pound, and Hong Kong dollars. However, the operations of our
PRC subsidiaries are conducted in RMB. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
fluctuations in foreign exchange rate to a certain extent. Currently, the Group
has no formal hedging policies in place. The Group has not entered into any
foreign currency exchange contracts or derivatives to hedge against the Group's
currency risks. However, the Group will continue to closely monitor and manage
its exposure to foreign exchange and will consider engaging hedging instruments

as and when appropriate.

DIVIDEND

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the Year Under Review
(year ended 31 December 2018: Nil). The Board did not recommend any
dividend payment for the Year Under Review (year ended 3| December 2018:
Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 3| December 2019 and 3| December 2018, no secured borrowings were

reported.
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REBEBEZERARAA

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, no capital commitments were reported as the Group
acquired the entire shareholding of Tyee-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited and
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. (31 December 2018: HK$100

million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Directors are not aware

of any material contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 3 employees in the PRC and
20 employees in Hong Kong. The Group has maintained good relationship
with its staff and has not experienced any major disruptions of its operations
due to labour disputes. The Group contributed to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme of Hong Kong and provided medical benefits programme for
its employees in Hong Kong. It also contributed to the retirement insurance,
medicare, unemployment insurance and housing funds according to the applicable

laws and regulations of the PRC for its employees in the PRC.

The Group remunerates its employees in accordance with their work
performance and experience. The Board has designated the duties of determining
Directors’ service contracts, reviewing of Directors’ and senior management's
emoluments and awarding of discretionary bonuses of the Company to the

remuneration committee of the Company.
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b
orporate Governance
TEERHRE

epor

The board of directors (the “Board”) of OCI International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high standard
of corporate governance. The Board takes the view that a high standard of
corporate governance lays down a solid foundation for enhancing a high degree
of accountability and transparency, maintaining sound and effective internal
control, improving the performance of the Group and safeguarding the interests

of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Board has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “"CG Code”) as contained in Appendix |4 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) except as disclosed below. During the year ended 3| December
2019 (the “Year"), the Company has complied with the CG Code except for
Mr. Chang Tat Joel and Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan were unable to attend the annual
general meeting held on 17 May 2019 due to other business engagement
which constitutes a deviation from A.6.7 of the CG Code, all independent non-
executive directors and non-executive directors should attend general meetings

of the Company and develop a balanced understanding of shareholders’ view.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2019, the Board was comprised of Mr. Chen Bo (Chairman),
Mr. Li Yi (Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Xiao Qing (Chief Operating Officer)
as executive directors (“Executive Directors”); Mr. Du Peng and Ms. Zheng
Xiaosu as non-executive directors (“Non-executive Directors™); and Mr. Chang
Tat Joel, Mr. Wong Stacey Martin, Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan and Mr. Fei John Xiang
as independent non-executive directors (“Independent non-executive Directors”
or “INED"). Mr. Chen Bo was appointed as the Chairman and an Executive
Director on 25 April 2019 and Mr. Feng Hai resigned as the Chairman and an
Executive Director on 24 April 2019.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the "Group”) and is also responsible for the
financial performance, risk management, internal control policies and business
operations of the Group. The daily operations of the Group are delegated
to the Group's management. All directors of the Company (“Director(s)")
are provided with updated information relating to corporate governance and
regulatory matters. During the Year, all Directors had been provided with
monthly management updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the Directors

to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.
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REBEBEZERARAA

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance functions with

written terms of reference. The primary duties are:

I. To develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance.

2. To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management.

3. To review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

4. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to

employees and Directors.

5. To review the Company's compliance with code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in pages 50 to 55. On 30 January
2019, the Company has updated the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) in
order to achieve diversity on the Company's board of directors (“Board"). The
Policy sets out measurable objectives for the composition of the Board. The
composition of the Board members demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise,

experience and qualifications.
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Attendance record of meetings:
The attendance records of each Director at the various meetings of the

Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out as below:

EHUERS
BE-T-NE+-ASt-AILEE 58
BHEAAT AR REHIIT

Directors’ attendance record of the board meetings,

committees meetings, and general meetings in 2019

“ER-NFESEEE ZEGERNRRAGZESRLHRRER

Annual Audit
general Committee
meeting meeting

BRREFAE BLZEEER

Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee

meeting meeting meeting

Ex8eE REZEEEE FMWZEEEE

Number of meetings EETS | 3
Executive Director YTES

Mr. Chen Bo* BRALE" Ul NIA TER
Mr. Feng Hai* Vi i N/A - N/A RER
Mr. Li Yi FREE ol NATER
Ms. Xiao Qing BEERt Ul NIA TER
Non-executive Director FYTES

Mr. Du Peng igiibte Il NIA TER
Ms. Zheng Xiaosu BNERL I NATER
INED BUFHITES

Mr. Chang Tat Joel BEELE 0/1 33
Mr. Wong Stacey Martin BENLE I/l 33
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan LTS 0/ 33
Mr. Fei John Xiang EArE I/l 33

# Mr. Feng Hai resigned as the Chairman and an Executive Director on 24 April 2019.

- Mr. Chen Bo was appointed as the Chairman and an Executive Director on 25 April

2019.

During the Year, all Directors discharged their duties in a dedicated, diligent
and proactive manner with reasonable prudence. They have executed their
duties in accordance with statutory requirements, the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and Listing Rules. All Directors
have exercised due care in monitoring corporate matters of the Company and

provided sufficient time and attention to all significant issues of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDING

The Executive Directors meet on a regular basis to discuss the ordinary business
of the Company. Board meetings are held to discuss the overall development,
operation, financial performance, interim results, annual results and other
business of the Company that require approval from the Board. Reasonable
notice has been given to Board members to give them an opportunity to attend.
All Board members are provided relevant documentation covering the subject
matter of the Board meetings. Board members are also provided with sufficient
information in a timely manner to review and consider matters to be discussed
at Board meetings and also for passing written resolutions. The Company utilises
telephone conferencing for Directors who are not able to attend in person. The

Board held thirteen Board meetings during the Year.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are drafted by
the secretary of the meetings and recorded in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached, with draft and final versions being circulated
to the Directors for their comments and records within reasonable time after
the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being kept by the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary"), are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board
which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with
by a physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of
his/her associates has a material interest and that he/she shall not be counted in

the quorum present at such Board meeting.
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EXRERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective management,
certain functions of the Board have been delegated by the Board to the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee of

the Company (the “Nomination Committee”).

The members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee are Independent non-executive Directors. Clear written
terms of reference of all the Board Committees are given to the respective
members of these Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out

below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and the Company adopted
written terms of reference for the Audit Committee. In January 2019, the
Board adopted a set of revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which included changes in line with the requirements of the CG Code.
During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee is

comprised of the following Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Tat Joel (Chalirman)
Mr. Wong Stacey Martin

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Fei John Xiang

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
review and supervision of the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control policies and procedures of the Company. The Audit
Committee also acts as the communication bridge between the Board
and the external auditors in relation to the planning and scope of audit
work. The appointment of members to the Audit Committee was based
on members’ breadth of experience in various commercial sectors and

professional knowledge of financial reporting and general management.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings to discuss
the pre-audit planning and review audit interim and annual results of the
Group, internal control and risk management issues. The risk management
policies and procedures was adopted in the year 2016 and the enterprise
risk management advising service and internal control review report
were prepared by an external advisor and were reviewed by the Audit

Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. In March 2012, the
Board adopted a set of revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee which included changes in line with the requirements of
the CG Code. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee is comprised of the following Independent non-

executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Tat Joel (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Stacey Martin

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Fei John Xiang

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among other
things, determining the policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors,
assessing performance of Executive Directors and approving the terms
of Executive Directors’ service contracts. The Remuneration Committee
reviews and approves the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual

executive Directors and senior management.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings and

recommended the remunerations of the Directors and senior management.
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3. Nomination Committee
The Company established the Nomination Committee in March 2012 and
the Company adopted a set of revised written terms of reference which
included changes in line with the requirements of the CG Code in January
2019. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Nomination

Committee is comprised of the following Directors:

Mr. Fei John Xiang (Chairman)
Mr. Chang Tat Joel

Mr. Wong Stacey Martin

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include (i) reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of Independent non-
executive Directors; (iv) make recommendations to the Board; (v) to review the
nomination policy and board diversity policy on regular basis; and (vi) to monitor
the implementation of the nomination policy and board diversity policy and

report in the corporate government report annually.

The Nomination Committee has implemented the following procedures and

processes in respect of the nomination of Directors:

I, The Nomination Committee may select potential candidates for nomination
by: (i) inviting the Board to nominate suitable candidates, if any, for its
consideration; or (ii) nominating candidates who were not proposed by the
Board members; or (iii) engaging external recruitment agencies to assist in

identifying and selecting suitable candidates, if considered necessary;

2. The Nomination Committee will conduct background search on each

potential candidates;
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3. After consideration, the Nomination Committee shall then make
recommendations of the suitable candidates for the Board's consideration
and approval. For the election of candidates to stand for re-election at a
general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to

the Board for its consideration and recommendation to Shareholders; and

4. Shareholders may also nominate candidates for election as a Director in

accordance with the procedures posted on the Company's website.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings to consider the
re-appointment of the retired Directors and the appointment of Mr. Chen Bo as

the Chairman and an Executive Director.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company established the dividend policy in January 2019 aimed at setting
out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation
to the declaration, payment or distribution of its profits as dividends to the

Shareholders.

In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance between
maintaining sufficient capital for expanding the Group's business and rewarding

the shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall also take into account, among other things, when considering the

declaration and payment of dividends:

®  the actual and expected financial performance of the Group
®  the capital and debt level of the Group

®  the general market conditions

®* any working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and

future development plans of the Group

®  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of

the members of the Group

®  the liquidity position of the Group
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®  any restrictions on dividend payouts imposed by any of the Group's

lenders

®  the statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject to

from time to time
®  any other relevant factors that the Board may deem appropriate

Notwithstanding anything in this Dividend Policy, the declaration and payment
of dividends (if any) by the Company is subject to the discretion of the Board,
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing
Rules, the laws of Hong Kong and the Company's Memorandum and Articles of

Association and any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio.
The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or

paid by the Company in the future.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group

to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAININGS AND DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding to duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable
to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest and business of the Group and
such induction materials would also be provided to newly appointed Directors
shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All Directors have been updated
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed by the Board
to ensure Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstance, at the Company's expenses.

The Directors confirmed that they have completed with the Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code and report on Directors’ training. All Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by the following means to

develop and refresh their knowledge during the Year.
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Directors Training received

= BRI

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chen Bo BRIK 5t & Reading materials/attending training course  BIEM /i E 13
Mr. Li Yi FREE Reading materials/attending training course Bﬁﬁé’iﬁﬂ/ﬂjﬁgiﬁﬁ
Ms. Xiao Qing HERt Reading materials/attending training course  BIEM &,/ H BT
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Du Peng HRR%EAE Reading materials/attending training course  BIEM &L/ fE

Ms. Zheng Xiaosu B/ NR T Reading materials/attending training course [ ﬁﬂ/ﬁ}?ﬁ_i

Independent non-executive Directors B IFHITES

Mr. Chang Tat Joel B EE Reading materials BEME

Mr. Wong Stacey Martin EEWLE Reading materials/attending training course  BI:EM £/ H 53
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan EEmidt Reading materials/attending training course B #L/ HELE I
Mr. Fei John Xiang BNt Reading materials/attending training course  BIEM #/HE 13

The topics on training covered the listing rules update, corporate governance,

finance and industry specific regulations.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS
None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relations) among each other.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action

against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Following enquiries with the Directors, the Company has received
confirmation from each of the Directors confirming that he or she has complied

with the required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code for the Year.
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SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer positions are held by separate individuals
with a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties in respect of the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group's
business. The Chairman is responsible for the management of the Board and the
strategic developments of the Group. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible

for the Group's day-to-day corporate administration.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent non-executive Directors bring independent judgement to the
Board. Each Independent non-executive Director sent a written confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company.
Based on these confirmations, the Board considers that all Independent non-
executive Directors have met the qualifications of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

for the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Directors are appointed in accordance with their qualifications and experience
to ensure they are capable to perform their duties and protect the interests of
the stakeholders. Every appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal
introduction to ensure that he/she has an understanding of the Group's business
and operation, his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant regulatory requirements, and the Model Code.

According to the provisions of the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the next following general meeting of the Company, and in the case of an
addition to the existing Board, until the next following Annual General Meeting.
Furthermore, each Director, including those appointed for a specific term
or holding office as Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer, are subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the selection of individuals
nominated as Director and senior management. The Board considers the
experience, qualification, general market conditions and composition of the

Board in selecting and recommending candidates as Directors.

Detailed information relating to educational, professional qualifications and
relevant work experience are provided at the Board meeting to approve the
proposed appointment of new Directors. The criteria for selecting Directors
are mainly based on the candidate’s qualifications, experience, professional

knowledge, ethics and integrity.

The nomination policy and board diversity policy were reviewed and updated on
30 January 2019.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In January 2019, the Board has adopted a set of revised board diversity policy
of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) pursuant to which the Board
considers a number of aspects, including but not limited to, gender, age, culture,
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services in designing the Board's composition. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and to monitor the implementation of

the Board Diversity Policy.
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Board diversification in terms of: EZEgZnt BTHAEES

Gender £ 5
22% 78%

Female ZZ1%

Age Group F#R#H Al
45% 22% 33%

Capacity 17
33% 22% 45%

Executive Directors Z{TE S Independent Non-executive Directors % JE£{TESE

Length of Service in the Board RE B & R F
78% 22%

0-3 years 0-3%F

Nationality B]%&
78% 119% 119%

Australian
Chinese Ff S
=<

Educational Background B2 E
33% 67%

Bachelor’s degree B2 +72[E

Professional Experience 3485
1% 89%

Accounting

it

Market/Industry Experience W5/ TELR
67% 22% 1%

Real Estate

FEHE

Investment IR &
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INED’s other listed board roles:

TRERME

BYFHTESHMLTESEAG !

Chang Wong Stacey Tso Siu Fei John

Tat Joel Martin Lun Alan Xiang

iEE HEW EER B3

Executive director HITEE — — —

Non-executive director FEHITES - -

Independent non-executive director BUFHNITES - —
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EEREREEE2HMH

In determining the remuneration of Directors and senior management, the
Company took into account of (i) the prevailing market conditions; (ii) the
time commitment requirements; (iii) the duties and responsibilities; (iv) the
contribution to the Group; (v) the qualifications and (vi) the experience, to
ensure sufficient remuneration levels to attract and retain high calibre personnel

without paying excessively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary,
Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy, a full-time employee of the Company. Ms. Lai has
confirmed that she had received no less than |5 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 3| December 2019 in compliance with Rule 3.29 of

the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
The Memorandum and the Articles of Association of the Company are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

Company general meetings are valuable platform to allow the Board to
communicate with Shareholders and answer questions regarding proposed
resolutions. Individual resolutions stipulated at general meetings for each
substantial issue and Board members are available to answer questions raised by

Shareholders.
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The Board adopted a Shareholder's communication policy aiming to provide
Shareholders and potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced
and understandable information of the Company. Information of the Group was

disseminated to Shareholders and investors as follows:

®  Delivery of interim reports and annual reports to all Shareholders and

other interested parties;

° Announce interim results and annual results on both the websites of
Stock Exchange and the Company; and issue and publication of other
announcements and shareholders' circulars in accordance with the

continuing disclosure obligation under the Listing Rules; and

o Inside Information is disclosed to the public by way of announcement as
required by the Listing Rules and pursuant to Inside Information Provisions

under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may direct enquiries to the Board at any time. Such enquiries can
be addressed to the Company Secretary by mail to the Company's principal
office in Hong Kong at Suite 811, Level 8, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway,
Admiralty, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions at
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles
of Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting following the procedures

set out below.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require for an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in

such requisition.
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If the requisition is in order, then the meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director, for election
as a new Director of the Company, the Shareholder must deposit a written
notice (the “Notice”) to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Suite 811, Level 8, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact information of the
Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding, the full name of the person proposed
for election as a Director, including the person’s biographical details as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned (other than the person to be proposed). The Notice must also be
accompanied by a letter of consent (the “Letter”) signed by the person proposed

to be elected on his/her willingness to be elected as a Director.

The period for lodgement of the Notice and the Letter will commence no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the notice by the Company of the general
meeting appointed for election of Directors and end no later than seven (7) days

prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified with the Company's branch share registrar and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will forward the relevant documents to the Nomination Committee
and the Board to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for the general

meeting proposing such person to be elected as a Director.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and believe these statements give a
true and fair view of the Group's affairs and its results. The Directors are also
responsible for the timely publication of financial statements of the Group and
to ensure they are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable financial reporting standards. The Directors are also committed to
make appropriate announcements in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, and to disclose all information necessary for Shareholders to assess

the financial performance and other aspects of the Company.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the external auditor of the Group
for the Year and will continue as such until the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited. The auditors’ responsibilities for
the Group's financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report

on pages 77 to 85 of the Company's 2019 Annual Report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for evaluating, including but not limited to,

their independence and objectivity of the external auditors of the Group.

The fees of the external auditors of the Group for audit services amounted to
HK$1.30 million and for non-audit services, being engagement on the Group's
interim financial statements 2019 and financial due diligence, conducted in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard in Related Services 4400 “Engagements to
Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants amounted to approximately
HK$0.45 million for the Year.

2019 Annual Report

BERER

ESHAREEEARENBRR 2B L
RRZEBREBAARRAEENEHLE
B-EETRARERTRASEMBHREK L
R BRRIBBEE BN ERMBRE
EARS - EEMBNRRETRAZ AT
HEE R RBEBERRAF AR AR BRE
REMEEMFORHER

HEEE(BR)BAMEBMERRAZES
ERAREEAREE 2SN EED - W EE T
BERERRBFEAGER - AEERAFE
ZERGRMBHAGCEREEE(EE) G
SBMAERDAER - RHMMHAEEY KR
RZAEERARA—_E-NFFRETTES
BRI RBMRE -

ERZEARMAARE ZINBREE - B
REFRRES BLIEMREN -

REEARBEZINIGRBMAEBRBRE &
FARI0BEET  ARFZBRS(REER
“E-NEPHRBRR RV BEREEER
ShERRZERED - RIBRB QIR ERANER
ARG ERFE 400 R RXZRETEBY
BERNBERF ETIEINERLR045
BERT



2019 4 #f

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems, and
to review its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The internal control
systems are designed to meet the Group's particular needs and the risks to which
it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks
of failure in achieving the Group's objectives. Practicable and effective control
systems and procedures have been implemented by the Group to enhance
internal control in an ongoing basis. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
has conducted reviews of the effectiveness and the adequacy of such systems at

least annually.

During the Year, the Executive Directors are responsible for the overall risk
management functions. In order to comply with the applicable code provisions
set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 4 to the Listing Rules, the
Board has retained an external advisor with a view to facilitating adequacy of
resources and quality of review to satisfy the Group's internal audit function as
required by Stock Exchange and to assist the Board to perform annual reviews
on the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems for the Year. The results of the assessment have been reported to the
Audit Committee and areas of the recommended actions have been identified

and taken into consideration by the Board for improvements.

The Company has developed its code of conduct which provides a general
guideline to the Company's Directors and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to

enquiries.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems established and
maintained by the Group, the work performed by the external auditor, the
internal audit function, and reviews performed by executive management,
respective Board Committees and the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Board are of the view that the Group has maintained sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems during the financial period ended 3|

December 2019.
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During the Year, the Board has conducted a review and assessment of risk
management and appointed a professional management consultancy firm, Crowe
(HK) Risk Advisory Limited, to provide internal controls assessment services to
assess and evaluate the risk and effectiveness of its system of internal controls.
The Audit Committee members, together with the management, have reviewed,
considered and discussed all the findings and recommendations of the internal
control review relating to the internal control system that operates within the
Group, and the Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal control system
of the Group is sound and adequate. Pursuant to the system improvement
recommendations made by Crowe (HK) Risk Advisory Limited, the Group will

continue to improve its internal management and control systems.

The management and various departments conducted periodic self-assessment
of the effectiveness of the internal control policies and procedures. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, management of the Company had conducted
an internal audit on the systems of internal control of asset management and
investments in fixed income products to ensure compliance with procedures laid

down by the Company and the Group.

The Board is of the view that the systems of internal control and risk
management are effective and there are no irregularities, improprieties, fraud or
other deficiencies that suggest there is no material deficiency in the effectiveness

of the Group's internal control and risk management system.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and
belief and having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cause significant
doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the

financial statements for the Year.

On behalf of the Board
OCI International Holdings Limited

Chen Bo

Executive Director (Chairman)

20 March 2020
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Bo, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company in April 2019. Mr. Chen holds a Master degree in
Economics from Fudan University and received a Bachelor degree of Engineering

from East China University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Chen has over 20 years' experience in private equity and investment banking
in China. He is currently an Director and the General Manager of /8% /3%
HEAREBMR AT (Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment Co., Ltd.)
("Orient Securities Capital”). He is a director of various subsidiaries of Orient
Securities Capital, a wholly owned subsidiaries of &5 i %% 15 B IR 2 7] (Orient
Securities Co., Ltd). He is also a director of L/ESEFESRHARAR], £/F
BWBRARAF, REEH(LHREEEARLA, LEEREEEER
AERRAR, LBFR2EEREBRAF, CMGE Technology Group Limited,
Kuntai Technology Investment (HK) Limited, Kunhai Technology Investment (HK)
Limited, Kunpeng Technology Investment (HK) Limited, Orient Zhichong Cayman
Inc., Zhichong Technology Investment (HK) Limited, Orient Zhike Limited,
Hontai Zhike Cayman Limited, Orient Zhike (HK) Limited, and Orient Ruide
Tenghui Hong Kong Limited. He is one of the founders of Orient Securities
Capital and has been working as Director and Deputy General Manager since
its establishment. Mr. Chen worked in Orient Securities Co., Ltd as Senior
Manager, Manager of corporate finance division and Deputy General Manager
of investment banking division. Mr. Chen is a sponsor representative registered
under China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC") and Securities

Association of China (“SAC").
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Mr. Li Yi, aged 38, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in November 2016 and redesignated as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company in July 2017. Mr. Li is director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
In 2018, Mr. Li was appointed as an Executive Director and responsible officer
of OCI Asset Management Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Li holds a Master degree in Law (International Relations) from
Fudan University and a Bachelor degree in Philosophy from Renmin University
of China. Mr. Li has over |2 years of experience in investment banking and
private equity in China and Hong Kong. Mr. Li served as deputy general manager
of Orient Ruide (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“Orient Ruide”)
Before joining Orient Ruide, Mr. Li served at Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd,
Morgan Stanley Huaxin Securities Co., Ltd. and Citi Orient Securities as an
investment banker. Mr. Li was a sponsor representative registered under CSRC

and SAC.

Ms. Xiao Qing, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in December 2016 and redesignated as Chief Operating Officer of
the Company in July 2017. Ms. Xiao is director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Xiao holds a Bachelor degree in Economics. Ms. Xiao has over 20
years of experience in investment banking and private equity. Ms. Xiao currently
serves as chief operating officer and board secretary of Orient Securities Capital
Investment Co., Ltd. Before joining Orient Securities Co., Ltd., Ms. Xiao worked
in Foreign Economy Office of Shanghai Second Commercial Bureau and China
Economic Development Trust & Investment Corporation. Ms. Xiao joined Orient
Securities Co., Ltd. in 2001.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Du Peng, aged 39, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in February 2017. Mr. Du holds a Master degree in business from
Victoria University in Australia and a Bachelor degree in business from Beijing
Jiaotong University in China. Mr. Du has around ten years of experience in
investment banking and asset management in Hong Kong. Mr. Du has started his
career in CCB International Asset Management Limited since 2007 to present.
He currently serves as managing director of CCB International Asset Management

Limited.

Ms. Zheng Xiaosu, aged 34, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in February 2017. Ms. Zheng holds a Bachelor degree in Mathematics,
Accounting and Financial Management from Loughborough University in the
United Kingdom. Ms. Zheng has around nine years of experience in investment
banking and asset management in Hong Kong. Ms. Zheng currently serves as

managing director of CCB International Asset Management Limited.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chang Tat Joel, aged 5!, was appointed as an Independent non-executive
Director of the Company in September 2014. Mr. Chang has considerable
strategic, financial and advisory experience. He is the co-founder of AID Partners
Capital Limited and a founder of Genius Link Assets Management Limited,
both are private equity investment companies. He now continues building the
businesses of Genius Link Group. He is an investment committee member of AID
Partners Capital Limited, and is responsible for its strategic investment planning.
He is also a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained a

Bachelor's degree in Economics from Monash University in 1990,
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Mr. Chang, is an an independent non-executive director of Hailiang International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2336), company listed on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chang was an executive director and chief operating officer of
Mason Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 0273), a non-executive director of
Kong Sun Holdings Limited (stock code: 0295) and was an independent non-
executive director of Kingsoft Corporation Limited (stock code: 3888), and
was an executive director and the chief financial officer of Orange Sky Golden
Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 1132), The above
companies are listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange. Mr. Chang was a
non-executive director of AID Life Science Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Healthoo International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8088), a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent director of China
Mobile Games and Entertainment Group Limited, a company previously listed on

NASDAQ.

Mr. Wong Stacey Martin, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2014. Mr. Wong holds
a Bachelor degree of Arts and a Master degree of Arts from University of
Cambridge, the United Kingdom. Mr. Wong has over 29 years of investment
banking experience and has extensive experience in fund raising transactions
of Hong Kong and Chinese companies and has participated in various kinds of
transactions of Blue-chips, Red-chips and H-shares and mergers and acquisitions.
He is a responsible officer for Types |, 2, 4, 6 and 9 regulated activities under
the SFO for China Tonghai Securities Limited and a responsible officer for
Types | and 6 regulated activities under the SFO for China Tonghai Capital
Limited. Mr. Wong is currently the chief operating and risk officer of China
Tonghai International Financial Limited (previously known as China Oceanwide
International Financial Limited) (stock code: 0952), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and non-executive director of Minshang Creative
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code:1632), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Prior to joining China Tonghai International
Financial Limited, Mr. Wong was the chief operating officer of CMBC
International Holdings Limited (a subsidiary of China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd) since | April 2015. Mr. Wong was the head of investment banking of Piper
Jaffray Asia Limited (formally named as Goldbond Capital (Asia) Limited) and
also headed Bear Stearns Asia Limited's corporate finance team. He has spent
over 10 years with Peregrine Group, with his last position as executive director

of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited.
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Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, aged 36, was appointed as an Independent non-executive
Director of the Company in May 2017. Mr. Tso graduated from University of
Cambridge with a Bachelor and a Master degree in Land Economy, majoring
in real estate finance and property law. Mr. Tso is the founder of the China
Mini Storage Limited (“CMS"). Prior to establishing CMS, based in Beijing,
Mr. Tso worked as an investment director of the Everbright Ashmore China
Real Estate Fund, a joint venture offshore real estate fund sponsored by the
China Everbright Limited (stock code: 0165), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and the Ashmore Group PLC (LSE stock code:
ASHM). Previously, based in Hong Kong, Mr. Tso also worked at Merrill Lynch's
Global Commercial Real Estate team where he was principally involved in the
firm's principal investing activities in Asian real estate. He also worked at the
HSBC's Global Capital Markets — ABS & Structured Bonds Team where he
was principally involved in the bank's securitisation business. As for community
services, Mr. Tso has been invited to become the [0th and the IIth session
member of the Beijing Youth Federation, the 3rd and 4th session member of
the Beijing Overseas Friendship Association Youth Committee, the 4th session
council member of the Shanxi Province Overseas Friendship Association, the
8th session council member of the Beijing Haidian District Overseas Friendship
Association, the Innovation Committee Vice Chairman of the HK Professionals
(Beijing) Association, the Beijing Group Convener of China Real Estate Chamber
of Commerce (“CRECC") Hong Kong Chapter, and the board member of the
Self-Storage Association (“SSAA"). Also, he has been appointed as a part-time
lecturer for the Asia-Pacific Commercial Real Estate Academy ("APCREA"), an
educational institution sponsored by the CRECC's China Commercial Real Estate
Commission. Mr. Tso is currently an independent non-executive director of Shi
Shi Services Limited (Formerly known as Hang Sheng Holdings Limited and Kong
Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited) (stock code: 8181), a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, and a responsible officer at
Acer King Capital (Hong Kong) Limited (CE No: BII746) and Red Rock Global
Capital Limited (CE No. BVK973) for the SFC regulated activities of Type 4 and
Type 9.
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Mr. Fei John Xiang, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent non-executive
Director of the Company in May 2018. Mr. Fei holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Columbia Business School in the United States of
America. He is currently the chief executive officer of Wintech Group Limited.
Mr. Fei has more than 20 years of extensive experience in investment banking
and securities fields. Prior to joining Wintech Group Limited, he was the chief
executive officer of Kim Eng Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and held senior
positions in various international investment banks, including Merrill Lynch (Asia
Pacific) Limited, Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch and ICBC International
Holdings Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Suk Ping, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in June 2011 and resigned as an Executive Director and continued to act as
Chief Financial Officer to oversee the accounts department of the Group in July
2017. Mr. Lam holds a degree of Master of Business Administration from the
University of Hull and a degree of Master of Corporate Governance from the
Open University of Hong Kong. He has over 35 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting, investment and business management. Mr. Lam had been
an independent non-executive director of Mingyuan Medicare Development
Company Limited (which listing status on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
was cancelled on 23 January, 2020) (stock code: 0233) for the period from 20
May 2016 to 22 January 2020.

Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy, was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company in July 2017. Ms. Lai is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Lai obtained a Master degree of Business
Administration from the University of Manchester in June 2010, and has over
20 years of experience in auditing, accounting, company secretarial, financial
management and corporate finance. Ms. Lai is currently an independent non-
executive director of KPa-BM Holdings Limited (stock code: 2663), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She is currently an independent
non-executive director of KNK Holdings Limited (stock code: 8039), and
Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 8366), and
non-executive director of Larry Jewelry international Company Limited (stock

code: 8351), all these companies are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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OCI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “We" and “Our”, and
together with its subsidiaries the “Group”) hereby presents this Environmental,
Social and Governance report (the "ESG Report”) for the year ended 3l

December 2019 (“Year 2019").

OBJECTIVES

To comply with the requirements set forth in Appendix 27 Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide") of the Main Board Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, disclosures relating to the
material ESG issues identified have been included in this ESG Report pursuant to

the General Disclosure requirements of the ESG Guide.

REPORTING SCOPE

During Year 2019, the Group was principally engaged in securities trading and
investments, asset management, provision of investment and financial advisory
services and trading of wines. The ESG Report discloses the Group's performance

on environmental and social aspects of the entire Group's businesses.

APPROACH AND STRATEGY

ESG forms a crucial part of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company, the board of directors of the Company is responsible for
overseeing our ESG strategy and reporting, and overseeing the management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal

control systems to address the ESG-related issues.

The Group is committed to undertake ESG responsibilities and improving
our ESG performance by upholding good corporate governance standards,
implementing environmental friendly measures, responding to stakeholders’
expectation with practical actions and promoting the sustainable development of

the Company.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group recognises the expectation and feedback from our stakeholders are
vital for sustainable development of the Group. During Year 2019, the Group
continued to understand the key ESG concerns of our key stakeholders through
various communication channels and platforms, such as communication meetings,
corporate website, social media platforms and public welfare activities etc, to
promote and adjust the strategy of sustainable development. Key stakeholders
include shareholders and investors, government and supervisory institutions,

customers, suppliers, employees and communities.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENTS

Materiality assessment was conducted in accordance with the expectation and
feedback from the key stakeholders. Based on our assessment, the management
of the Group prioritises employee rights and obligations and product
responsibility as material aspects of our long-term sustainability. Effective internal
control systems on these aspects are reinforced with the aim of enhancing
efficiency of operations and generating the environmental and social benefits to

our stakeholders.

A.  ENVIRONMENTAL
Al Emissions
Despite that the Group's operation does not have any mass
emissions or significant impact to the environment, the Group is
committed to minimise out environmental impacts by responsibly
managing our business, reducing our carbon footprint and using
resources effectively. Hence the Group has established relevant
emissions reduction and energy saving initiatives to manage the

emissions and maintain green operations.

Air emissions

The Group did not own or operate any vehicles, and hence
insignificant amount of or no air pollutants were generated in Year
2019.
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Greenhouse gases emissions

During Year 2019, the operation of the Group no longer involves
in the production activities and does not have significant impacts
on the environment. Nevertheless, the Group generates minimal
greenhouse gas from purchased electricity and business air travel by

our employees.

A summary on the relevant emissions related key performance
indicators of the Company (“KPIs") for Year 2019 (with 2018

comparative data) is disclosed as follows:

2019 Annual Report
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2019 2018

Types of Emissions BErE R —E-hE —Z-NFE
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) (produced by Z &bk (CO,) (hER L 29,135 kg 36,431 kg
business air travel by employees) REHZEES) 29,1352 7 3643127
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) (produced by Z&bHk(CO,) (MENES) 16,928 kg 13,833 kg
electricity) 16,9282 T 13,8332/
Total Carbon Dioxide (CO,) emissions Z&{LHk (COo,) BHmE 46,063 kg 50,264 kg
46,0632 7 50,2642 T

During Year 2019, despite the Group expanded the offices spaces
in Shanghai, which leads to more consumption on electricity, the
overall carbon dioxide emissions has decreased slightly. The decrease
in overall carbon dioxide emissions was due to the reduction in
carbon dioxide emission from business air travel. The decrease in
carbon dioxide emission from business air travel is attributed to the

following measures:

®  The promotion of choosing transport that produce less carbon
emissions. Our staffs were encouraged to travel by train

instead of flight.

®  The successful adoption of telecommuting provides flexibility

and reduce the frequency of business trips.

The Group endeavors to improve energy efficiency and reduce
energy consumption by adopting energy saving initiatives in the

Section “Use of resources” in this Report.
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Waste management

The Group's operations do not produce any hazardous waste. The
non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group were mainly papers
and solid wastes generated in our office and warehouse during
our operation, which were insignificant and had little impact to the
environment. Principles of reducing, reuse, and recycle are applied in

minimising waste generation.
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Use of resources A2 ERER
Our Group is committed to conserving resources in our business $EEEF§¥}E§U¢' BHEBHE
activities, including use of energy, water and paper during our BIEERBIZPER KR4
operation. We aim to reduce the use of resources and corresponding gﬁﬁ'\]ﬁﬁi o #{FIH0 B IR 2B BIRD
carbon footprint through adoption of various green initiatives. ERERNFRAIERERIIEE
Green awareness is promoted among employees in order to drive Mkt - HMREEEHRRE
their behavioural changes. Green measures on deploying energy- & BEREMMNEZE - AR
efficient equipment and adoption of resource conserving process are TRMRARE - ZOEHETEER
implemented in pursuing our commitment. Awareness is promoted RRBARERRAERSOREF
among our employees, and various green measures are implemented SRRERE - ZMREEEBRR
in the office area, including printing paper on both sides and reusing = u‘ét WERNEHTEERRE
papers printed on one side, switching off lights and air-conditioning BEEERYORERERDR
for rooms and computers not in use and setting room temperature ok - BEAEERTRRRENRBR
at 25.5°C. EARFERTOER - ARBE
NRERNEE2B5E °
A summary on the relevant use of resources related KPIs of the —NEEENERFERERE
Group for Year 2019 (with 2018 comparative data) is disclosed as ERBEEHE(BER-_Z-N\F
follows: HBREF)REQNT -
2019 2018
Use of Resources ER¥%R “E-NEF —E-N\F
Electricity EW)| 20,452 kWh 17,510 kWh
20452F BB 17510T R
Paper R 301 kg 327 kg
3012 NIRRT

The Group's existing businesses are not expected to pose a
significant use of water or packaging materials and hence has no

material impact on the environment.
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The environment and natural resources
Due to the nature of the business, the Group does not have any
direct and significant impacts on the environment and natural

resources in the course of our operations.

Our Group aimed at monitoring possible environmental impacts of
our business operations and investment portfolio, and to implement
measures to control the adverse impacts, in order to generate long-

term values to our stakeholders as well as the whole community.

In order to implement the policy, we monitor our impact on the
environment and natural resources. Various sources of pollution,
including land, water, noise, and air, are monitored by our
management. If necessary, environmental impact assessment is
performed, in order to assess the environmental risk of the business
activities. Necessary measures are taken to control the risk and

comply with national/local laws and regulations.

B. SOCIAL

BI

Employment

Employees are the most valuable assets of our Group. We strive to
attract and retain talents and reconcile economical imperatives with
well-beings, aiming at reinforcing satisfaction, loyalty and commitment
of human capital. In order to enhance our governance in human
resources management, our directors directly involved in governing
the recruitment, resignation, termination, training, promotion,
working hours, rest periods, discipline, other benefits and welfare, in

accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The salary and benefit levels of the Group's employees are reviewed
annually based on the performance of employees. Our Group
established a compensation practice taking into account the overall
economic outlook, relevant external compensation levels as well
as the requirement of internal fairness. A wide range of benefits
including comprehensive medical and retirement schemes are also
provided to employees. Social, sporting and recreational activities are

arranged for the employees in achieving work-life balance.
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We committed that nobody should be treated less favourably on his/
her personal characteristics such as gender, pregnancy, marital status,
disability, family status, and race. Opportunities for employment,
training and career development are equally opened to all qualified

employees.

The Group complied with all the relevant laws and regulation,
including the Employment Ordinance (Cap.57 of the Laws of Hong

Kong) and the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance.

Health and safety
Our Group is committed to provide and maintain a safe, healthy, and
hygienic workplace for all employees, and all other persons likely to

be affected by our operations and activities.

Health and safety standards are given prime consideration in our
operations and regulatory compliance is strongly upheld. Employees
are committed to deliver safety initiatives in reducing the potential
danger in workplace. Considering the occupational risk, proper

protective equipment and guidance are provided to the employees.

Appropriate training, education, and evacuation exercise are
organised regularly. Employees are encouraged to report unmanaged

workplace hazard and to suggest improvement on workplace safety.

Development and training

To accomplish the corporate objectives as well as personnel
development of employees, our Group encourages and supports our
employees in continuous personal and professional training. Training
enhances employees’ competencies and potentials in performing
their jobs effectively and efficiently and leads to long-term mutual

success of employees and the Group.

Depending on operational and management requirements, and skills
required, we committed to creating an environment of continuous
improvement through providing in-house peer learning and on-the-
job coaching. We also encourage our staff to attend external training

courses and seminars.
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OClal and

In Year 2019, the Group organised a training course which covered
the major changes of the Listing Rules and regulations. Directors
and senior management of the Group participated in the training to
maintain their continuous professional training development and to
fulfil their obligations under Corporate Governance Code as set out

in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules.

Labour standards

Our Group prohibits the engagement of any child and forced labour
in any of our operations and services. Children who are identified
by the local labour law should not be employed, as they reserve
the right to pursue education in their childhood. With the aim to
prevent child labour employment, during the process of recruitment,
information of candidate is verified by checking the identity proof
and documents of candidate. Labour who is forced to work by
means of physical punishment, abuse, involuntary servitude, peonage
or trafficking is strictly forbidden. We will also avoid engaging with
suppliers and contractors that are known to employ child or forced

labour in their products or services.

The Group guarantees employees the right to rest and vacation
according to law. Employees enjoy legal holidays and legal leave,
marriage leave, compassionate leave, paid annual leave and other

leave entitlements.

Supply chain management

Our Group encourages suppliers to maintain a high standard on
business ethics and conducts, with managing the environmental
and social issues arising from their business operations. During the
supplier selection and contract drafting processes, the following
factors are considered in achieving “Green Procurement” on the

Group's supply chain:

* Use of environmental-friendly resources in provision of

products/services;

B4

B5
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®  Effort on limiting emission of pollutants;
®  Responsible management of environmental impacts;

e  Compliance with local environmental and social law and

regulations;

L Historical incidents on bribery, corruption, and money

laundering;

i Existence of discrimination due to ethnicity, gender, age,

disability or marital status on supplier’s recruitment;

®  Provision of fair wages and all other legally mandated benefits;

®  Provision of a safe working environment which complies with

local laws or practices;

e Community investment initiatives and effort.

Product responsibility

Responsible investment policy

The Group realises the materiality of environmental, social and
governance factors in affecting the performance of business, as
well as the long term impact on the surrounding communities. The
investment may impact the local community, for example on living

condition of local citizens, labour treatment, and natural habitats.

Hence, in the process of making investment decisions, factors of
ESG are integrated into our investment analysis and decision making
process. As a responsible investor, we strive to incorporate ESG
insight in managing our investment portfolio, in order to control

undesired risk and maximise shareholders' value in long-term basis.
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Product responsibility policy

Our Group highly values the safety and quality of our wine products.
We developed strong governance structure in monitoring the
quality of wine products, with strict compliance with the national/
local laws and standards. Facilities, warehouse, hygienic condition,
quality control and inspection procedures are examined on a regular
basis. All employees across the value chain will continuously achieve

various quality objectives.

Data privacy policy

Protecting the security and privacy of stakeholders' personal data is
important to our Group. We ensure compliance with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
other statutory requirements to meet a high standard of security and
confidentiality of personal data privacy protection. The following data
protection principles are adopted in preserving proper security and

use of data:

®*  We only collect personal data that are relevant and required

for our businesses;

*  We will not share personal data to any entity that is not a
member of our Group without consent unless it is required by

law or it was previously notified;

*  We maintain appropriate data collection, storage, and
processing practices and security measures to protect against

unauthorised access to personal information.
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Anti-corruption

Employees at all levels are expected to behave with integrity,
impartiality and honesty. Our Group does not tolerate corruption,
bribery, extortion, money-laundering and other fraudulent activities
in connection with any of our business operations that compromise
the interest of our shareholders, investors, customers, and other
stakeholders. The Group is in strict compliance with relevant laws
and regulations such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap.
201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws of

Hong Kong).

Our Group has issued relevant whistle-blowing procedures in
setting up a private communication channel on reporting suspicious
fraudulent actions to the Group's management directly. The conduct
of employee is closely monitored by management in preventing
wrong-doings. Ongoing review of the effectiveness of the internal
control systems is conducted on a regular basis in preventing the

occurrence of corruption activities.

Community investment

As a responsible company, we aim at serving and strengthening
the wider community, and encouraging employees and other
stakeholders in supporting the community. Our Group understands
well of the importance for making positive contribution to the
community where it operates, and considers community benefits
as one of its social responsibility. We encourage our employee to
actively participate in public conventions, conference, exhibitions
and events with a particular focus on community investment,

sponsorships and charitable contributions.

Selection of supporting charities involves several considerations. We
evaluate the vision and background of requesting charities in aligning
with our Group's. Charities engaged in unethical activities, and those
in unclear financial position, and conflict of interest with corporation/

individual will not be considered.
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The directors of OCI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) present
the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group") for
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 86 to 87.

The directors do not recommend any payment of a dividend for the Year (2018:
Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and future developments of the Group for the Year are
contained in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and
Analysis section of this annual report. Key sources of estimation uncertainty,
capital risk management and financial risk management are disclosed in pages
147 to 149 and pages 197 to 219 of this annual report. There were no material

events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 3| December
2019 using financial performance indicators is provided in the section headed

“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 29 of this annual report.

In addition, details regarding the Group's performance by reference to
environmental and social-related key performance indicators and policies, as well
as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Company are provided in the paragraph headed “Environmental, Social

and Governance Report” on pages 56 to 65 of this annual report.

Detailed information of the Group's corporate governance is contained in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 30 to 49 of this

annual report.

RERRERERAR(AARNEZER
UREBE-F-NF+-_A=+-HLFHE
([REE] 2 FREBEGEARBRE -

FERE
ARERREERAR - ARE T EME QA
ZEIBEBENGAMBERAMEL -

RERKRE
ARALEAMBRR(RBEAEEAFEZ
FEHENFAZTAZEABEREMS
HRER o

AEE EETEFIRMNEARS(ZZ-N
FoE)e

B ERE

AEBARFE 7 EBBERRRERANASE
B2ERBREREBENREDNT - FETH
ERFRER  EARRERREREARERR
AERBI4TEZEI9ERFITEE29ER
B BAFERNUR UERBEZEASEL
BREM

AEEBE-_T-NFT-_A=+—-HLFE
ERMBRRERNRAITERNLFERE
EVAIEEBHRENN]—HR -

pAN BEASREESZRE AL GHEN
AREAEEREROERER  URETHLF
BAEAYENMBRZZRERTEANGEE &
SHAFRESCAEZGARE  HERER

®EI—R -

ARECEERNFABHFHNAFHRFE0R
EAENCRERRE RN -



2019 4 R

REBEBEZERARAA

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years are set out on page 228.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during

the Year are set out in Note |2 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the Year in the Company's share capital are set out

in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distributions to shareholders as at 3|
December 2019 comprised the share premium, reserves plus retained profits
with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$220.92 million (2018: HK$313.01

million).

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the Year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Bo (Chairman) (appointed on 25 April 2019)

Mr. Feng Hai (Chairman) (resigned on 24 April 2019)

Mr. Li Yi (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Xiao Qing (Chief Operating Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Du Peng
Ms. Zheng Xiaosu

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chang Tat Joel

Mr. Wong Stacey Martin

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Fei John Xiang
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as at the date of
this report are set out from pages 50 to 55 of this annual report. Details of
Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In accordance with Article 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Li Yi, Mr. Du Peng and Mr. Wong Stacey Martin shall be retired
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Each of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Bo, Mr. Li Yi and Ms. Xiao
Qing have entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 25 April 2019, 6 July 2019 and 6 July 2017
respectively. Each of the non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Du Peng and Ms.
Zheng Xiaosu, has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 17 February 2020. The Independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Stacey Martin, Mr. Chang Tat Joel, Mr.
Tso Siu Lun Alan and Mr. Fei John Xiang, have entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 2 September
2017, 2 September 2017, 16 May 2017 and 18 May 2018 respectively.

All Directors’ appointments will be subject to normal retirement and re-
election at the annual general meeting by the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholder”) pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the

“Articles of Association”).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
Since 12 January 2020, Mr. Chang Tat Joel, the Independent non-executive
Director of the Company has resigned as the executive director and chief

operating officer of Mason Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 0273).

Save as disclosed above, there had not been any other changes to Directors'
information as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(l) of the Rules
Governing the listing of securities in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

("Listing Rules").

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, none of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their associates had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO™)) which were to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules (“Model Code"),
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the
Company or any associated corporations, and none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares or

debt securities of the Company or had exercised any such right during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

Year or at any time during the Year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to Directors, as at 3|1 December 2019, the persons or

companies (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had

interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO, or which

were recorded in the register of substantial Shareholders required to be kept by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company (the “Share”) as at 3|

December 2019:
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Approximate

Number percentage
Name of Shareholders Capacity of Shares  of shareholding
BRRER &t ROBE RESOEILL
Golden Power Group Limited (Note /) Beneficial Owner 314,000,000 29.63%
Golden Power Group Limited (4732 /) ExBAA
East Milestone Company Limited (Note /) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 29.63%
RABRBRRB(HZ) Rt S
Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 29.63%

Management Co., Limited (Note /)
RhEE(LB)REERARAR (M) R % E
Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 29.63%
Co., Ltd (Note /)

LBRGTEFBAREBRRA(ME ) Rt s
RAEHFRNBRAT (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 29.63%
RABRFBRDBERRAHZ ) Rt EE S
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 210,860,000 19.89%
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (f7#2) ExBAA
CCBI Investments Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
CCBI Investments Limited (#7722) REHEEER
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
RREIBR (B AR AR (M 2) Rt EE S
CCB Financial Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
RITERIZRAERDR(HE2) REnEE RS
CCB International Group Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
BITBRKBEERARAR(HE2) Rt S
China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
PERRRITRNDERRA(HZ2) Rt EE S
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%

PRESREFRAT AR (MiE2)

ezt IVAEL: 5o
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Notes:

R EBEFHRMHER B (Orient Securities Co., Ltd.) directly holds 100% of the
equity interest in Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment Co., Ltd., which
in turn holds 100% of the equity interest in Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment
Management Co., Ltd., which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of East
Milestone Company Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of
Golden Power Group Limited. Therefore, 377 & % & {7 A BR 2 8] (Orient Securities
Co., Ltd.), Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment Co., Ltd, Orient Ruiyi
(Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd. and East Milestone Company Limited
are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by Golden Power Group

Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. directly holds 57.11% of the equity interest in China
Construction Bank Corporation, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share
capital of CCB International Group Holdings Limited, which in turn holds 100%
of the issued share capital of CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn holds
100% of the issued share capital of CCB International (Holdings) Limited, which
in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of CCBI Investments Limited, which
in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of Cheer Hope Holdings Limited.
Therefore, Central Huijin Investment Ltd., China Construction Bank Corporation,
CCB International Group Holdings Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB
International (Holdings) Limited and CCBI Investments Limited are taken to be
interested in the number of Shares held by Cheer Hope Holdings Limited pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person, other than the

Directors, whose interests are set out herein this report, had registered an

interest or short position in the shares or underlying Shares that was required to

be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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BIREERBERLAAFEROERARA
A% BITRA MRAERERAF
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") has been adopted by
the Company pursuant to a shareholder’s resolution passed on |7 December
2012. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward any Directors and
employees of the Group, any director or employee of a company or entity in
which the Group has invested in and any advisors (professional or otherwise),
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters, any director or employee
of any service partners of any member of the Group who the Board considers,
in its sole discretion, have contributed to or will contribute to the Group (the
"Participants”) and to encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company and its

Shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each grantee under the Share Option Scheme (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any [2-month period shall not
(when aggregated with any Shares subject to options granted during such period
under any other share option scheme(s) of the Company other than those
options granted pursuant to specific approval by the Shareholders in a general
meeting) exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being, unless further
grant of options being approved by Shareholders in general meeting with such
Participant and his associates abstaining from voting. Where any grant of options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates, would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled or outstanding) to such person in the
[2-month period up to and including the date of such grant (i) representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of such grant; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of options shall be subject to prior

approval by resolution of the Shareholders (voting by way of poll).
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during the period to be determined and notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of grant of the option which shall not expire
later than 10 years from the date of grant. The Share Option Scheme does not
specify a minimum period for which an option must be held nor a performance
target which must be achieved before an option can be exercised. However,
the rules of the Share Option Scheme provide that the Board may determine, at
its discretion, such term(s) on the grant of an option, which decision may vary
on a case by case basis. A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 as
consideration for the grant of option is payable by the grantee upon acceptance
of the grant of option within a period of 28 days from the date of grant. Such

remittance is not refundable in any circumstances.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but in any event shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of the Shares.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date i.e. |7 December 2012. The provisions of the
Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects

until 16 December 2022.

No options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme since the

adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date of this report.

As at the date of this report, there is no option granted or outstanding under
any of the Company's share option scheme. The total number of securities
available for issue under the share option scheme mandate limit is 105,974,992,

representing 10% of the issued shares as at the date of this report.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS
The Company has no outstanding convertible securities, options or similar rights

in issue as at 31 December 2019.
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BORROWINGS

As at 3| December 2019, the Group did not have any secured short-term
borrowing and the total borrowing (including borrowings, obligations under Repo
and lease liabilities) amounted to HK$665.00 million (2018: HK$431.58 million).

DONATIONS

For the Year, the Group had not made any charitable and other donations.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the
Scheme, employer and employees a each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 and a minimum level of relevant income of
HK$7,100 for the employees’ contribution. The Group's employees in the PRC,
participate in a defined contribution central pension scheme operated by the

local municipal government.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was entered

into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

There were no competing business of which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or in-directly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 3| December 2019 which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent non-executive

Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee™) on

the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company's operating results, individual
performance, time, commitment, duties and responsibilities, contribution to the

Group, comparable market statistics and prevailing marketing practice and trends.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
During the Year, the largest supplier of the Group by itself and together with the
next four suppliers accounted for about 79.1% and 14.4%, respectively, of the

Group's purchases.

During the Year, the largest customer of the Group by itself and together with
the next four customers accounted for about 77.3% and 10.4% of the Group's

turnover from provision of asset management services and sales of good.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company's share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's five largest

suppliers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The related party transactions which amount to HK$2.90 million (2018: HK$1.50
million) as set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements fall within
the definition of connected transaction or continuing connected transaction

under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year and years
ended 3| December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were audited by Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
OCI International Holdings Limited

Chen Bo

Executive Director (Chairman)

20 March 2020
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Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of OCI International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 227, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
&8 IRIE TEIET7IR B0
9/F Leighton Centre,
77 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Allowance for expected credit loss of debt investments at amortised cost

Refer to Notes 3(a), |13 and 25(b) to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on pages 92 to 146.

The Key Audit Matter

HRELEE

As at 31 December 2019, gross debt investments at amortised
cost and its related loss allowance amounted to HK$385,708,000
and HK$ 167,014,000 respectively.

Impairment of debt investments at amortised cost is a subjective
area due to the level of judgement applied by management in

determining loss allowance.

The determination of loss allowance using the expected
credit loss (“ECL") model is subject to a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the identification of loss
stages, estimates of probability of default (“PD"), loss given
default ("LGD"), exposures at default (“EAD") and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and other
adjustment factors. Management judgement is involved in
the selection of those parameters and the application of the

assumptions.

In particular, the determination of the loss allowance is heavily
dependent on the external macro environment and the Group's
internal credit risk management strategy. The expected credit
losses are derived from estimates including the Group's historical
losses, internal and external credit grading and other adjustment

factors.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRRERTREEHRSEN T E
Our audit procedures to address the impairment assessment of

debt investments included the following:

. understanding and assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls over the
approval, recording and monitoring debt investments at

amortised cost and the measurement of loss allowance;

. assessing the reliability of the ECL model used by
management in determining loss allowance, including
assessing the appropriateness of the key parameters and
assumptions in the expected credit loss model, including
the identification of loss stages, PD, LGD, EAD, discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and

other management adjustments;

. assessing the completeness and accuracy of data used for
the key parameters in the ECL model. For key parameters
derived from external data, we selected samples to
inspect the accuracy of such data by comparing them with

public resources;
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The Key Audit Matter

BRELER

Management also exercises judgement in determining the
quantum of LGD based on a range of factors. These include
available remedies for recovery, the financial situation of the
borrower, the recoverable amount of collateral, the seniority
of the claim and the existence and cooperativeness of other
creditors. The enforceability, timing and means of realisation of
collateral can also have an impact on the recoverable amount of
collateral and, therefore, the amount of impairment losses as at

the end of the reporting period.

We identified the allowance for ECL of debt investments
measured at amortised cost as a key audit matter because of
the inherent uncertainty and management judgement involved
and because of their significance to the financial results of the

Group.

B M % BLA R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EARERTRERESENAE

for key parameters involving judgement, critically assessing
input parameters by seeking evidence from external
sources and comparing to the Group's internal records
including historical loss experience and type of collateral.
As part of these procedures, we challenged management’s
revisions to estimates and input parameters compared
with prior period and considered the consistency
of judgement. We compared the economic factors
used in the models with market information to assess
whether they were aligned with market and economic

development;

evaluating the validity of management's assessment on
whether the credit risk of debt investments at amortised
cost has, or has not, increased significantly since initial
recognition and whether debt investments at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. We checked the overdue
information, making enquiries of the key management
about the borrowers’ business operations, checking
borrowers' financial information and researching market

information about borrowers’ businesses;

for debt investments at amortised cost that are credit-
impaired, evaluating management's assessment of the
value of any asset collateral held by comparison with
market prices. We also evaluated the timing and means of
realisation of collateral, evaluated the forecast cash flows,
challenged the viability of the Group's recovery plans and
evaluated other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contract terms;

recalculating the amount of credit loss allowance for 12
month and lifetime credit losses using the ECL model based
on the above parameters and assumptions for a sample of
debt investments at amortised cost where the credit risk of

the debt investment has, or has not, increased significantly

since initial recognition, respectively; and

evaluating whether the disclosures on provision of
ECL meet the disclosure requirements in the prevailing

accounting standards.



OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2019 Annual Report

B % %l Eﬂi HE
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRENEE ERRERTRERESENTE

RIZ-AF+T-A=1—R  BREBKAHEZBERREARE RARNREEBREGENERZEFERATER

HIBEEBEE D B A& 385,708,000 78 7T 12 167,014,000 7T
TRIEHEE SR ERREEKNATEZERRER

ARNEEEEETEBRERAERNABKY - REHKATIR AERMEEERNEIBRAMERNRG  BEREEK

ZEBRENAEBREHEE - 2
FRRHEEEBRLETERREXNETIE2HRBRAR SRR ERRERFANTEREEERER T
Bl BEAREBERE  GEEOBX(TEOX])  BOBE it BENAERCEEEERENTIZE2HREBRERTE
([BHEER] - BHRRTENRR]) RERE HW%%Eﬂ g EREEHERBERE  BOMX  BABE EBHR
AN REMARAR - EBREBL2AREREBRIIRE B BEEE - HATEMERMABRUREMEEERE

E /) F1 -

- AMEEHEEERBRELNTIESHMAEEN TR IEMER
ARME  BETEREBRARE LRANMIEBRENR & e RRBIBHBENTIEL2EME - AMEBEEAUASE
SENABEERRERRE BHEEFRNRABE H&HE BEEER S ARRRNERETLR  EhikaEREE
HBEEE  AFKIMNMEEFRARECABRRENGEE - MR |



2019 4 %R REEBREZERERA A

Elﬁ%%ﬁi
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRENEE ERRERTRERESENTE
EEENEAEETENBRSERTEAN - EPERKEFERN «  HIRAMNTIZEZ28ME  ERARISENTRSKE
A RARIA - ERANSEIRL - ERROTRESE - BRE BYR BRENARIEH(EREBABRCEREARE
BRERFARRELFEEMERARKSEEAF - EREARZ B)ETHE Mt FEEALE - FRZFREFH
TT%%%H HEERESANAEEERRN A RESBELY —#n - BMER - EEHAL - EEECETATREBA
AR TEHRERRNBEERERELRE - 28 YEBHAHRE W - ZMBELFEROLERE
EMSERETHER  NFHERETSREERRRT —

FPFARAERAHE B REBREEBRRRABRER

2R REARESRAETREUREREAE - WREYE &%

B BRENBENL - « MEEEERREERAIIGRCEHERENEERRETE
MiaHERRBERN - WRGIZBHERIIR 2 EBRER
DEEREMEFHEREER - RATREEREBRERA
BR O BERAXRBELBENARBREEARELEN B
EREFANFHEER  URPRERAEBNTISER

By

BEERENREBEKAIIR EHRENS  BREME
EHLE - FHEEEUMFENENEELRREENT
fh o BMAMEFEERRNERBE LA  HERIRE
mE B BRENEFEREMATE  LAEAOK
AR SR E A E B R (16 -

MEHRENEERR B NARERED PILRKD LREE
e ERERLA2BEBROBHEEHRES - K7
REHKAIIRNEHRESFAENGE REANEERR
RESBRFRANEERR R

HEEREEERRERERT AR TEM ERMEER
o



OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ndependent Auditor’s Repor

18 M % ZLET 3R

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to

bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 20 March 2020

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number P0491 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

@ K

NOTE 2019 2018
P &E —E-0F “EN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR
Revenue Yem 5
Sales of goods HEEm 6,870 27,145
Revenue from investment and financial REERE R BHEAREZ
advisory services Yo zs 312 —
Revenue from asset management REEEEBREBZHA 35,195 51,907
Income from securities trading and investments REEEERSREKE 2 e 59,144 45,562
101,521 124,614
Cost of sales HEKA (9,430) (38,791)
92,091 85,823
Other income HgA 6 1,078 697
Selling and distribution costs HE RS HE A (112) (144)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITH X (37,263) (69,770)
Impairment losses on financial assets EREERNERE (116,931) (54,282)
Loss from operations REEBER (61,137) (37,676)
Finance costs MBER 7(a) (31,127) (22,579)
Share of loss of joint venture [ElEEEARIER (760) (158)
Loss before taxation BAER 7 (93,024) (60,413)
Income tax expenses PG 8 (4,404) (419)
Loss for the year rEEFE (97,428) (60,832)
Attributable to: MTALRER:
Equity shareholders of the Company ANEERRR (96,897) (60,792)
Non-controlling interests IR (531) (40)
Loss for the year rEEFE (97,428) (60,832)
Loss per share SRER I
— Basic and diluted —ERREE HK(9.14) cents HK(5.74) cents

(9.14) 38l

(5.74) %L
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

NOTE 2019 2018
P &E —2-hEF “E-)0\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T TR
Loss for the year rEEBE (97,428) (60,832)
Other comprehensive (expenses) income Hitr2E () A
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently HigngesnsE
to profit or loss: ZEHZER
Exchange differences arising on translation MENRRBESE
of foreign operations ZERZER (280) 5
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FEEREX AR (97,708) (60,827)
Attributable to: BUF AL R
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAERERR (97,177) (60,787)
Non-controlling interests FERER (531) (40)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year rEEREXLAR (97,708) (60,827)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at | January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 92 to 227 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 2019 2018
i —2-hE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TEX
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HEREE 12 17,738 1,848
Debt investments at amortised cost REHM A BBIRE 13 140,226 103,015
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EAFEFTABRZEBHEE 18 — 40,228
Interest in joint venture REBRAMER 14 — [415
Rental deposits MERS |7 2,116 1,968
160,080 148,474
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 15 12,324 17,273
Trade receivables FEWE FERTE 16 2,788 1,635
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Re  BRRER
HbEWERIR |7 17,293 19,398
Debt investments at amortised cost REEK A E BBERE 13 78,468 259,655
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EAFETABZZEMEE 18 550,332 173919
Deposits with banks with original maturity date ~ RE|EHABB=EAZ
over three months RITER 19 21,360 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRE&FEER 19 80,767 185,058
763,332 656,938
Current liabilities RBAE
Contract liabilities ROV 5(b) 15,700 15,671
Accruals and other payables JERTRIE % EL At R 1 BR IR 20 8,610 30,747
Obligations under repurchase agreements BO®E TORE 21 105,170 78918
Borrowings EE 22 542,775 352,657
Lease liabilities HERE 23 5,531 —
Current taxation ENERTRIE 4,946 558
682,732 478,551
Net current assets RBEERE 80,600 178,387
Total assets less current liabilities EERBERRBAE 240,680 326,861
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 23 11,527 —
NET ASSETS BERE 229,153 326,86
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REBEBEZERARAA

0 O O
Ra B AROR &
As at 31 December 2019
RZE-NF+=A=+—H

NOTE 2019 2018
Pt 3T —B-NE —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#T TR
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#E
Share capital [N 24 10,598 10,598
Reserves i 219,265 316,442
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders ZNA BRI RELAER
of the Company 229,863 327,040
Non-controlling interests FERER (710) (179)
TOTAL EQUITY R 229,153 326,861

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 227 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 March 2020, and are signed
on its behalf by:

Chen Bo
BRK
Director

EZ

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at | January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 92 to 227 form part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=t-BLFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ROREERRER
Non-
Share Share  Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve earnings Total interests equity

Bx  BfRE EXfk REEN a5 FERER £y b
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

Balance at | January 2018 —2-\f-R-BE&# 10,598 217,190 242 159,797 387,827 (139) 387,688
Changes in equity for 2018: “E\FERED:
Loss for the year TEEER - - - (60792)  (60792) (40)  (60832)
Other comprehensive income for the year  AFEHMZEMA - - 5 - 5 - 5
Total comprehensive (expenses) income 2 (X H ) MALE - - 5 (60792)  (60787) (40)  (60827)
Balance at 31 December 2018 —E-\EtzA=1-B&H 10,598 217,190 247 99,005 327,040 (179) 326,861
Balance at 3| December 2018 “E-\ETZA=T-RR

and | January 2019 Z-nE-R-REH 10,598 217,190 247 99,005 327,040 (179) 326,861
Changes in equity for 2019; “E-NEREREY:
Loss for the year KRR - - —(96897) (96897 (531)  (97428)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year RAFEHM2 AT H - — (280) — (280) — (280)
Total comprehensive expenses PR RAZE — — (280) (96,897) (97,177) (531) (97,708)
Balance at 3| December 2019 “T-NFTZAZT-REH 10,598 217,190 (33) 2,108 229,863 (7100 229,153

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at | January 2019 using the modified Wizt - AEEER-_T-NF—-A-BEREE

retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not EWENSEREEVBREERE 165 -

restated. See Note 2(c). BEZHE  LREBTETUES - F2
BIMIEE2(c) °

The notes on pages 92 to 227 form part of these financial statements. BRENZ2ENMTRESHBREN—
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

NOTE 2019 2018
P % —E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Operating activities RETED
Cash used in operations REESHMARSE 19(b) (237,997) (166,166)
Bank interest received BRIRITHIE 588 666
Income tax paid EHMEH (17) (293)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHFAARSTEE (237,426) (165,793)
Investing activities REEH
Payments for purchase of property, BADE BEX
plant and equipment X2 FE (414) (451)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WiE—FE3EERME AR
an inactive subsidiary HREMILFE (571) —
Increase in deposits with banks with REHRERBE=EAZ
original maturity date over three months |ATEFIL M (21,360) -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTAREFE (22,345) (451)
Financing activities MEEH
New borrowings raised EEEMER 19(c) 378,300 470,100
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRERITIER 19(c) (186,219) (352,536)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEEREMNELTL D 19(c) (5,124) -
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERSHONSHS 19(c) (855) —
Interest paid on bank and other borrowings RITREMERE TS 19(c) (30,622) (20,756)
Net cash generated from financing activities METHAERETFE 155,480 96,808
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRFLEEBERDFE (104,291) (69,436)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FHZHERREEEER 19(a) 185,058 254,497
Effect of changes in exchange rate Exgnoo8 — (3)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FRB SRS EEER
represented by bank balances and cash BRTERRRE 19(a) 80,767 185,058
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at | January 2019 using the modified #i# : AEBER T —NF— A —BEREER]

retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 92 to 227 form part of these financial statements.
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HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

GENERAL

OCI International Holdings Limited (the “Company") was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the

annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in securities trading and investments, asset management,

provision of investment and financial advisory services and trading of wines.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is the Company's functional and the Group's presentation

currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from the initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3|
December 2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's interest in a joint

venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the financial assets
at fair value through profit of loss (“FVTPL") are stated at their fair

value as explained in the accounting policy set out in Note 2(f).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and major

sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

©

Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases, and a
number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the

current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments have had a
material effect on how the Group's results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not

yet effective for the current accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related interpretations,
HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an arrangement contains a
lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases — incentives, and HK(SIC) 27,
Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of
a lease. It introduces a single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
for all leases, except for leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less (“short-term leases”) and leases of low value assets. The
lessor accounting requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17

substantially unchanged.

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users of the financial statements
to assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial

performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from | January 2019. The
Group has elected to use the modified retrospective approach and
has therefore recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at | January 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated and continues to be

reported under HKAS 7.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous

accounting policies and the transition options applied are set out below:

a. New definition of a lease
The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept
of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis of whether a
customer controls the use of an identified asset for a period of time,
which may be determined by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic

benefits from that use.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

a.

New definition of a lease (Continued)

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only
to contracts that were entered into or changed on or after | January
2019. For contracts entered into before | January 2019, the Group
has used the transitional practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are or contain
leases. Accordingly, contracts that were previously assessed as
leases under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for as leases under
HKFRS 16 and contracts previously assessed as non-lease service

arrangements continue to be accounted for as executory contracts.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to classify leases
as either operating leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by HKAS [7. Instead, the Group is required to capitalise
all leases when it is the lessee, including leases previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS |7, other than those short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets which are exempt. As far as
the Group is concerned, these newly capitalised leases are primarily
in relation to property, plant and equipment. For an explanation of

how the Group applies lessee accounting, see Note 2(h).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. | January 2019), the
Group determined the length of the remaining lease terms and
measured the lease liabilities for the leases previously classified
as operating leases at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the relevant incremental borrowing
rates at | January 2019. The weighted average of the incremental
borrowing rates used for determination of the present value of the

remaining lease payments was 4.5%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied the following
recognition exemption and practical expedients at the date of initial
application of HKFRS [é:

(i)  the Group elected not to apply the requirements of HKFRS 16
in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets to leases for which the remaining lease term ends within
|2 months from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e.

where the lease term ends on or before 31 December 2019.

(i) when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar remaining
lease term for a similar class of underlying asset in a similar

economic environment); and
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EREHBE#E)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) ERUBREENE 6 RHAE(E)
b.  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) b EAMEASHEELRBEFEZE
(#&)
(i) when measuring the right-of-use assets at the date of initial (iy RUFEREBHBREL

application of HKFRS 16, the Group relied on the previous AlZ 6Kz BHGTERA
TETEQEH% C AEEFRBEA
T-N\F+ZA=1—
EIZﬁ1EI SRBEEL 25T
it UERCEITRE R AT -

assessment for onerous contract provisions as at 31 December

2018 as an alternative to performing an impairment review.

The following table reconciles the operating lease commitments as

TRILMMMFE2600) FTHE - B

disclosed in Note 26(b) as at 31 December 2018 to the opening —N\F+ZA=1t—"BELH

balance for lease liabilities recognised as at | January 2019: EAEER-Z-NE-A—P#
RNHERERNERELEE
| January 2019
—2-hF
—HA—H
HK$’000
T#T
Operating lease commitments —E-\E+-A=t—H
at 31 December 2018 E@,i% THEAE 5611
Less: commitments relating to B BN ED
leases exempt from capitalisation: MERBAE
— short-term leases and other leases —RBHEEHR _ZT—NF
with remaining lease term ending +ZA=+—HA%ZH
on or before 31 December 2019 TENEHEERAMEE (169)
Add: lease payments for the additional periods m: AEERREEBRTHITRENRRE
where the Group considers it reasonably FEINARHERN K
certain that it will exercise the extension
options 17,350
22,792
Less: total future interest expenses B ARMERZ R (1,900)
Present value of remaining lease payments, discounted ~FIBHEENRZBERR_E—NEF
using the incremental borrowing rate at —A—BZBEEERERR) R
I January 2019 and total lease liabilities recognised RZZE-NF—A—BH#ERN
at | January 2019 HEGBEE 20,892
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEABHBE#E)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) ERUBREENE 6 RHAE(E)
b.  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) b. HAMASHEERBESZE
(#&)

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously classified as BAERDEACEHENTERR
operating leases have been recognised at an amount equal to the BERREEEDRIBENFISES
amount recognised for the remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by BEDHALENSETUARR
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to TRH-E—-N\F+-A=1+—H
that lease recognised in the statement of financial position at 3| MR E MBI EAERNEE
December 2018. AN EMENREAEEN KSR

fEHEHE -
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEABHBE#E)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) ERMBRERAE 6 RHAE(E)
b.  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) b EMASHEERBESTE
(%&)
The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of TRBIARMNE BT REER S
HKFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated statement of financial I6SREAEB 2 RAMBRNE
position: Hy s 2
Carrying Carrying
amount at  Capitalisation of amount at
31 December operating | January
2018  lease contracts 2019
R_T—-N\F RZZE-N%F
+ZA=+—H REHE —A—A
HRREE BHERL HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TAET
Line items in the consolidated ZHRMEBIEHEER
statement of financial FIRTENTERE
position impacted by MRRFER :
the adoption of HKFRS 16:
Property, plant and equipment  #1% * BB K& |,848 20,892 22,740
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 148,474 20,892 169,366
Lease liabilities (current) MEAE(RE) - 4,632 4,632
Current liabilities RBEE 478,551 4,632 483,183
Net current assets RBEEFE 178,387 (4,632) 173,755
Total assets less EERERRBEE
current liabilities 326,861 16,260 343,121
Lease liabilities (non-current) ~ HEBE(FERE) - 16,260 16,260
Total non-current liabilities knBEBELEHE — 16,260 16,260
Net assets BERE 326,861 — 326,861
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
HKEFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

C

Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash flows of the
Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
as at | January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of
the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. This
results in a decrease in the reported loss from operations in
the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, as compared to the results if HKAS |7 had

been applied during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee is required to split
rentals paid under capitalised leases into their capital element and
interest element (see Note 19(c)). These elements are classified as
financing cash outflows, similar to how leases previously classified as
finance leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than as operating
cash outflows, as was the case for operating leases under HKAS 17.
Although total cash flows are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16
therefore results in a significant change in presentation of cash flows

within the cash flow statement (see Note 19(d)).

REBEBEZERARAA

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

2. EXRSHEE#E)
BRMBBREERSE 6 RHEE(E)

C.

HASBEMBEE  DHERE
EHRERENTE

NZZ-NF-A—-BOSERE
FRREENEEARGBKR ~A%KE
(ERARA)ERRBEAER
{BRBHRER T BRI LER
BEENNE - MIFMEABRE
ERAERAREHNELHER
TEANEEHAX - BiHNFRE
REBEFENE I7TROEEM
o e AEEEARE MR
HRERAZHRNKE EBERR

Do

REERERAN  AEB(ERE
BA)EBERCEEBRTHER
HePREAHHRFNEDBH (R
P 19(c) - ZEHBHEHERR
BReME  BULARESES
AEAEITROERRAEREN
MEREAR  MESBREER
SRMEYEURBEE G ER
FITHRDBERBEHECRER
X BERSRELERIYE
HERARNEBMBEREEE 16
RMENAERERANEETE
2HHREREE(RMT 19(d)) °




OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2019 Annual Report

ma ﬁﬁﬁ%%?

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HECT-NET-A=T-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEAEHBER#E)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) ERNBBREENE 6 FHE(E)
c. Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash flows of the « HEAEEUNBESE HHEE
Group (Continued) RRERENTE(E)
The following tables give an indication of the estimated impact TRETEMBAUBRE LA
of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group's financial result, FIFHAEEHE_T-NF
segment results and cash flows for the year ended 31 December TZA=+T-HLEFEEZHBE
2019, by adjusting the amounts reported under HKFRS 16 in these B DEEERREREB 2T
consolidated financial statements to compute estimates of the g NERABRZEFEAUBERR
hypothetical amounts that would have been recognised under HKAS FREEEHBRELERE 165
|7 if this superseded standard had continued to apply in 2019 2R UAEREEAS
instead of HKFRS 16, and by comparing these hypothetical amounts u+—EH'J§!% |7 5% FE # R 2 fh 5T Rk
for 2019 with the actual 2018 corresponding amounts which were B(HZ A LR MRS
prepared under HKAS 7. ﬂ‘% WMELEUNEI6RR_T—NEF
BEER) URBE-T-hF2
ZERREBE-T—\FRER

BRHENE ITREL Y BB
BEBETILE o
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) EEMBRELEANFE 6 BHE(E)
Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash flows of the c WAREBBESE HIPEE
Group (Continued) ERSRENYE(H)

2019 2018
—B-hE —-)\&
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts related
Add back:  to operating  Hypothetical Compared
Amounts HKFRS 16 leases as if ~ amounts for to amounts
reported  depreciation under 2019 asif  reported for
under  and interest HKAS 17 under 2018 under
HKFRS 16 expense (note 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
A RRE
gHE2ft  —T-hF
FEEGE  ZBREW  AREBEE
REBEME W BBY OREEE (BoRE  g:hEAE
REEA  BEEEY  SHENE  FEEHE  7HEHZ
FleHR2H/ez FIHKFE 7HRHAEH) AR UIREF  —TN\HE
&8 RABREX (BHaE 1) E8) oBEIUR
(A) ®) (©  (D=A+B-C)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fit Fiti Fibi it it
Financial result for SZRAES
year ended BB R E R
31 December 2019 FleHTEr
impacted by the BE-Z-NF
adoption of +ZA=+-HL
HKFRS 16: FEIMBERE
Loss from operations REEBZEE (61,137 5,567 (5,773) (61,343) (37,676)
Finance costs HHER 31,127) 855 — (30,272) (22,579)
Loss before taxation  BRB{ATE (93,024) 6,422 (5,773) (92,375) (60,413)
Loss for the year FEFB (97,428) 6,422 (5,773) (96,779) (60,832)
Reportable segment ~ ZHAFEBMBHRE
loss for year ended ~ ERIE 6 FHEZ
31 December 2019 BEZ-E-h%&
(Note 5(c)) impacted TZA=+—HIE
by the adoption of FEZUEZHDH
HKFRS 16: BB (M 5()
— Securities trading -BEEEERE
and investments (69,730) 298 (316) (69,748) (27,275)
- Total — 45t (45,283) 6,422 (5,773) (44,634) (19,688)

II‘Ii\

B R M RE

For the year ended 3| December 2019

“FNETZA=T-BLFE

2. EXRSHEE#E)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

HKEFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

2. EXRSHEE#E)
BRMBBREERSE 6 RHEE(E)

c. Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash flows of the C.

Group (Continued)

HARBERBHEE

2019 Annual Report

GRIES

ERReMENTE(E)
2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
Estimated
amounts related
to operating Hypothetical Compared
Amounts leases as if under amounts for to amounts

reported under HKAS 17 2019 asif  reported under
HKFRS 16 (notes | & 2) under HKAS 17 HKAS 17
ARRER
| PALHEA “E-NEF
#OBR ZBERE
BREE#H BEAST BOENRE HIREEE
BREER BRI 755 BREHE Rl
EI6HKER ) RAEITHE  FITRERL
ok % (FE | R 2) 2H) SELR
(A) (B) (C=A+B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER THL
Line items in the SRMBERMBRE
consolidated cash flow EUZRI6eFHEL
statement for the BE-Z2-1%
year ended 3| December ~+ZA=t+—HL
2019 impacted by the FEGEBRERE
adoption of HKFRS 16: RIER
Cash used in operations ReEBMARe (237,997) (5979) (243,976) (166,166)
Net cash used in KeEDMA
operating activities ReRE (237,426) (5,979) (243,405) (165,793)
Capital element of lease ENEERSH
rentals paid BAHD (5,124) 5,124 — —
Interest element of ERHEEHESE
lease rentals paid MEHD (855) 855 = —
Net cash generated METEAE
from financing activities BeBE 155,480 5,979 161,459 96,808
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEAEHBER#E)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) ERNBBREENE 6 FHE(E)
¢ Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash flows of the ¢ HEREENKERE HBEE
Group (Continued) RRERENTE(E)
note |I: The “estimated amounts related to operating leases” is an estimate et [FEALEHEE 2 st o]
of the amounts of the cash flows in 2019 that relate to leases RERESEREEHEZME
which would have been classified as operating leases, if HKAS 17 E(HABGHENE 175
had still applied in 2019. This estimate assumes that there were no —E-NENAER)EE
differences between rentals and cash flows and that all of the new —T-NEReREMIE
leases entered into in 2019 would have been classified as operating o ZiAFREESERESR
leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still applied in 2019. Any BIWESH - MRZFE-NF
potential net tax effect is ignored. I FTERTHA EREE R

SHENE ITRESERE
EHE(WBEB G ERE 7
TR ZE-NENRER) -
BERBEYEIEDREE -

note 20 In this impact table these cash outflows are reclassified from Pisr2 : ERFRERAN - ux%fﬁﬁﬁu”j
financing to operating in order to compute hypothetical amounts of EHBESNHIFRLE -
net cash used in operating activities and net cash generated from ufﬁ?&%?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ&
financing activities as if HKAS 17 still applied. REEFHMEREFELR

RER  HEMBBETREAE
\7SEABARER

(d)  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests d) HEARRFERER
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls MBRRRAREZHNER - &
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from AEEEHREARELELER
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those HR # R R SRR - kAR
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether NERERZERNENTELE
the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group &% AREEEZERA LS
and other parties) are considered. oA EBRTERNE - &

AR (REEREMALAEARN)
BEEEA -
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2.

NETZA=+—BLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the vyear between non-controlling
interests and equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position depending on the nature

of the liability.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no

gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of a joint venture (see
Note 2(e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(i)
(i1)), unless the investments are classified as held for sale (or included

in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Joint ventures
A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of the

arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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NETZA=+—BLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's share of
the investee's net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see Note 2(i)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of

the Group's net investment in the joint venture.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which

case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity

method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a

financial asset (see Note 2()).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(i)(ii)),
unless classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that

is classified as held for sale).

Financial instruments

(i) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially
recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(®

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Recognition and initial measurement (Continued)

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price and
is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before

payment of that consideration is due.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured
at: amortised cost; fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI") — debt investment; FVTOCI — equity
investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting

period following the change in the business model.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i1

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both

of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to

hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and

selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). This election is made on an

investment-by-investment basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(®

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i1

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that

would otherwise arise.

Financial assets — Business model assessment:

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the
business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to management. The

information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and
the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management's strategy focuses on earning
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through

the sale of the assets;
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i1

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets — Business model assessment: (Continued)

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and

reported to the Group's management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business
model (and the financial assets held within that business

model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g.
whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected;

and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial
assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and

expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions
that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group's continuing

recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and
whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-Z-NFT-A=+—-RHL%E
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEABHBE#E)
() Financial instruments (Continued) (H SBMIAE)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued) (i) PEREETEE)
Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows SREE-FHENBRER
are solely payments of principal and interest: ERBEAXNEERTF
8
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the AN EAME  [A2 ]
fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ NEETEMEERNIARE

is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as

well as a profit margin.
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In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely EHEANBESTRERTE

payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the AYNRERFSK K&

contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing Bzl ANANKT &

whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that BRETLEHEERESRE

could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows AREME S NN RENE
s A

such that it would not meet this condition. In making this

assessment, the Group considers:
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REBEBEZERARAA

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i1

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows

are solely payments of principal and interest: (Continued)

- terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from

specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments
of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may
include reasonable compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at
a discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a
feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual par amount
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may
also include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the
fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial

recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.
()  Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued) ()

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at ERFEFTA ZEFEEREUATET

FVTPL fair value. Net gains and losses, including any #B&HM&ME £ FE8x  BFEERAF
interest or dividend income, are recognised & BRREWA - HEER
in profit or loss. FER o

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fREHK ARG RFEEREUERFS

amortised cost amortised cost using the effective interest ENSEEE AREHKAE - AE

Debt investments at

method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit

or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured

ERE R R MR -
MEBYA - SMNERB 2R R
ERNERER - AR IR
REOEMBRFIBIRE

[
@R o

%EBEBREATFER

FVTOCI at fair value. Interest income calculated HMZEKZE =2 FREBEMNZEHE
using the effective interest method, foreign HIERKIRE HFIEWA -« B R
exchange gains and losses and impairment ERARBERESE
are recognised in profit or loss. Other net B FEamn H AR
gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On /‘\HQ/\_/\ R0 MR TR
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated - Hpira e h 25t
in OCl are reclassified to profit or loss. Wﬁ&)@ﬁﬁ DNEHNERE

s -

Equity investments These assets are subsequently measured HRATEFA ZEBERERATER

at FVTOCI at fair value. Dividends are recognised as HEM2EKE = - RELBZTHERA
income in profit or loss unless the dividend HJIRIERE WA - BRIERERRERE
clearly represents a recovery of part of the REKAHEH D WK EE
cost of the investment. Other net gains and o Rt ¥ ERRAEE
losses are recognised in OCl and are never Hih 2 EB P HER - I
reclassified to profit or loss. BRRENDEEES -
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i1

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement

and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost
or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in

profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the

financial asset.

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HECT-

NE+TZA=+—BLEFE

2. EREFHBE#E)
H SWMIAE)

(i1

(i)

HEREKTE(E)
THAE-28 H&HE
URBEHERER

SRABHD ERUEHEK
A ERBRAFEFAR
W MREBMA BRI AR
EEERE  TEIARE
MaBRBHIEEAITET
£ AlZemaBRATAE
FAER  BRATEFAR
aMeRBGERIERE
%Eﬁﬂéﬁﬁﬁmﬁéﬁ
RoHeRBERENE
BRM BERB R AGTE
FERZRINERRN B
R o #R LR I 5
FEBMNBRER -

IR
tREE

AEEERBEERIRS
MENBNENERE - &
An-ERBRTREEN
BEMAENEARHO AR
REHERIEERSBE
E o REE L EBE TER
BRENEARNERRE
K VEEREHEREE
HO P 1 -



OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

R EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Derecognition (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised in its statement of financial position, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not

derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms
are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different, in which case a new financial liability

based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between
the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities

assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(®

(®

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)  Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle
them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously.

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold properties
where the Group is not the registered owner of the property
interest (see Note 2(h)) and items of plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses (see Note 2(i)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement

or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using

the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Properties leased for Over the period of the lease term

own use

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the terms of the

lease or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years

equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic

benefits from that use.

As a lessee - Policy applicable from | January 2019

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset,
the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-
lease basis. The lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic

basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement
of the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee - Policy applicable from | January 2019 (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 2(g) and 2(i)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-

use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property, plant
and equipment’ and presents lease liabilities separately in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee - Policy applicable prior to | January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified leases as

finance leases if the leases transferred substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership to the Group. Leases which did not transfer

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group

were classified as operating leases.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases were charged to profit or loss in

equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease

term, except where an alternative basis was more representative of

the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received were recognised in profit or loss as an integral

part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals

were charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

were incurred.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit

losses (“ECLs") on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables

and debt investments at amortised cost); and

- contract assets defined in HKFRS 15 (see Note 2(k)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
investment fund, equity securities measured at FVTPL, debt
securities measured at FVTPL and derivative financial assets,

are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and

the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following

discount rates where the effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective interest rate determined at

initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest

rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed

to credit risk.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about past events,

current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- [2-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from possible default events within the 12 months

after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from all possible default events over the expected

lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are
always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs
on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic conditions

at the reporting date.

2.

EXEHBR )
FEERREEREE)

(i)

(i)

KEZHBTRABELLE
EREEER (&)
FEEHEERER(E)
R ERBMEEEER - &
CERZREBENEBS
KAZB N THAERRNE
BA AR WEREAR

BEEH  RBRARAK
EERREHOER -

RHEEFRRANTEE

AE

NEABHEES
B: EREEEHRENR
BARAREEERE
HEHmERMTE D
BE K

- EEARHHNEHE
EEE: BERBEE
BEEIFERER N
ﬁﬁi%ﬂ%ﬁﬂ%

BOEHMEBINE
HEE -

FBUESERLANEEN
FRERE-ERSANEHE
BERHNEREEERNS
BiE - RNWMERS %F
CREENRBEEBAD
REASENBEEERR
EREMBEREETH
5 REEBANGTHE
RS E R R RE — R ER
EVEHEEITHE -



2019 4 R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to |2-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR")

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held). The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly

since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their

contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if

available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor's ability to meet its

obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument's credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVTOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2(q)(v) is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial

asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial
asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have

occurred.

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HECZ-NFT-A=T—-RLER

2. EXSHEE#E)
() FEBFEREERESR)

(i)

XEE@IAHESNE
ENEERE (&)
EERBAELH(E)
RHEEFENEREAY
ETENFEARRSET
EENPHRANRNEER
228  BREEHRER
MIEAESH IR BEERS
REREHER - AEBEH
AR T ARDRERS
FER - TRAEERER
BRE 2 REEFLARS
B ERATERAR LR
HURERTENBEHESFK
BUEE)RI ZFER
é%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@
WAL R A FEERD
(ﬂ%%%§ﬁ°

SEFIERAMEE
BIEHE 2(q)(v) ERHF B
WAZEREENEERA
HE BREZEREELR
EERE EHERT  H
BYAZ S B & Em# 8K
A(BREEERBBRERE)
HE -

REHRERY AKEFE
CREERTLREENR
B BRE-HAZRHSE
REERHARRASRER
THFENENE  SRE
ELREERE -



OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

e MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the

following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the

debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security

because of financial difficulties of the issuer.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

Wiite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to

repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written
off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss

in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss

previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use

assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures in the

Company's statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i1

Impairment of non-current assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (that

is, a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

2019 Annual Report

EXETBR(E)
EEFEREEREE)
(i)  FEmBEENRE(E)

(i)

AERRE S

BEMNANEEER
HAFER G EKA
EEREECTHE
BEAE - FHEERE
BF G ARAS
mE Ty R AT AR
ERREEBE %
RAXRRREFI TS
HESRREE TG
WREENBAR
o fHEEEA LR
RELBUINEME
ENHEREAR
RINBEABIELR
EREANRNEBE
AR REELE
fi ) EE A B S5

HRRERR

HEEMBNRTE
EENNRAERS
Heme®E A
EERRNBRD AR
R o HREEA (%
AEM)NEENKE
&SRO D ER
ReELEMERN
BEER AMEE
MEEETERDE
B 50 B AR B 2 B
EHERA LGS
Bt 8)HARE
FEE(MERE) -



2019 4 %R REEBREZERERA A

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEXEHBEK#E)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) () FEBBRREEREE)
(i) Impairment of non-current assets (Continued) (i) ERBEEREE)

- Reversals of impairment losses - RBEREEE
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a WAREBETKE S
favourable change in the estimates used to determine BHBEINREMNSE
the recoverable amount. s BHENRE

EEAgRmD -

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's BB BB RR
carrying amount that would have been determined ERAEFEIERER
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. TREEENER
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or TREETHEER
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised. E1E - TR EH R E
BERNERRLFE

ATABRRK -

(if)  Interim financial reporting and impairment (i) PR HIRE R E
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The REEABAETHIMERA
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required RlEEFTRE  KREEA
to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS BATRFEEEANEARE
34 “Interim Financial Reporting” in respect of the first six HAB B ELE34E
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, [FhERBF TS SR & | By b ER B 7%
the Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition, | o PNRHIERR  KEF
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year HRARAGBERE & RERN
(see Notes 2(i)(i) and (ii)). ETHERRENR  #BR

R ER A (R M 230) () ]
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course

of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in

the period in which the reversal occurs.
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REBEBEZERARAA

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see Note 2(q)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(i)(i) and are reclassified
to receivables when the right to the consideration has become

unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see Note 2(q)). A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not

presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective

interest method (see Note 2(q)).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are

assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in (see Note

2()(0).

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The par value of the shares
issued and fully paid is recognised in the share capital account.
Any excess of proceeds from a new issue of shares (net of any
incremental costs directly attributable to the new issue) over the
par value of the shares issued is recognised in the share premium

account.

Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect

of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse

in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is

recognised.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(P)

(9)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the
sale of goods, the provision of services or other sources (including
securities trading and investments) in the ordinary course of the

Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period of financing

is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition

policies are as follows:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q9)  Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i1

(i)

(iv)

v)

Investment and financial advisory services income

Investment and financial advisory services income is recognised
when the services under the underlying agreement has been

provided.

Asset management fees
Asset management fees are recognised on a time-proportion
basis with reference to the net asset value of the managed

account.

Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder's right to receive payment is

established.

- Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying

amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(i)(i)).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vi)  Realised/unrealised gains or losses from financial assets at
FVTPL

Net gains (losses) on financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are
exchanged and unrealised fair value gains (losses) on financial
assets at FVTPL are recognised in the period in which they

arise.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting

period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

dates the fair value was measured.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the translation

reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing

costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEABHBE#E)
(t)  Related parties vy EEA
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related (a) HEBUTAL FAIZALH
to the Group if that person: HZATHFEE K ER
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() has control or joint control over the Group; () R EREHAE
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(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HEAEEBEEAFE
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(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (il ArEERLEET
Group or the Group's parent. NRIMEEERAL ©
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REBEBEZERARAA

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t)  Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management

has used its judgements and made assumptions of the effects of uncertain

future events on the financial statements. The most significant use of

judgements and key assumptions concerning the future and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period are

described below.

@)

Loss allowances on financial assets at amortised cost

In determining expected credit loss for financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the most significant judgements relate to defining
what is considered to be a significant increase in credit risk and
in making assumptions and estimates to incorporate relevant
information about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of economic conditions. A high degree of uncertainty is involved
in making estimations using assumptions that are highly subjective
and very sensitive to the risk factors. Management reviews the loss
allowance on a regular basis. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the assessment and it
may be necessary to make additional impairment charge to profit or

loss.

Fair value of financial instruments

There are no quoted prices from an active market for a number of
financial instruments. The fair values for these financial instruments
are established by using valuation techniques. These techniques used
to value these financial instruments included value as reported by
the fund administrators or other techniques, such as using recent
arm's length market transactions by referring to the current fair value
of similar instruments and discounted cash flow analysis. Valuation
models established by the Group make maximum use of market input
and rely as little as possible on the Group's specific data. However,
it should be noted that some input, such as credit and counterparty
risk, and risks correlations require management's estimates. The
Group reviews the above estimations and assumptions periodically

and makes adjustment if necessary.
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3.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

©

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions and significant estimation are
required in determining the provision for income tax. Management
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax credits can be utilised, management's judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. The Group has not
recognised deferred income tax assets in respect of estimated tax
losses carried forward disclosed in Note 8 as there is no evidence

that future taxable profits will be available.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the

Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to

provide returns for equity shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders,

by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk and

by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to maintain

a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be possible

with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded

by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure

in light of changes in economic conditions.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing ratio and
cash flow requirements, taking into account its future financial obligations
and commitments. For this purpose, the Group defines gearing ratio as
total borrowings over equity attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group's gearing ratio was 289% (2018: 132%).

There were no changes in the management's approach to capital
management of the Group during the year. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or sell assets to

reduce debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

@

Revenue

5.

The principal activities of the Group are securities trading and

investments, provision of investment and financial advisory services,

asset management and trading of wines.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major

6y i

(2)

st

2019 Annual Report

AREXIEXBRAEFEERR
B RERERMBHARE &
EERNAEHEEE -

BEIRERIRBRED ZEFE

products or service lines is as follows: KT
2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Revenue from contracts with customers ERMBHREEUE 155
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BEANEEFNAHRA
Disaggregated by major products or RIZEmIBRBERED
service lines
— Trading of wines -EBEEER 6,870 27,145
— Investment and financial advisory services —RE RN GEEARS 312 —
— Asset management —-BEER 35,195 51,907
42,377 79,052
Revenue from other sources H A 135 FOR
Income from debt investments REGEBREZWA 41,444 47,709
Change in fair value of financial assets at URFEFARSEZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEATEED 10,795 7,021
Dividend income BB 397 1,485
Gain on disposal of debt investments at HERE AR HE 2 B
amortised cost REZ W 2,552 13
Gain (loss) on disposal of financial assets HERATEGABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TRIEE WE(BR) 3,956 (10,766)
59,144 45,562
Total a5t 101,521 124,614
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

@)

(b)
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5. BREBRABHESE)

Revenue (Continued) @@ WHE)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by the R R AR B R KR T 5 85
timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets is disclosed ZEPAELM R BERMIEES(C) °
in Note 5(c).
The Group has applied practical expedient in paragraph 121 of ARAEEAERERSEERX
HKFRS 15 to exempt the disclosure of revenue expected to be BERERIBEARGEREEEE
recognised in the future arising from contracts with customers in WA MEEFEBEEREREE
existence at the reporting date to its income from investment and S RIEMRFBHE  SREE
financial advisory services and asset management as the Group EEAEEHBRELERE 5%
recognises revenue at the amount to which it has a right to invoice, FNIBRNEREE G #BER
which corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the BRRERRERHELARERFPE
Group's performance completed to date. K2 Wz
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 ARENEERRE —F AR
of HKFRS 15 to exempt the disclosure of revenue expected to be REHFEDHENN -5 BAK
recognised in the future arising from contracts with customers in SECERTENBRSERNSE
existence at the reporting date to its revenue from sales of wines as ISSRE 121 RABREE 25 - #
the performance obligation is part of a contract that has an original SRERMNREOHELEES
expected duration of one year or less. BBz W e
The Group will recognise the expected revenue in the future when ?é?én\ HNIETRRNENEBEIE
the remaining performance obligations under the contracts are T - AEBBEARREDESRY
satisfied (see Note 2(q)). (%ﬁ&ﬁﬁZ(q)) °
Liabilities related to contract with customers b) EBEEFAANEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Contract liabilities akaRE
~ Billings in advance of performance in respect of —&EEBREERRH
asset management activity e 15,700 15,671
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5.

(b) Liabilities related to contract with customers (Continued)

2019 Annual Report

Wi kD M| E (&)
b) FERREFSANEEE)

Movements in contract liabilities RAIBEZEE)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Balance at | January R—R—RBz &k 15,671 —
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AFNERENETA
recognising revenue during the year that was BREENKARK
included in the contract liabilities BHEERD
at the beginning of the year (15,671) —
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of AEEERZYNERZIER
billings in advance of asset management activity & )8 &1 15,700 15,671
Balance at 31 December RN+ZA=t—Rz&% 15,700 15,671

When the Group receives fee income before asset management
activity commences this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of the contracts, until the revenue recognised on the project

exceeds the amount of fee income received.

EAEBEEEREEELY
B 46 AT B R AR
ERERNRERELS
NAE EEMBERNE
B a5 4858 P E O B A
L ONE
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

©

Segment reporting

The Group's executive directors are the chief operation decision

makers ("CODM") as they collectively make strategic decisions

towards the Group's operations based on nature of business.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported

internally to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment, the Group has presented the following

reportable segments:

(@)

securities trading and investments
trading of wines
investment and financial advisory services*

asset management

The directors of the Company rename the reportable segment
“financial advisory services” in 2018 as “investment and financial
advisory services” in 2019 to provide better description on the

underlying business of the relevant business segment.
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5. WERDHEmEE)

©

7 R
ARARERTEFHARERS
HEEHAEESEFHRMAE -
ARERTBRERRE(TEL
EREE])

AEBRRARERD IR FEF
fEREEEERRERTREH
ER-BM AERERR - AR
BE2FIATAZ2HRAE

@ BHREBEREE
b) HEEBEEE
() RERMBHRRE*

d) BEEE

* ARAIEEN_Z-/\FE2
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment revenue and results
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by the timing
of revenue recognition, as well as information regarding the Group's
reportable segments as provided to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 3| December 2019 and 2018 is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

5. W&ERDH®mE &)

AR ERKE

REEP A K H0 Y 28 12 B 38 Uk 2 B 0 A9
8y ERAKER-_T-NFR-F
“NEFZA=ZT-HLFENERD
ERDBEARFEMALIRELEREE
REAEASET 2R BOEHHT
W e

BE-F-NFTZA=1-HALFE

Investment
Securities trading and financial Asset

and investments  Trading of wines  advisory services management Total

E5RERRE BEERE RERMBEARE BEen 3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T Tén Tin Tin Tin

Revenue from contracts with customers: REEFAANNE

- Ata point n time -RE-BEE - 6,870 - - 6870
- Over time -8 GHA - - 312 3,195 3,507
- 6,870 N 35,195 4311

Revenue from other sources REAMRRNYE 59,14 = = = 59,144
Reportable segment revenue BEE Gl 59,144 6,870 312 35,195 101,521
Segment (loss) profit AP (BE) (69,730) (2,589) - 27,036 (45283)
Other income EfMA 586
Unallocated corporate and other expenses FARABRAMT (18,%0)
Share of loss of oint venture AN (760)
Finance costs HEEE (28,607)
Loss before taxation GG (33,04)
Income tax expenses i (4404
Loss for the year FEEE (97428)
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. WaRoHEEE)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PBUERES(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_FE—)\FE+-HA=+—HIEEF
Investment
Securities trading and financial Asset
and investments — Trading of wines ~ advisory services management Total
EHRERRA PHEER RERMHBHARG HEER ot
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TR TRL ThL TET TEL
Revenue from contracts with customers; REEFAANNE
- Ata point in time -RE-EfEE - 27,145 - 35,000 62145
- Over time 8- AEA - - - 16907 16907
- 27,145 - 51,907 79052
Revenue from other sources REEMRRNYE 4551 - - - 4556
Reportable segment revenue PEE LR 45562 27,145 - 51907 124614
Segment (oss) profit A (B8) (7.75) (490) (693) 8710 (19,688)
Other income EflA 693
Unallocated corporate and other expenses FARABRAMT (20539)
Share of loss of oint venture ElbaERaER (158)
Finance costs HEEE (20720)
Loss before taxation GG (60:413)
Income tax expenses HERR L (419)

Loss for the year FEEE (6083)
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. WERABE®E#E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PBREREEE)
Revenue is allocated to the reportable segments with reference to revenue WEHE2ESBREERERKAR
and income generated by those segments. PEEFZHRNIE -
Segment (loss) profit represents the loss from or profit earned by each AE(ER)ENEEIBEEZEBRR
segment without allocation of certain other income, certain finance B R B ABTEMEA - ETF
costs, share of loss of joint venture and unallocated corporate and other MHER HEEERRNERRRD
expenses. This is the information reported to the CODM for the purposes AR KREMSE - Sk imEFELER
of resource allocation and performance assessment. REZWMER  UEHEBRKTHE
R o
Segment assets and liabilities PWEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by NWTAREZBRAREENEAEEEE
reportable and operating segments: REBEZAM -
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-NF+ZA=+—-H
[nvestment
Securities trading Trading and financial Asset
and investments of wines  advisory services management Total
#HRERRE BEERE RERMBBARY BEER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PHEE 780,462 13,850 - 3712 798,024
Unallocated items: APRER
Property, plant and equipment UER B 16,142
Deposits, prepayments and &% - BIFER
other receivables HttENEE 7119
Deposits with banks with RIBBREE=[EA
original maturity date RORR
over three months 21,360
Bank balances and cash RiTkakRE 80,767
Total assets BELE 923412
LIABILITIES 8f
Segment liabiites AHRE 107,962 13 23 20,59 128,599
Unallocated items: AHRER
Other payables HfhERFE 6,625
Borrowings &3 540,775
Lease Lizbiites HEAR 16,260

Total liabilties Lt 694,259
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. WaRoHESE)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHWEEREE(E)

As at 3| December 2018

R-E-)E+ZF=+—H

Investment
Securities trading Trading and financial Asset
and investments of wines  advisory services management Total
EFRERRE BEEEE RARMKHEARG AEER a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAL TAL TEL
ASSETS KE
Segment assets pi:-(:3 587433 19,435 4l 2,150 609,059
Unallocated items: AAEEA
Property, plant and equipment % BERE 1494
Deposits, prepayments and e BNRER
other receivables Hit WA 8,386
Interest in joint venture NG00 3 1415
Bank balances and cash RTEBRRRE 185,058
Total assts HESE 805412
LIABILITIES &f
Segment liabilties ABEE 91519 3l 18 29315 121,183
Unallocated items: APRER
Other payables EftER5E 47N
Borrowings ¥ 352,657
Total libiltes BEOE 47855
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using modified retrospective Wi AREREREEITERNENSER

ERUBREENE 6% - BREZH
o LBERTETUES - F2H
IR 2(c)

approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not restated.
See Note 2(c).
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. WERABE®E#E)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) P BEEREE(E)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and allocating RERABEZABRARERDE -

resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to reportable and operating segments, s MMABENEKZZHRRELENT
other than certain property, plant and equipment, certain deposits, jiZ3 3%7)% lﬁﬂ%& R BTR
prepayments and other receivables, interest in joint venture, deposits - BNFEREMEKERE R
with banks with original maturity date over three months and bank RENTNES  RIBAREER
balances and cash. ZERAZBRIFERARBITERR

BEMI -

+  all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating segments, s MEBEEBENEEERREENH
other than certain other payables, borrowings and certain lease HETEMENFIE  ERRET
liabilities. RER BRI -

Other segment information Hittp HER

Amounts included in measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets: BRNIENEENAERI D HBEE

A
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-NF+-A=+—-HILFE
Securities Investment
trading and and financial
investments Trading advisory Asset
2588 of wines services management Unallocated Total
JEE REEER RERMBINRR REeR #28 it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TEn TER TER TEn TR TEn
Additions to property, ER TR
plant and equipment 1,716 - - - - 716
Depreciation of property, R R
plant and equipment 8 6 - 125 6,44 6,703
Impairment losses on debt EHREREER
investments 112,732 - - - - 112,732

Impairment losses on trade EFREMRNEERERR
and other receivables 3,644 555 - - - 4199




2019 4 R

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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5. WaRkABEE D)
AREERAMT)
BE-F-N\FT=A=+-ALFE

Securities Investment
trading and and financial
investments Trading advisory Asset
E5EE of wines services management Unallocated Total
Rk FHERE RARBHEARE AEER K0k &
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
ThR TR ThR ThR TR ThR
Additions to property, n%  BERRETE
plant and equipment - - 8 402 4 451
Depreciation of property, n% EEREENE
plant and equipment - b I8 109 970 1,103
Impairment losses on debt ERRARERR
investments 54262 - - - - 54262

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using modified retrospective

approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not restated.

See Note 2(c).

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers and investments of the respective years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

Wi ARBCEBEETEREN SRR
BRAMBREEUE 165 - REZT

FHBERTE FUEY - E2H
BIFE2(c)

BREEEFZEHN

BB R AR I B I 10% A E
BEFRITE YT -

2019 2018

“E-hE —E-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT THET

Customer A" EEA 32,500 51,828
Investment B” KEBR 11,343 —

Revenue from asset management business segment.

*

Revenue from securities trading and investments segment.

REEEEEER D 82 ek
C REEFRHEREN B2 WE
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical location
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group's
property, plant and equipment and interests in joint venture (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based
on the physical location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and

equipment, and the location of operations, in the case of interest in joint

2019 Annual Report

WE ko EEHEE)

i 3 &
TEBIEBOAEEREINFEF LK
BR(INVAEBYE  BERSEURE
EhEER(BEHRRDEE MR
fIBER - BEMAMIEM SRR RMH
BREXRXAFENONE - HEERBE
EMmBENENEREENERALE (5
ME BERSEMNS)  UREEDLS
(REELEREME)

venture.
Revenues from Specified non-
external customers current assets
RENMBEF 2 REFRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—B-AF ZE-0\E ZB-AE ZENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TET
Hong Kong EB 101,521 124,614 16,324 3222
PRC f — — 1,414 41
101,521 124,614 17,738 3263

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not restated.
See Note 2(c).

Wi ARBCEBEETTENEN SRR
BERMBREEUE 165 - REZTT
o LBERTETUEY - H2E

BIFE2(c)
6. OTHER INCOME Hittg A

2019 2018
—E-1F —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Bank interest income SRITF BUA 588 666
Sundry income HMIERA 490 31

1,078 697
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7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7. BEAEE
Loss before taxation is arrived after charging (crediting): BREAMBERNBRGIA) THEEEZE
o
(@)  Finance costs @) BBEE
2019 2018
—E-1F —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Interest on bank borrowings FITEEFS 5,897 2,268
Interest on other borrowings HinfEER S 17,047 13,209
Interest on lease liabilities MERERNS 855 —
Other borrowing costs HitfEEXA 7,328 7,102
Total interest expense on FRAFEFABREN
financial liabilities not at fair value CRAENSERERE
through profit or loss (Note 19(c)) (BEE19(c)) 31,127 22,579
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at | January 2019 using M AEEER-Z—NF—A—
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the AEREETTENENFER
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c). BRMBREENE 165 18

BZA%E WBERTE T
B3 - FRHEMEC)

(b)  Staff costs (b) BIMK

2019 2018
“E-1E —E-N\%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET

Directors” emoluments (Note 9) FEME (FF9)
— fees and other emoluments —HEkEMHE L1155 4,884

Other staff costs HWBEITHRE

— salaries, allowances and bonus —%e R RIEL 17,446 30,773
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — — EIREFIFTEI 489 1,455

22,090 37,112
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BE-T-NFT-A=T-RI%E
7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 7. BRBAERE)
() Other items () HfEE
2019 2018
—2-hE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi7 Fib L
Depreciation charge (Note 12) EXH (T 12)
— owned property, plant and equipment -BENE  BERHE 1,136 1,103
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 5,567 -
Total minimum lease payments for leases FRRBEEASERSE 175
previously classified as operating leases NEAKEHRENHEERK
under HKAS 17 (note) ME R R () — 6,497
Impairment losses IEEE
— debt investments — A 112,732 54,282
— trade and other receivables —ERESREREMERRE 4,199 —
116,931 54,282
Auditors’ remuneration e
— audit services — R BUR 1,296 1,296
— other services —H iR 450 200
1,746 1496
Legal and professional expenses EEREXE 8,110 15218
Reversal of provision for litigations EIE N (5,684) -
Reversal of provision for staff bonus 0 B TIEA e (10,433) -
Commission fee relating to asset HEEEREBRM ATE
management business 3,000 14,400
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense R AR X 2 FEKA 6,430 24,391

note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at | January

2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were

previously classified as operating leases under HKAS |7. After initial

recognition of right-of-use assets at | January 2019, the Group as a

lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,

instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred

under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Under this approach, the comparative information is not restated. See

Note 2(c).

Pist - REBBEREETEREY
SEBEEVBREENZE 16
%o UHER-T-AF—A
—am%m#ﬁuﬁ?%mm
BEASHEUNEITRAER
@%mhﬁﬁfﬁ@mﬁ%%
BE-R-ZT-N&—A—8
NEHREREEER &%

B(EREMBA)ARREAE
BEWE MAEMEAMBER
ERARRRBRERNgel
EETEENESAX - RIE
ZHE HWBEHTETUE
5 o BREMET2C)
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 8. BB
2019 2018
“E-hE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENED

— Provision for the year FEEE 4,610 418
— Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBEZE (206) -

PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEIRRPTET
— Provision for the year FEEB — |
4,404 419

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in

these two jurisdictions.

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate is 25% (2018: 25%).

For the years ended 3| December 2019 and 2018, Hong Kong
Profits Tax of the qualified entity of the Group is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rate regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of a qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of other group
entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax

rates regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

RERSEHENABRLHENR
RIRAH - REEHAGNZLMEE
ANERER MRS o

FRCEMEHMEARL% (ZF
— )\ 25%) e

BE_Z-NERZZF-N\F+=
A=+—HLEFE AEEEER
EROBANEGHIBRENEH
BMEMBHTE - REFEHM
Bl AEREEERBNE2EE
BB R825% B - MiRA
DEEBATHMBAER65%E
B o MEEMEBRH R MR A
SEEEHMERNOFEKESRR
BEERE 16.5%EH -
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“NETZA=T-RLFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 8. FBBixXH (&)
Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting loss at applicable tax RERNEFE HBT NEeHEE
rates is as follows: ZEEBRMT
2019 2018
—E-NEF —NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Loss before taxation HAEE (93,024) (60,413)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BHAIEE ZEHIE  HEH
calculated at the rates applicable to profits ~ FlEER ZafEAHREE
in the jurisdictions concerned (19,197) (10,192)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AAMB X HEHBB FE
for tax purpose 2,733 10,163
Tax effect of income not taxable BERMIBMAHRIBLZE
for tax purpose (1,543) (2,538)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERVEBRENEFE 24,162 2,864
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary AERERIEER
differences HBBECHE 161 122
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses ENAAREATHIEERB MK 2 (1,646) —
Statutory tax concession EERBER (60) —
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHRERE (206) —
Income tax expenses FrEHiR 4,404 419

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated unused

tax losses of approximately HK$191,629,000 (2018: approximately

HK$55,166,000) available for offset against future profits relating to

the continuing operations. No provision of deferred taxation has been

recognised in respect of the tax losses due to unpredictability of future

profit streams. The unused tax losses do not expire under current tax

legislation.

The Group had no other significant potential deferred tax assets and

liabilities for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 and at 3|

December 2019 and 2018.

RBEBRR  ARERFAERERATE
B4 1916290008 T (ZE—N\F : §)
55,166,000 7T ) ATt E S B BB IS &
EBHRIERN c BRARAFIBLE
TR S EnBEERRRELER
BRHE - BBROINE  ZREARE
RS EE -

BE-_Z—NER-ZZE-NE+=A
ST-HEFERRRZZ-NERZ
T-N\E+ZA=+—08 FTEEUE
HiENEERLCHBEERAR
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 9. EBERIRTHAEME
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief executive were ENENESRFETHAR 2 HM
as follows: (IR
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
gz HnES Bufungs

(Chief (Chief

Executive  Operating
(Chairman) Officer) Officer) Wong Total
Chen Bo LiYi Xiao Qing Theng Chang Stacey Tso Siu Fei 019
(3R) (ERYAE) (EREEE)  FengHa  DuPeng  Xaow  Tatoel Matn  LinAln  John Xiang  ZZ-AF
K& E2 HE i3 R B0E BER  RRE R & it
HKS000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKS000  HK§'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§'000
tén  fEn  fEn  fEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEn  THEn  TEn

(note 2) (note b)
(Wita) (Hib)
Fegs e - - - - - - 10 1 1 40 960
Other emoluments — EAffE
Salaries §é - 2910 - - - - - - - - 2910
Discetionary bonus~ BOFRTEAL - 13 - - - - - - - - "3
Retirement beneft ~ RAEEE
scheme - 18 - - - - 11 1 - - 4

- 301 - - - - 15 15 40 i 4155
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 9. EBRIETBAEME(E)
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
EHEH HINTES BuFinES
(Chief - (Chief
Execute  Operating
(Chairman) ~ Officer) ~ Officer) Wong Total
Feng Hai LYl Xeo Qg Chan Zneng  Lam Men Chang Stacey  TsoSiu Fei 2018
(38) (BEHOE) (EREZE) MeeSe  DuPeng  Xaosw SumAbet  Tatjoel  Mathn  LinAan JohnXiang “F-N\F
g 2 B RXE HR  BIF MER  BEE  RB EER 0 ®) &
HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00
Tén  TEn  TEr T TRn  TEr  TRn  TRn TR TR TR TER
(note ¢) (note d) (note e
(Hitc) (Hikd) (Hite)
Fees e - - - - - - 100 1 M 0 158 978
Other emoluments — EAfE
Salers i - - 935 - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit ~ RAEEE
scheme - 0 - 1 - - 5 2 12 - - ol
- 293 - 947 - - 105 15 15 Jali 158 4884

Mr. Chen Bo, Mr. Feng Hai and Ms. Xiao Qing did not receive any

remuneration for their appointment as executive directors.

The emoluments of Ms. Chan Mee Sze and Mr. Li Yi, the executive
directors of the Company, were mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of independent non-executive directors were mainly for their

services as directors of the Company.

During both years, no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under which a

director has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

BREL  BEEEREFTRLLER
REBZERMTESZREUEAME

AREHTESREIBLEIRFRLLE
MMEEIERNEEEANRAKE
EHNREME - BUFRTEEHOM
EIBRRFEARRAESTRBOM
4o

RREFE  AREHECFREME
MEEZME - AERRIIEMAZLM
ARKERE R RBERAE - 8
BESWRIFAEMERETMNHE 22 -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Notes:

(@ Mr. Chen Bo was appointed as the chairman and an executive
director on 25 April 2019,

(b)  Mr. Feng Hai resigned as the chairman and an executive director on
24 April 2019.

(¢) Ms. Chan Mee Sze resigned as an executive director on | September
2018.

(d)  Mr. Lam Man Sum Albert retired as independent non-executive director on
7 May 2018.

(e)  Mr. Fei John Xiang was appointed as independent non-executive director on
I8 May 2018.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one is
a director of the Company (2018: one director) whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 9 above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2018:

four) individuals for the year ended 31 December 2019 were as follows:

REBEBEZERARAA

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

z

9. EBRFIETBAEME(#)
Bt ot
@ MBELER-Z-AFENA-TAA
BZERIERITES -
b) HELERZT-AFNAZ+THNA
BIERmHFNTES -
0 BEBZIBAKTES RZ
—NFNA—BAER -
d) MEFLER-_Z-N\FRALBE
EBUFERITES
() BAXEZZT-NFRATNBEZ
ERBIUFRNTES -
0. EEMS

AEEREESEaMEecAAL  H
P AARARER(ZE-N\F: —
MEE) HEZHEER EXHHEIE
B-BE_FT-NF+ZA=+—HL
EE - BTUMA(ZFE—N\F: O A

TZMEewmT
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 5,768 6,592
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes RREFIFHE{E R 72 57
5,840 6,649
Their emoluments were within the following bands: REFMER AT AR :
2019 2018
—E-hE§ “E-N\F
No. of No. of
employees employees
BEAH BEAE
HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZHLE 1,000,000 57T 0
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T Z 2,000,000 7 7T 2
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LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2019 Annual Report

BRE#R
SRAARIE AL 7B R R
ERBRRLE N R EBRMET
U B o

Basic: -
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Loss attributable to equity ARRIERRFEEER
shareholders of the Company (96,897) (60,792)
Weighted average number of ordinary BBTERRINETISE
shares in issue 1,059,749,920 1,059,749,920
Diluted: g

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. Therefore, the

diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share.

SREEE R E AT E B NE
FHRELAE  URREHEECHE
ERRCELANAE -BE-T-N
FRZZE-NFTZA=+-HLEE
AT EEESHTELBK - At SRE
BERESREXNEEER -
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12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2. W% BERRE
(a)  Reconciliation of carrying amount @ HREEHE
Properties
leased for
own use
carried at Furniture,
cost fixtures and
AR L hold uipment
HEHE easeho equipme
HEyE improvements &AL - Total
(BH=E) HERE RERRE wmE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FERT TERT TER
Cost: B
At | January 2018 RZZE—N\E—H—H — 2,430 880 3,310
Exchange adjustments R e — — (2) (2)
Additions NE _ 336 I15 451
At 31 December 2018 RZEBE—-N\F
+ZA=+—H — 2,766 993 3,759
Impact on initial application ~ ¥IXEREBH B RS
of HKFRS 16 (note) RAE HNTE
(PH5E) 20,892 — — 20,892
At | January 2019 R-ZT-NF—HA—H 20,892 2,766 993 24,651
Exchange adjustments B 5, 3 (14) — (6) (20)
Additions NE 1,302 — 414 1,716
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZT—-NF

+-—A=+—H 22,180 2,766 1,401 26,347
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continue) 12. W% BERRE®)
(@)  Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continue) @) REBEHEE)
Properties
leased for Furniture,
own use fixtures and
carried at
Leasehold equipment
cost
HEYE improvements & Total
(P&E) HERE KERRE B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T THERT THEr TR
Accumulated depreciation:  REFHHTE :
At | January 2018 RZZE—-\F—A—H — 683 125 808
Exchange adjustments b 34, 3 B - — — —
Provided for the year FRRE — 911 192 [,103
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+ZA=+—H — 1,594 317 1911
At | January 2019 RZE—NE—AH—H — 1,594 317 1911
Exchange adjustments BE 5 SR B “4) - (" Q)
Provided for the year FARE 5,567 922 214 6,703
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF
+=-B=+—-H 5563 2516 530 8,609
NET BOOK VALUES RREFE
At 31 December 2019 RZF—N%F
+TZA=+—H 16,617 250 871 17,738
At 31 December 2018 R-F—N\F
+TZA=+—H — 1,172 676 1,848
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Mz REBCFEREBEITEIED
retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances at | January SERAEEMBEHRELERE 16
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were W UHAERR-_ZT—hFE—A
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 7. See Note —HEBNERIAER LR
2(c). BEEGHENEITRIER

HERENHAEFBRNER
BEE - F28MH2c) -
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12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continue) 12. V¥ BERREE)
(b)  Right-of-use assets (b) FERAREE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of BEERRSMNFEREEENER
underlying asset is as follows: EFERT
31 December | January
2019 2019
—E-NE —B-NF
t=ZA=+-H —A—H
HK$'000 HK$’000
T TET
Properties leased for own use, HEBROME - RITERATIT
carried at depreciated cost 16,617 20,892

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in

profit or loss is as follows:

HERRTRIANEEFBOI L
BRADHFWT :

2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
(note)
(FE)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use REEFRE NG AEEEN
assets by class of underlying asset: WEER:
Properties leased for own use HEERNME 5,567 -
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 7(a)) ME&EF B (ME7()) 855 -
Expense relating to short-term leases HREHHEREELEEREAMENAX
and leases of low value assets 89 —
Total minimum lease payments for FRRBEER S ERSE 17TREER
leases previously classified mERENREHEENRAE
as operating leases under HKAS 17 — 6,497
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12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continue)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continue)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at | January
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS |7. After initial
recognition of right-of-use assets at | January 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Under this approach, the comparative information is not restated. See
Note 2(c).

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were HK$1,302,000.
This amount primarily related to the capitalised lease payments

payable under new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of

lease liabilities are set out in Notes 19(d) and 23, respectively.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its offices
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 3 years. Lease payments are increased on an agreement-

to-agreement basis to reflect market rentals.

2019 Annual Report

12. W% BERREE)
ERREEE

(b)

st - AEEEEREETNEY
ERERE BN GREE
AIEE165%  WHEBER_-E
—NF—A—BHNBNEHS
AR ARERAS
FAE 7RG EAKERSE
HESEBEBNERES
E-H-T-NF—A—H
KA EEITYIIRTER
& NEBEREBATY
FRELERENE Mk
BB RIMBOR SRR
NESFRREERENT
SBR - BEZERE B
BEEMLEBER - 2R
2(c) °

FR - ERBEEELEMT
130200087 - @B F EHR
BHRHERARNNERMCBER
HEH -

HERSRLBENFAEEN
HEBBEMBR D RIEMRE
19(d) A 23 PG|

HEBHHIYE

AEECRBREHRRGERY
FERBRBGEEN - HERR
N RH3F - BERFIREH5H
ERITARRTISES -
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12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continue)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continue)

Properties leased for own use (Continue)

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional
period after the end of the contract term. Where practicable, the
Group seeks to include such extension options exercisable by the
Group to provide operational flexibility. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise
the extension options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options, the future lease payments during
the extension periods are not included in the measurement of lease

liabilities. The potential exposure to these future lease payments is

summarised as below:

REBEBEZERARAA

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

12. W% BERREE)

(b) GEREEEE)
HEGBHNE (&)

ReBERREARBRERES
HEBROBEINER - AT
AT ARENRBEAKEAT
EMREREER  WRHELER
1 - AEEREER A B HEHER
TRERTeTRENEEE -1
RAGE A ERETEERE
Big - QIEREBEMAREERNK
TIHAHEREMNE - FLRK
HENRNEBEERREEDT -

Potential future

lease payments

under extension

options not

included in

Lease liabilities lease liabilities
recognised ARaf AHERE
CRAN HEEERERERT
HERE EEAREEMNR

(discounted) (undiscounted)

Office premise - PRC

MRENE - FE

(#78) (RIR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
1,302 1,250
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13. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 13. BREBHERATEZEBRE
Note 2019 2018
Mt &t —E-NF —T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Corporate debt securities NANEBESH (a) 354,708 385,952
Receivable under a loan facility —HEFBMEBETHRERKZRIE (b) 31,000 31,000
385,708 416,952
Less: Loss allowance B EBiEEE
(see Note 25(b)(i)) (RBEE25(0) () (167,014) (54,282)
Total debt investments at amortised IZEESHKANETE 2 B
cost, net of loss allowance B R (NREEEE) 218,694 362,670
2019 2018
—E-nE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Analysed for reporting purpose, DHE2|E B (HREBRERE)
net of loss allowance
— Non-current portion —JERNERE 140,226 103,015
— Current portion —BVHAEL 78,468 259,655

218,694

362,670
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DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (Continued)
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REBEBEZERARAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

13. BREERATEZERRE®)

Corporate debt securities @@ ADEEEESF
Corporate debt securities comprise the following: AAEBEFBRE -
Note 2019 2018
Bt —E-hE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET
8% senior guaranteed notes SEEEERER(ISPER])

("SP Note") (i) 101,275 101,830
10% senior guaranteed notes 0EETERZE(RDER])

(“RD Note") (ii) 113,207 117,496
6.95% guaranteed notes 695 ERRER([ZREE])

("ZR Note") (ii) — 15,860
6.5% guaranteed bonds CSEERER(ZYRE])

("ZY Note") (iv) — 78,330
5.75% bonds (“GX Note") 5.75EEH([CXEE]) (v) — 72,436
10.5% notes (“SOL Note") 105 ERE([SOLRE]) (vi) 140,226 —
Gross carrying amount R+ZA=+—RzBEEE

at 3| December 354,708 385,952
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DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (Continued)

Corporate debt securities (Continued)

SP Note represented US$13 million (2018: US$13 million) 8% senior
secured guaranteed notes issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“SP Note Issuer”) maturing on 30 July 2019 with a right to
extend the maturity date by further |12 months exercisable by the
Company. The SP Note is secured by a charge over 131,000,000
shares of C.banner International Holdings Limited, a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group does not
have the right to sell or re-pledge the shares held as collateral in the
absence of default by SP Note Issuer. In addition, the SP Note is also
secured by corporate guarantee provided by Sanpower Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Corporate Guarantor”) and personal guarantee provided by

Yuan Yafei (the "Personal Guarantor").

During the year ended 3| December 2018, Sanpower Group Co., Ltd
and Yuan Yafei, being the guarantors of the SP Note failed to provide
additional collateral requested by the Company pursuant to the
terms of the SP Note and this has resulted in occurrence of events of
default (“"EOD") under the terms of the SP Note. In October 2018,
the Group has issued EOD notice to SP Note Issuer in respect of all
outstanding sums owing by SP Note Issuer. The Company has made
announcements on 29 October 2018, 20 November 2018 and 10
January 2019 in relation to the default of the SP Note.

Bl
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BERERAR(—HAES
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1) 131,000,000 BB A 1K IR IE
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BERT  AEEEBEDES
BERMERGABERAD It
S SPERTU=ZREEAR
AR([RARERADRES
ARERRERDI(EAER
ADREHEARRAER
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=t—HIEFE  SPREER
AZREBERRARREH
REERIBE P RIBRFIRAAF
ERRBBNERR  BBE
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13.

DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (Continued)

@

Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

On | November 2018, the Group appointed a legal adviser and the
Group brought legal proceedings against the Corporate Guarantor
and the Personal Guarantor at the Intermediate People’s Court of
Jiangsu Province (the “Court”) by the end of November 2018 for
all outstanding sums owing by the SP Note Issuer under the SP
Note. On 20 December 2018, the Court issued a REFHE (the
“Mediation Order”, order numbered (2018) Su 01 Min Chu No.3422)
in relation to the payments obligations of the Corporate Guarantor
and the Personal Guarantor, in respect of the amounts owed under
the SP Note recorded in the fE# %% (the “Settlement Agreement”)
entered into between OCI| Capital Limited (“OCI Capital”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, the Corporate Guarantor and
the Personal Guarantor on the same day as a result of the mediation
conducted by the Court. Although the Corporate Guarantor and the
Personal Guarantor are required under the Mediation Order and the
Settlement Agreement to repay amounts owed under the SP Note
to OCI Capital by making an initial US$2,000,000 payment by 28
December 2018 and twelve further monthly payments during 2019, no
payment was received by OCI Capital based on the Mediation Order
and Settlement Agreement. Given such failure to pay in accordance
with the agreed schedule, all amounts payable under the Mediation
Order and the Settlement Agreement became immediately due and
payable. Accordingly, on 9 January 2019, the Group submitted an
application to the Court for the enforcement of amounts due under
the Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement. Up to the date

of these financial statements, such court application is still in progress.

3.
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NEERARMEAERAmME
TR AR R R BT 8 F 87
W ([0 B 5 3% 1) Prad 8% 89
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13.

DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (Continued)

@

Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(if)

As at 31 December 2019, the net carrying amount of the SP Note
was HK$22,037,000 (2018: HK$48,430,000). Accordingly, in relation
to the SP Note, the Group made a provision for impairment loss as
at 31 December 2019 of HK$79,238,000 (2018: HK$53,400,000) (see
Note 25(b)(i)).

RD Note represented US$I5 million (2018: US$15 million) 10%
senior guaranteed notes issued by Rundong Fortune Investment
Limited (“RD Note Issuer”) maturing on |5 April 2019. The RD Note
is secured by a charge over 78,000,000 shares of China Rundong Auto
Group Limited (“China Rundong Shares”), a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group does not have the
right to sell or re-pledge the shares held as collateral in the absence

of default by RD Note Issuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, RD Note Issuer failed to
repay the outstanding interest and handling fee receivable and this has
resulted in occurrence of event of default under the terms of the RD
Note. The Company has made announcements on 8 August 2019 in

relation to the default of the RD Note.

3.
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BBERITEZEEREE)
() DREBRZE)
HisE - (4

13.  DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (Continued) 3.

(@)  Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

Following the RD Note Issuer's failure to repay the outstanding
principal amount and the outstanding interest and handling fee
receivable of the RD Note, the Group exercised its right as a
chargee in possession of the charged shares and sold 2,019,000 China
Rundong Shares on the market for HK$3,648,440 and subsequently
contracted with two third parties, LanHai International Trading Limited
and Ms. Ding Yi (“Potential Purchasers”) which are independent of
the Group, to sell the remaining 75,981,000 China Rundong Shares
(“Remaining Shares™) for HK$80,000,000. LanHai International
Trading Limited is the wholly owned subsidiary of Lanhai Holding
(Group) Company Limited, which is in turn 99% controlled by Mr.
Mi Chunlei. Nonetheless, neither of the Potential Purchasers paid
any of the consideration to the Group. The Group has commenced
legal proceedings against the Potential Purchasers. On 16 August
2019, a Writ of Summons to LanHai International Trading Limited
and Ms. Ding Yi was filed to the High Court of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Up to the date of these financial statements,

such legal proceeding is still in progress.

As at 3| December 2019, the net carrying amount of the RD Note
was HK$25,462,000 (2018: HK$117,496,000). Accordingly, in relation
to the RD Note, the Group made a provision for impairment loss as
at 3| December 2019 of HK$87,745,000 (2018: HK$NIl) (see Note

25(0)(1))-

BEROZEETAREEERD
ZERBELSBERAEM
FIBREKFESE AEET
EHERERRABBERRSD
() 8 - 30 LA3,648,4407 T
f) (B 18 72 1135 - 152,019,000
RABERRG - HEEmE
E-HERBARESERAF
FHRBERART L L(EEE
HlTBURAEE)FTUA
LA E T 75,981,000 B B
HRBRH(THTRAL - KE
/380,000,000 77T - EIEEIRE
SERAAAESER(ER)
ERARZZENBAR W
EEER(EE)ERARAMA
BEEREEH9%RE - &
Eml - BEEAHUERLE
ExHAEMRE - FEEEY
BEEFEMEZER -RZ
T-AFNA+ARB BEAE
ERBHTRESSER R
EEERESERRART A
ZTBELEASMK EEZE
MBREBE - ZEEFAND
AT -

WZZE-NEF+ZA=+—
B ROEBHEEMEAR
25,462,000 T(ZF — N\ F :
117,496,000 7T ) » 4% bt - 3t
ROZEREME - AREEHRZ
T-NFTZA=+—HBZR
{BE518 87,745,000 B T AT TR
(ZE-NF:TEL)(2RK
FE25(0)(1)) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (Continued)

@)

Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(vi)

ZR Note represented US$2.20 million (face value) of 6.95%
guaranteed notes issued by Zhongrong International Bond 2016
Limited (“ZR Note Issuer”) and was fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

ZY Note represented US$10 million 6.5% guaranteed bonds issued by
Zunyi New District Investment Co., Ltd. and was fully settled during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

GX Note represented US$10 million (face value) of 5.75% bonds
issued by Guangxi Financial Investment Group Co., Ltd. (EFE& R
REKEARAA
party during the year ended 31 December 2019, resulting in a gain of

) and was disposed of to an independent third

approximately HK$2,552,000 in the profit or loss.

SOL Note represented US$18 million 10.5% notes issued by SOL
OMNIBUS SPC (“SOL Note Issuer”) maturing on 17 June 2021. SOL
Note was charged over 5,400,000 shares of US$0.0001 each of JS
Global Lifestyle Company Limited (the “JS Charged Shares"). Based
on the subscription agreement, the Company released the |S Charged
Shares to SOL Note Issuer on the date when ]S Global Lifestyle
Company Limited was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, ie.
thereafter (the “Lockup Period”). SOL Note Issuer undertakes to take

I8 December 2019, until the date falling six months

all necessary actions to execute the share charge (with the aggregate
value of the shares of JS Global Lifestyle Company Limited to be
charged being no less than 300% of the aggregate principal amount of
SOL Note outstanding) once the period for Lockup Period ended.

3.

BRBEBAGECERRE#)
ARERRH(E)
Wi (&)

(2)

(i

(vi)

ZRE B i
International Bond 2016 Limited
([ZREBHITAD ETM22
BEXT(AE)6SEERRE
B EREBEE_Z-NETZ
A=T—BLEFENTHLE -

i Zhongrong

NEREREEDHREESR
REFRRETHIOAERT
CSERERER CREZE-F
“NE+ZA=+-HI#EE
NS -

CXEBERERCRRES
EEBRRRETIREE=T
—“hNE+-A=+t—-BLEE
NHETBLE=FNI0ES
EL(AEE)STSEES &k
Rz & A KRB 2,552,000
T o

SOLE {% 4§ A SOL OMNIBUS
SPC([SOLEBHITA N METT
RZZEZ—FXA+tHBEH
K18 EBET 105% 2 » SOL
Z 4 A 5,400,000 % % [ 0.0001
ETHSSERETAERDAR
DEBER(ISERBRG ) - 1B
BREHZ  ADRERSE
REEERARREER A
ITEBEIZE-NEF+=A
TAR)EAERARER]E
B RSOLEEBITABKRE
2SI o SOLEE 24T A
A BREHERK 2R
B— BB URITRHE
RERM)SRRETERAA
Rin B BEET D RSOLER
A& @R 300%) ©
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DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (Continued)

(b)  Receivable under a loan facility

Receivable under a loan facility bears interest at a range of 1% to

14% per semi-annum and will be repayable in 2020.

Except for the SP Note and the RD Note, the Group did not have any
debt investments that were past due but not impaired at 31 December
2019. Further details on the Group's credit risk arising from debt

investments at amortised cost are set out in Note 25(b)(i).

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE

REBEBEZERARAA

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

13. BREBERATEZEBRESE)
(b) EFNEMEETHERRE

EXmMEBETHREKTENTSA
BEFIE 4% TER T
TEEE-

RSPEBERRDEEIN R_T—NEF
+TZAZ+—B ASEHETEH
BABENEBRE - AEERREH
RAGFENERREMEENEERR
BRI 25(00)() °

14, REEQTHER

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT THET

At | January ®n—H—H 1,415 1,573
Share of loss FEEEE (760) (158)
Cessation of joint control 1R AR (655) —
At 31 December “+=-A=+—H — 1415




2019 Annual Report

e MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

14. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 14.

Details of the Group's interest in joint venture, which is accounted for using the

equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follow:

Place of Particulars of issued

Name of joint venture incorporation and business and paid up capital

REERRNERF)
AEERG A Y BEE R B AE
VA ERIERHERIIRT

% of ownership interest

RENAER AL AL I St R ERITRARRAFFE BEEEGADL
TYEE-OCI Capital Cayman Islands 100 ordinary shares of US$0.01 Group's Held by
(Cayman) Limited HEHS 100 REREE 00 ET2 effective interest ~ the Company
gl AKBERNE  hARAERA
2019 2018 2019 2018
- 50% - 50%
(see (see
below) below)
(RT3 (T30

During the vear ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into the
equity transfer agreement with Tyee Capital Group Limited, pursuant
to which Tyee Capital Group Limited agreed to transfer the 50% equity
interest in TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited ("TYEE-OCI") to the
Group. The acquistion of TYEE-OCI was completed on 25 April 2019,
Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group's equity interest in TYEE-
OCl increased from 50% to 100%, accordingly, TYEE-OCI is accounted for
as a subsidiary of the Group. During the year ended 3| December 2019
and immediately before the further 50% acquisition of TYEE-OCI, TYEE-
OCI was the only joint venture in which the Group participated. TYEE-OCI
has not yet commenced its business at the date of the completion of the
acquisition, and accordingly this acquisition transaction is the acquisition
of TYEE-OCI's assets and liabilities and no gain or loss on disposal of the
entire interest in this joint venture was made. At the date of acquisition,
TYEE-OCI has a major asset (i.e. cash at bank) of approximately
HK$1,292,000.

TYEE-OCI is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is
not available.

TYEE-OCI has not yet commenced its business and plans to engage in the

provision of fund management services.

REE-ZT-NF+-RA=+—HL
FE A& E HTyee Capital Group
Limited 3] M IR B Z R - B » Tyee
Capital Group Limited Al = & ZTYEE-
OCI Capital(Cayman)Limited ([ TYEE-
OCIJ) 50% H) B # » TYEE-OCIH) IR EE B
RZE-AFNA-THEBREMR - WE
% RSB M TYEE-OCIBRAEHE 50%
#Z100% E M TYEE-OCHE B A%
ERHBLRAR RBE-Z—NEF
+tZRA=T—HILEE EERE—F
U B TYEE-OCI #)50% % 4 2 Al * TYEE-
OCIRAKBER - BHEMNEGELE-
TYEE-OCIRMEETE 2 B R & % -
Et - AR EER 5 =2 W TYEE-OCI /)
BEREK BHE6ER72HEE
AREEEMEZ RUKEBR B - TYEE-
OCHER A 129200 T EEE
(BRITRE) -

TYEE-OCI BIELMEEEE -
BHE -

TYEE-OCI M ARBRAEER - WargIN=s
REESEERY - AEERKELE
NAIEB 2 ES -

A T
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INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Summarised financial information of TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited, adjusted

for any differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying

amount in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

REBEBEZERARAA

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

14, REENTHER (&)

TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited Z 8t
BEMBECRGHBR 2 ERMERE

LR BRAMBRRTNREEY

BEBWT :
2018
G
Gross amounts of TYEE-OCI Capital TYEE-OCI Capital HK$'000
(Cayman) Limited's net assets (Cayman) Limited 2 /% & & TET
Current assets mEE E 2,829
Equity gy 2,829
Included in the above assets: FALIERE -
Cash and cash equivalents RekRe%EER 1,309
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in EIAEE @A TYEE-OCI Capital
TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited (Cayman) Limited 2 ¥ %3 ¥ iR
Gross amounts of TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited
Limited's net assets BEFERHE 2,829
Group's effective interest AEBEZERER 50%
Group's share of TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) A5 BIFE (G TYEE-OCI Capital
Limited's net assets (Cayman) Limited & Z)$& 1,415
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEEREREE 1,415
From | January
2019 to date Year ended
of completion 31 December
of acquisition 2018
H-Z-NF BE-T-/\F
—-A—HBEZ +ZA=1—H
B8 52 Ak B LEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET
Other disclosures it %
Revenue Y zs — —
Loss from operations REEB ER (1,520) (317)
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I5.

INVENTORIES 15. 7&
2019 2018
“E-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FEL
Goods purchased for resale HEE/CEERM 12,324 17,273
TRADE RECEIVABLES le. EWEZRR
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Trade debtors in respect of wine trading FHREEREBZESRBA 1,934 1,635
Fees receivable from asset management REBEEEEZEKER 1,409 —
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts A R (555) —
2,788 [,635
Ageing analysis Rk 2T

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful

debts, is as follows:

RBSHR  REFAHNBRER
BERKEZRE REDTOT :

2019 2018

—B-NF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TAET

0 to 60 days 0-60H 2,088 914
61 to 90 days 61-90 H — —
91 to 180 days 91-180 H — 721
181 to 365 days 181-365H 700 —
2,788 [,635

The Group allows an average credit period from 90 to 120 days (2018: 90
to 120 days) to its trade customers in respect of wine trading and a credit
period of 30 days to its customers in respect of asset management. Further
details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from trade

receivables are set out in Note 25(b)(ii).

AREATHBAEREEESKPEN
Z10B(ZE—N\F:90F120H)2F
BEERRAEEEERPARAZE
B BEASEGEERRERRBEK
BHER 2 EERRF BN 250b)
(i) °
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I7. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. %#e BAAREREMERRKE
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr TEX
Rental and other deposits MEREMIZES
— Non-current portion —JEENERED S 2,116 1,968
— Current portion —ENERER 9 152 208
Other receivables and prepayments H fth e U 3B R TB A 3R
— Interest receivables from —BEBREZRIFIE
debt investments, net of loss allowance MR ERBED
of approximately HK$3,644,000 3,644,000 87T
(2018: HK$ Nil) (Z2-N\F:F) 9,708 9,544
— Prepayments for bank and other —TBRRITREME SRR
borrowing costs 3,381 4,440
— Prepayments for fund - ENEE D BHAREIIE
sub-advisory services 1,398 1,398
— Other prepayments —HE B RIE 1,718 2,300
~ Other receivables —Hit KA 622 744
16,827 18,426
Deposits with brokers REENTFR 314 764
19,409 21,366
Less: Non-current portion of rental deposits  J§ : &L & IERIEE 7 (2,116) (1,968)

17,293 19,398
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 18. BAFEAERZEHEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current ERE
US Dollar Bond Linked Notes ENEFHAER — 40,228
Current RE
US Dollar Bond Linked Notes ELEFRNER 134,347 123,446
Corporate debt securities NEEBES 247,842 —
Investment fund RERS 168,143 —
Total return swaps ("TRS") e ([ A RiEs ) — 27,955
Listed equity securities held for trading BIEEE 2 FTIRAES
— In Hong Kong RN = 22518
550,332 173,919

Total financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABR REELS
profit or loss 550,332 214,147
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERREEEER
(@) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of financial @ REEHBRIERASRERP
position and cash flows comprise: HRERASEEHEABE
2019 2018
“E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Bank deposits, cash at banks and on hand #RITFH * |ITRFEHHRL 102,127 185,058
Less: Deposits with banks with original & : REIEI B ABB= (A 2 R1FH (21,360) -

maturity date over three months

Cash and cash equivalents in the REeBRRARRERERFHRSE 80,767 185,058
consolidated statements of financial kBE&EFEEE

position and cash flows

At 31 December 2019, there were bank balances and cash RZE—NE+-A=+—-H &
denominated in RMB amounting to approximately HK$1,042,000 ARBABEZRITEBRESY
(2018: approximately HK$570,000). Remittance of funds out of PRC R1,0420008T(ZE—N\F: 4§
is subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange 5700007 7T) - P EIEHESA
control promulgated by the PRC government. BT BRI RAEBINEE /)

BRI R A&BI -
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19.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of (loss) profit before taxation to cash used in operations :

2019 Annual Report

9. BWEeRBLEEEB (&)
(b) BRBIAT(ER)SNEEEMANE

SHE:
NOTE 2019 2018
M ZB-hE —EN\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEL
Loss before taxation BREAIEE (93,024) (60,413)
Adjustments for: FOATIREEN AR -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1%  BiE RRETE 7(c) 6,703 103
Loss allowance on trade and other receivables ~ EWE ZHEER
AW REE R A 7(c) 4,199 -
Loss allowance on debt investments ERREEREE 7(c) 112,732 54,282
Foreign exchange gain, net HNEME - FE (2,262) (400)
Change in fair value of financial assets at BATEABRRZ
fair value through profit or loss CHEELTEE 5() (10,795) (7,021)
Finance costs MHER 7(2) 31,127 2,579
Reversal of provision for staff bonus BEBTTEARE 7(c) (10,433) —
Reversal of provision for litigations BEFARE 7(c) (5,684) —
Share of loss of joint venture EhagtEER 14 760 58
Bank interest income RITFBHRA 6 (588) (666)
Changes in working capital BEESED:
Decrease (increase) in inventories BER D (Em) 4,949 (4,483)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables EWESFEEI RS (1,708) 8816
(Increase) decrease in deposits, prepayments &%+ BRAFER
and other receivables Eft BRI RS (1,687) 12,821
Increase in debt investments at REEN B BBRELEMN
amortised cost (47,674) (100910)
Increase in financial assets at fair value through ~ RATFEFABRZ EBEELN
profit or loss (220,220 (124,327
Decrease in trade payables FERE ZRER D — (3)
(Decrease) increase in accruals and et B R EMERNRECHS)EM
other payables (4,421) 16,627
Increase in contract liabilities CRIEL ) 29 15,671
Cash used in operations L2EYFRANE (237,997) (166,166)
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19. BREeRBLEEBEHE)
(b)  Reconciliation of (loss) profit before taxation to cash used in operations: (b) BRBAI(EE)RAEEEMANER
(Continued) S8R (&)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Mzt AEBEBFERSEIENEY

retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances at | January
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 7. Previously, cash payments under operating leases made by
the Group as a lessee of HK$6,497,000 were reclassified as operating
activities in the consolidated cash flow statements. Under HKFRS
16, except for short-term lease payments, payments for leases of
low value assets and variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities, all other rentals paid on leases
are now split into capital element and interest element (see Note
19(c)) and classified as financing cash outflows. Under the modified
retrospective approach, the comparative information is not restated.
Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set
out in Note 2(c).

SEAEANBREERE 16
o YHARR-Z—AF—A
—BEBNESARR AR
BEBGHENE 7RI EA
CEHEMEAERBOER
BEE - 281 AEE(EAH
BA)BEEEEERELOR
S 156497000 TREAR
EMERDPFRIEEEFDH R
BEBMBEREERE 65
BRATAHREE G EMEH
HERK KREEEERRK
AEREMFIN BREEN
FEEMENRERESEAR
BREZERMEER(RME
19()UHEARERSRL
BREERERE  LEER
TYES - FRBEZEBH
BRELAE I6RNTEE
—HRHEH MR 2(c) ©
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19. BeRHASEEER (&)
(c)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities () REMETHNEEHE
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from TRAFAEEREMEES 2 A
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. EEB(AERELIFREET) -
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash BRBEDMEENERENR SR
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's FARKXRERRAEBGARER
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing ERDEREMELDHZHORE
activities. MEfE -
Accrued interests Borrowings  Lease liabilities Total
JEzH RIS &g HEEE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR ThR THER THER
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NF+ZA=1-H 3,679 352,657 - 356,336
Impact on initial application of BRERBANBRELR
HKFRS 16 (note) £ 16z B(M) - - 20,892 20,892
At | January 2019 R=B-hn%-B-A 3,679 352,657 20,892 377,228
Changes from financing cash flows: ﬂiﬁlﬂﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁmusﬁiﬁ :
Proceeds from new bank loan HRITERZ FE5R - 221,500 - 221,500
Proceeds from new shareholders’ loans *ﬁﬂﬁ%g KSR - 156,800 - 156,800
Repayment of bank loan BRBOER - (100,000) — (100,000)
Repayment of shareholders' loans BERRER — (86,219) = (86,219)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ ERMMNEE ¢ EXHH — — (5,124 (5,124)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ EIHAEE 2 FEEHH — — (855) (855)
Interest paid on bank and EXFARITREBERNE
other borrowings (30,622) — — (30,622)
Total changes from financing cash flows L& BEIR&RELEEE (30,622) 192,081 (5,979) 155,480
Exchange adjustments EiAR (23) (1,963) (12) (1,998)
Other changes: Et2E
Increase in lease liabilities from entering B4 T3 $TAE 4185
into new leases during the year BEAEEM - - 1,302 1,302
Finance costs (Note 7(a)) MHER(ME70) 30,272 = 855 31,127
Total other changes EthEaag 30272 = 2,157 32,429

At 31 December 2019 R=Z-AF+=A=t-H 3,306 542,775 17,058 563,139
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19. BeRHASEEER (&)
(c)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (Continued) () REMETBNEGEHERE)
Accrued interests Borrowings Total
R )=, && B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER
At | January 2018 R-E-N¥—H—H 923 234,000 234,923
Changes in financing cash flows: ERETREZEE :
Proceeds from new bank loan ¥TiRTTE R ZFTISHIE — 156,500 156,500
Proceeds from new TRRER 2 PSR
shareholders’ loans — 313,600 313,600
Repayment of bank loan EERITER (78,000) (78,000)
Repayment of shareholders’ BERRER
loans — (274,536) (274,536)
Interest paid on bank and XATRITREAMERAE
other borrowings (20,756) — (20,756)
Total changes from financing BB EEREREF BB
cash flows (20,756) 117,564 96,808
Other changes: Hih&g
Exchange adjustments B 5 933 1,093 2,026
Finance costs (Note 7(a)) BERME7R) 22,579 — 22,579
Total other changes HiEeEsn 23,512 1,093 24,605
At 3| December 2018 RZZ2-\5+-A=+—-H 3,679 352,657 356,336
note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified s . AEERFEALETZER

retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances at | January

2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were

previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. See Notes

2(c) and 19(b).

EERERB B REE
Al 165  WHABRZ
—hE-A—BZHUE
B DEREAMREEEE
JEH‘J%wﬁf‘*ﬁﬁﬁg%ﬁ
EvHEETHEAR -
22O R 19(0)
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19.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(d)  Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the statement of cash flows for leases comprise

9.

2019 Annual Report

RERBREEEER(E)
d) HERSRHAR

AAHERERERNESBEERET

the following: H|&Ig -
2019 2018
—E-0F —TN\F
(note)
(F&E)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
Within operating cash flows RERERET 107 6,497
Within financing cash flows RMEHERET 5,979 —
6,086 6,497

Note: As explained in the note to Note 19(b), the adoption of HKFRS 16
introduces a change in classification of cash flows of certain rentals

paid on leases. The comparative amounts have not been restated.

These amounts relate to the lease rentals paid during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

BisE - AanF R 190) TR - HINE
BREREEAE REHE
THEENHEMBAERED
BEY - UBLFUEEY -

KELERBE-E-NFR-F
~NEtZASt-RILEERH
2EHELEM -
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ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. FESHRER HAMEMRE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Accrued staff bonus fEsTE T4 1,578 15,834
Accrued legal and professional fees FHEELEXER 2,159 9,827
Accrued interest FERHFI B 3,306 3,679
Other accruals Hihpestzoa 781 262
Other payables H fth e 1 BR 18 786 [,145
8,610 30,747

OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 2. BEBBETHNEML

As at 31 December 2019, the Group entered into repurchase agreements
with independent third parties whereby the Group agreed to sell
corporate debt securities as included in the financial assets at amortised
cost with gross carrying amount of approximately HK$153,307,000 (2018:
approximately HK$150,766,000) and simultaneously agreed to repurchase
these corporate debt securities at the agreed date and price. The
repurchase prices are fixed and the Group is still exposed to substantially
all the credit risks, market risks and rewards of those securities sold. These
securities are not derecognised from the consolidated financial statements
but regarded as “collateral”

for the liabilities because the Group retains

substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities.

RZZ-NE+-A=+—0 x58
BBUE=FIVELGE  BUEAE
BRELEREHEKATENSRE
ERNRAERKES ﬁ@%@ﬁ%
#1153307,0008 T(Z T — NF: 4
|m%wm%n%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ AR 1 E
AHREREOZSAABEBEFOR
5 - BEERAETE BAKE{NEER
BRBAEERR - mFRKRRKES N
EREBEAFNOR - ZEBHFTRER
EUBRRPERULER  EHEEAEE
REZEBHNBAB YRR REIE
MEGEEEENERR] -
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22. BORROWINGS 2. B
2019 2018
R=E-hF RZZE-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i E TER AR
Bank borrowing, unsecured and RITIES  BEAREER
unguaranteed (a) 200,000 78,500
Shareholders’ loans, unsecured REEH - EEA
— Cheer Hope Holdings Limited — Cheer Hope Holdings Limited
(“Cheer Hope") ([ Cheer Hope ) (b) 93,484 117,496
— Orient Finance Holdings - RHeRER(EE)ERAR
(Hong Kong) Limited ([RAer)) (@
("Orient Finance") 249,291 156,661
542,775 352,657
Notes: B3k -
(a)  Bank borrowing, unsecured and unguaranteed @  HRITER BEEAREER
As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowing bears a floating interest rate RZZ-NF+ZA=+—H  £17

at 1% per annum over HIBOR (2018: 1% per annum over HIBOR) and is

denominated in HK$ and repayable within one year from the end of the

reporting period.

(b)  Unsecured loan from Cheer Hope

The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 4% and is denominated in US$ and

repayable within one year from the end of the reporting period.

(¢)  Unsecured loan from Orient Finance

As at 31 December 2019, the loan bears interest at fixed rates ranging from
3.5% to 5.15% (2018: 3.5%) and is denominated in US$ and repayable within

one year from the end of the reporting period.

BERSE | S IMHBORZEBHFE(=
T—N\E: BFI%MHBORT B F
E)FHE - WUBTLAME - WARREE
KRBT —FENEE -

KA Cheer Hope R E KR

ZERBERHEA%HE  WETH
B WA IR RS -

RERTEROEEFEN

R-ZE-AE+-A=+—-8 %
BB T35%25.15% 2 B E F &
HB(ZZT—\F :35%)  AETE
B WERRSRRE—FNEE -
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23.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the
Group's lease liabilities at the end of the current and previous reporting
periods and at the date of transition to HKFRS [é:

31 December 2019
“E-AETZA=t-H

REBEBEZERARAA

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

23. HERE
TRIFRAMBERS HRURRB
REBRABRERME I6REALE
EHEERENG TANHER -
| January 2019 (note) 31 December 2018 (note)

Present value Present value

of the minimum  Total minimum  of the minimum

lease payments  lease payments  lease payments

S§-RE-A-RUKE)  ST-AEt-ATt-B(ER)

Present value

Total minimum  of the minimum  Total minimum
lease payments  lease payments  lease payments

BERE RERE RERE RERE REHE RERE
AR RE ARAR AR RE ARARE NHZBRE NHER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TAR TER TAT TAT
Within | year THE | F 5,531 6,159 4632 5,457 — -
After | year but B FATERLE
within 2 years 5,891 6,263 5,244 5,846 - -
After 2 years but ERVFATRRSF
within 5 years 5,636 5,746 11,016 1,489 - -
11,527 12,009 16,260 17,335 - -
17,058 18,168 20,892 22,792 — —
Less: total future B ARMERR 28
interest expenses (1,110) (1,900) -
Present value of HEEEZHE

lease liabilities 17,058

note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at | January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 7. Comparative information as at 3| December 2018
has not been restated. Further details on the impact of the transition to
HKFRS 16 are set out in Note 2(c).

20,892 -

Wi ARBCEBEEITZEREERE

AEBMBRELAE 6% WHE
RZE-NF-R—BzH0&EH
NHEREAMREEBGLERNE 7
FABRCEHE EEETHEER
BEoRZE-N\F+ZA=T—HH
HEEMTTESY - BEEEBUHK
REEHNE 16K FENE—THE
IR 2(c) ©
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24. SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

24.

B2
BREBI BT ZEER

2019 Annual Report

Number
of Shares Share capital
BRHEE R
'000 HK$’000
TR TER
Authorised: ERE
At | January 2018, 31 December 2018, R-_T-\F—-A—8"
| January 2019 and 3| December 2019 T \F+ZA=t—-H"
“T-NF-A-AR
“E-AF+-A=+-A 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHR
At | January 2018, 31 December 2018, R-_Z-\F—H—F"
| January 2019 and 31 December 2019 - \E+ZA=+—H"
“E-NF-A-RAR
“E-NFTZA=t—H 1,059,750 10,598
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ~ 25. BIBEREEREBIAEZATE

INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments ¢RIAZSE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as BESBEHASEeRIANEEE
at the end of each reporting period are as follows: (I
2019 2018
“E-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TR
Debt investments at amortised cost REHENATHEZ BBRE 218,694 362,670
Trade receivables B HRIR 2,788 1,635
Financial assets included in deposits, BERRE  BRIFER
prepayments and other receivables BT emEE 12,912 13,228
Deposits with banks with original REHERBE=A 2 RITER
maturity date over three months 21,360 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekRe%EER 80,767 185,058
Financial assets at amortised cost RBERATEZERERE 336,521 562,591
Financial assets at fair value through BRATESFABRZERMEE

profit or loss 550,332 214,147
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25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 25.

2019 Annual Report

PHEREERERMIAZATE

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
Categories of financial instruments (Continued) ERMIAZDE(E)
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Financial liabilities included in accruals and B IERET B R EMENFIERH
other payables Ea A=A 7,032 14,425
Obligations under repurchase B TORE
agreements 105,170 78918
Borrowings &k 542,775 352,657
Lease liabilities (note) HEEENE) 17,058 —
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHRATENSHMAE 672,035 446,000
note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective izt FEEEERLETENETIE

approach and adjusted the opening balances at | January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 7. Lease liabilities include amounts recognised at the
date of transition to HKFRS 16 in respect of leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17 and amounts relating to new leases entered
into during the year. Under this approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See Note 2(c).

FREBIBERELENE 165 I
BERZZ-NF-A—BHHD
R ARIEE B SR
EI7THRAEACENERTESR
MEEaE - HEABEREARE
ZEARBMEERNE 1657 A MR
FRRBEAGHENE 175D E
ARERENTHERANSTUR
FRFTIMENEERENSE -
BEZFE  LBRERTETUE
5 o BLBIMEE2) °
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25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include debt investments, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents, obligations
under repurchase agreements and borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, currency
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

(@)  Market risk
() Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value or cash flows of an
asset, liability or forecast transaction denominated in foreign
currency (that is, a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which the transactions relate) will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
functional currency of the Hong Kong subsidiaries is HK$
and the functional currency of PRC subsidiaries is Renminbi
("RMB"). Foreign exchange risks mainly arise from the Group's
investments and borrowings in currencies other than HK$ and
RMB.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group's debt
investments at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value
though profit or loss (except for listed equity securities),
obligations under repurchase agreements and borrowings are
denominated in United States Dollars (“US$"), which is pegged
against HK$, and are not therefore subject to significant foreign

currency risks.

25.

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(@)  Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes

in market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group was not
exposed to any significant interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not have interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk arising from listed equity
securities, debt investments and unlisted investment fund,
which are classified as financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss (see Note 18). The Group's equity
securities are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
The management would manage its exposure arising from the
Group's investments by closely monitoring the performance
of the respective investments and market conditions. The
management would consider diversifying the portfolio of these

investments as they consider appropriate.

2019 Annual Report

25. BEEREEREBMIECZATE
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 25, BIBEREERERMIAZAF¥E

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(@)  Market risk (Continued) @ THEERE)
(ii)  Price risk (Continued) (i) 1B ELE (&)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% TRETKREBHEEE
or 1% change in the prices of the investments, with all other 5% I%REEERE - A
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based Htn#E8HRHFAE - L H
on their carrying amount at the end of the reporting period. EREHRNEEEEARE

B THERE -
Increase/(decrease) in Increase/(decrease) in

the price of investment loss before tax

REE®EM ORD) BiAIEEE M, ()
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hEFE ZT-N\F ZE-AF ZE)N\F
% % HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt Bt FHER THTT
Listed equity securities L MRZAFES — 5 — (1,126)
— (5) — 1,126
Debt investments BEFRE I | (3,822) (1,916)
(N (n 3,822 1916
Investment fund KEES | — (1,681) —
©) — 1,681 —

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit/loss after tax (and retained earnings)
and other components of consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the changes in the price of listed equity
securities, debt investments and unlisted fund investments
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to price risk at the
end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair
values of the Group's equity securities, debt investments and
unlisted fund investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market index or
the relevant risk variables, and that all other variables remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2018.

BRRE DM R R LR E
5 BEHRERFLHESR
REERNEPRNREHNR
4 WEAREHFER
SEMENERTIE  £4
SENMEARERREE
RERRE @m$¢l%m
&af,/ BE(RRREHN)
R e RamEman o
HO BB & °@@F“ﬁﬁ
[R5 R R A 5% B B A 2
ERRERFLTESRE
MO FESREEBRED
SEEBSMHERRIZRE
MESABEmEE - it
FERERZESTE - 1
“E-\ENDMERRE
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables, other

receivables, interest receivables, debt investments and bank balances.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of counterparties' failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The board of directors delegates to a risk management team the
duties to monitor the credit risk of the Group. Members of this risk
management team include, inter alia, the chief executive officer, the
chief operating officer, responsible officers, the chief financial officer
and the head of investment department. This risk management team
is responsible for monitoring, pre-warning and detecting the credit

risk.

Debt investments

The Group focuses on decentralising investments for the credit-
type fixed income securities investments which are mainly high
return products. The Group pre-controls the exposure of the
credit risk by setting investment position limit, classifying the sub-
investment varieties, sub-credit rating limits and concentration limits.
Moreover, the Group continuously tracks the bond issuer’s business
conditions and credit rating changes through monitoring, pre-
warning, risk detecting, etc. At the same time, the Group is highly
prudent in the investment of the asset-based securities products and
strictly evaluates the quality of the underlying asset pool and the

effectiveness of the credit enhancement.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the industry
or country in which the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has no significant concentration of credit

risk.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer's past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in

which the customer operates.

- Trade receivables in respect of wine trading are due within
120 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are more than 3 months past due are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from these

customers.

- Fee receivable from asset management mainly represent
regular management fee based on a predetermined fixed
percentage of the assets value under management and paid
out in the priority of the funds' distributable cash flow, the

Group assessed that the balances are fully recoverable.

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

25. BEEREERSMIECZAYE
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

Cash at banks and US Dollar Bond Linked Note

The Group's credit risk arising from cash at banks and US Dollar
Bond Linked Note is limited because the counterparties are financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, for which the Group considers

to have low credit risk.

For the other financial assets, the management has closely monitored
their status and it believes that the Group's credit risk exposure on

them is minimal.

Impairment and provisioning policies
The Group performs individual and collective impairment assessment

on debt investments at amortised cost and trade receivables.

- For debt investments at amortised cost, the Group
identifies individual impairment through methods such as
risk classification and early warning. For assets for which an
allowance for impairment loss is provided individually, the
Group determines the allowance amount by assessing the
losses of each debt investment at amortised cost at the
reporting date. During the assessment stage, the Group
generally considers the financial status of the borrower, the
disposal of collateral, the repayment ability of the guarantor
and related parties to estimate the recoverable future cash
flows and discounts the recoverable future cash to the
present value of the significant impaired debt investments at a
reasonable discount rate. The difference between the carrying
value and the estimated present value of the significant
impaired debt investments shall be provided for as the

impairment loss on debt investments at amortised cost.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group measures loss allowances
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group's different customer bases. Expected loss rates
are based on actual loss experience over the past two years.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the

receivables.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ~ 25. BIBEREEREBIAEZATE

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERRE)
Measurement of ECLs RHEEERNTE
In accordance with HKFRS 9, the Group constructed a “three-stage” RREAVBREENEIR &
ECL model to manage its financial assets’ credit risk: SEBRTIZRRIEHSEG EJ&F
BEUKREEASREENER
%
Stage | Financial assets have not experienced a significant increase BE—: 2MEENER
in credit risk since origination and impairment recognised EEUES wuféjffkﬂg
on the basis of 12 months expected credit losses. ZEM - RBARKI2
BANEHEEER
W& BERERNE -
Stage 2. Financial assets have experienced a significant increase in BRZ: 2REENERARR
credit risk since origination and impairment is recognised B ERREEE
on the basis of lifetime expected credit losses. g2 mREEFE
HAEREREBEMN
CRERRE o
Stage 3:  Financial assets that are in default and considered credit- BER=: 2REEENITHRE
impaired. RIERRIE -
The ECL is the result of the discounted product of probability of EHEEERRENEE(PD)
default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default BEHNEBEADREHELRE
(LGD). The definitions of these terms are as follows: (LGD) = &M FBIT R LM
HEERDT :
- PD represents the likelihood of a borrower or debt issuer - BABERER /TAAEJZ%HW
defaulting on its financial obligation; BOABEBTHENER
HORTRENE -
—  EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed - BRERNGE  ZRER
at the time of default. CERBEROREREE

REVEH °
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 25, BIBEREERERMIAZAF¥E
INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKRGE)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

- LGD represents the Group's expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty,
type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit

of exposure at the time of default (EAD).

The ECL allowance is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and
EAD for every six months and for each individual exposure or
collective segment. These three components are multiplied together
and adjusts their duration (if there is no early repayment or default).
This effectively calculates an ECL allowance for every six months,
which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed.
The discount rate used in the ECL allowance calculation is the

original effective interest rate.

For debt investments in stage |, the Group first calculates the
annual 12-month PD and then transfer it to monthly PD. For debt
investments in stage 2 and 3, the lifetime PDs are developed by
monitoring how defaults develop in a portfolio from the point of
time when a debt experienced SICR to its lifetime. The lifetime
PDs are based on historical observed data taking into consideration

forward-looking factors. This is supported by historical analysis.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
The lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors that affect

the recoverable amounts post default. These vary by product type.

- For secured debt investments, this is primarily base on the
projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/book

values due to forced sales and recovery costs observed.

- For unsecured debt investments, the Group closely monitors
their status and it believes that the Group's credit risk

exposure on them is minimal.

Forward-looking information included in the expected credit loss

model is as follows:

The calculation of expected credit losses involves forward-looking
information. After the historical analysis, the Group identified the key
economic indicators related to expected credit loss, such as gross
domestic product (GDP), consumer price index (CPl). The Group
forecasts these economic indicators at least annually and provides

the best estimates of the economic conditions for the coming year.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 25, BIBEREERERMIAZAF¥E

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERRE)
Maximum credit risk exposure RACEREBRBO
() Debt investments at amortised cost and fee receivable from () EEELAEELEF
asset management REREEEEENE
The following tables provide information about the Group's Vel
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for debt investments at TRE‘AEASER_Z
amortised cost and fee receivable from asset management as —“NETZA=+—HEZ
at 31 December 2019 and 3| December 2018: F-N\EtZA=1+—H@A
HRBEN A EZES
REREEEENEUER
WEERRRESBEEER
HEH :
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+tZRA=+-
H
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount  allowance amount
AREE BRER  REFE
Loss stages HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRER TERT TRT TERT
Debt investments REHKAEZ
at amortised cost BHRE
~ RD Note (note (aa)) - RDEE (MizE(aa)) Stage3 F3RE 113,207 (87,745) 25,462
- SP Note (note (bb)) - SPEIE (HMizE(bb)) Stage3 H3EER 101,275 (79,238) 22,037
- SOL Note - SOLEE& Stage | % I[&RER 140,226 — 140,226
- Receivable under - —BEEFEMEBTH Stage | FIRR
a loan facility FENTIE 31,000 (31) 30,969
Total fast 385,708  (167,014) 218,694
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8R1A
~ Fee receivable from —- BEEEEH Stage | 5| EE
asset management W A 1,409 — 1,409

Total fst 387,117 (167,014) 220,103
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 25, BiEEREEREMIAZAYE
INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERRE)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) BRAGERRHO(E)
() Debt investments at amortised cost and fee receivable from () EEELAEELEF
asset management (Continued) REREEEEENE
(&)
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+Zh=1+—
=|
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount
wEEE  EERE REEE
Loss stages HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERRER TET THT THET
Debt investments REENAGHEZ
at amortised cost BEHRE
- RD Note - RDEE Stage | #IEER 117,496 — 117,496
- SP Note (note (bb)) - SPEIE (HMizE(bb)) Stage3 E3EER 101,830 (53,400) 48,430
- ZR Note - ZREE Stage | % I[&RER 15,860 (39) 15,821
— ZY Note - ZYRE Stage | 5| B 78,330 (422) 77,908
— GX Note - GXE#& Stage | % | FEEX 72,436 (390) 72,046
— Receivable under - —BEEFRMEETH Stage | FIRR
a loan facility R RIR 31,000 (31) 30,969
Total st fast 416,952 (54,282) 362,670
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

25.

mE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEZZ-NFT-A=+-BLFE

REBEBEZERARAA

PHREBEEREMIACATE

(&)
b) FEERGE)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) BRAGERRHO(E)
Debt investments at amortised cost and fee receivable from () HEH A ER EE
asset management (Continued) REREEEEENE
(&)
Movement in the allowances for impairment for debt REER A ECBEBRE
investments at amortised cost is as follows: REEEZEBNT
Loss allowance
BRRE
HK$’000
TER
At | January 2018 R-_Z—-\¥—HA—H —
Impairment losses recognised during FAEHAREER
the year (Note 7(c)) (B 7(c)) 54,282
At 31 December 2018 and R-ZF-\E+-A=+—HRK
| January 2019 “T-hF—HF—H 54,282
Impairment losses recognised during FABERREER
the year (Note 7(c)) (M5E7(c) 112,732
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NFE+-A=+—H 167,014

(aa) During the year ended 3| December 2019, the loss stage

of RD Note was transferred from stage | to stage 3 as, in

the opinion of the directors of the Company, the RD Note

is considered to be credit-impaired based on the facts and

circumstances as detailed in Note 13(a)(ii).

(bb)  During the year ended 3| December 2018, the loss stage of SP

Note was transferred from stage | to stage 3 as, in the opinion

of the directors of the Company, the SP Note is considered

to be credit-impaired based on the facts and circumstances as

detailed in Note 13(a)(i).

(aa) BE-ZT—NFT=A
=+—HIFE RD
EENEBERBEE
BREEASIER A
NRIEERA - BEN
FEI3(a) (i) FTaFii =
ERER  RDEEH
BRIEERHAE -

(bb) BEZZT—NF+=A
=+—BIEFE SP
ZEMEBEBERBEEE
PEEREE AR - A
NRIEERA - BEN
FI3)()ATFRNE
EREBER  SPEERK
BREERE -
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)

() Debt investments at amortised cost and fee receivable from

asset management (Continued)

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the

RD Note and SP Note for impairment using reasonable and

supportable information that is available without undue cost

or effort in accordance with the requirement of HKFRS 9. The

results of ECL in respect of RD Note and SP Note as at 31

December 2019 and 2018 are summarised as follows:

2019 Annual Report

25. BEEREERSMIECZAYE
(&)
(b)

FERR(E)

RAGERBEHO(E)

() EEELAEELEF
REREEEEENE
(&)
ARREEREBEENE
WMERABIRME - £
AeBAXKIEREBRRT
BEKA RS AN EE
B EMRER RTMHERD
EBRRSPEBRKIRME - 1
ZE-NFEFTZR=1—
BT -N\E+=H
=t—RB ABRDEER
SPRENEMEEE RS
RBEWT -

At 3| December 2019
R-Z-hAE+=-A=t+-8H

PD EAD LGD ECL
EBOME EBHRER BHER RHEGEEBE

% HK$000 % HK$'000

BAk TER Bl TER

RD Note RDEE 100 113,207 77.51 87,745
SP Note SPEIE 100 101,275 78.24 79,238

At 31 December 2018
RZE-N\E+=-A=1+—H

PD EAD LGD ECL

BABER BHER BHEE HEHEEER

% HK$'000 % HK$'000

BAl TAET Bl FET

RD Note RDER 5.15 117,496 — —
SP Note SPEIE 100 101,830 52.44 53,400
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)

(i)

(i1

Debt investments at amortised cost and fee receivable from

asset management (Continued)

The LGD is assessed primarily based on the projected
collateral values, historical bulk discounts on placing of shares
and expense of placement and recovery costs observed. As at
31 December 2019, the fair value of collaterals held against
RD Note and SP Note that are assessed for lifetime expected
credit losses amounted to approximately HK$62,461,000
(2018: fair value of collaterals held against SP Note assessed
for lifetime expected credit losses amounted to approximately
HK$58,950,000). The collaterals mainly include listed shares in
Hong Kong. The fair value of collaterals were estimated by the
Group based on the market price of the collaterals, adjusted
in light of disposal experience and current market conditions,
by reference to the valuation report issued by an independent

valuer.

Trade receivables in respect of wine trading

During the year ended 3| December 2019, the Group
recognised loss allowance of approximately HK$555,000 (2018:
HKS$NIl) in respect of the trade receivables in respect of wine
trading. The loss allowance was recognised on individual basis
to receivables relating to customers with known financial

difficulties.

25.

mE MR

REBEBEZERARAA

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HECZ-NFT-A=T—-RLER

BREREEREMIAZATE

(&)
(b)

RERRE)
RAGERGHO (&)

(i)

(i)

HE A ER &
REREEEEENE
(&)
BHEBROTEFERRBIL
BEE 7 ERRER BEE
Bz BAEMENERES
X RARZWEHKAE - 7
ZE-NFE+ZR=1—
A RERFERNEERS
EEBENMRDEZEMSPE
BmiEacERRNLTE
#) B62,461,000%8 (= &
—N\F: RAGFERNE
BHEEEENSPEEM
RAEZERRNATFENR
589500008 7T ) - HHmE
EOREBEALTRE - HA
N A TFERERBEREER
BREELRHNE TSR
MEER AT EEITHE
MERERE  W2EBY
HEMBEROGERS -

FHEEOEE EWE
BEEH

BE-_ZT-hF+ZA
S+-RUEFE - ALER
HEEEEZEKE SRE
e 372 /85 18 % 45 555,000 %8 7T
(ZE-NF:THT)-
HRENFEVBRENE
P ERRERE R EER

Y
u«mm\ °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HECT-NET-A=T-BLFE

25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 25, BIBEREERERMIAZAF¥E

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERRE)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) RAGERBEHO(E)
(i) Trade receivables in respect of wine trading (Continued) (i) FEHEEEEEZEN
E S (E)
Movement in the allowances for impairment for trade FEAREFGREHERE
receivables in respect of wine trading is as follows: BT
Allowance for
doubtful debts
RERE B
HK$’000
TR
At | January 2018, 31 December 2018 ~ R-ZE—\F—H—H -
and | January 2019 —E-N\F+ZA=T—HRK
—hE-A-B -~
Impairment losses recognised during FABHRMRERSE
the year 555
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NF+-A=1—H 555
(c)  Liquidity risk ) RBELERR

Liquidity is managed on a daily basis by the treasury and finance
departments. They are responsible for ensuring that the Group has
adequate liquidity for all operations, ensuring that the funding mix is
appropriate so as to avoid maturity mismatches. The Group manages
liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets of appropriate quality
to ensure that short-term funding requirements are covered within

prudent limits.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturity at the
end of the reporting period of the Group's non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)

and the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

RPECEAMEB LI HBE
o R ERRARERE RN
MRBESETHAERY  BRE
cHARE  BRIMAKEK - A
SEZBRARRABENRBEE
RERRBECAR - NHEREE
HNEERBAGAENEHRNE
2HEK-

TREJIRBEAEERHERRR
BRARERRERE(BERELN
MEFER (AT X ) RERE
BAROBINRFAEON ST
RAKERR ERERNRTAR
A EnE e TARENS
RIRIBAEH]
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 25, BIBEREERERMIAZAF¥E

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ) RBELER(E)
Liguidity risk tables REEEE MK
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T-NF+-A=1+—HL
FE
Carrying
Total amount at
On demand After After undiscounted 3171212019
or within | year but 2 years but cash flows R=Z—NF
| year within 2 years within 5 years RER +=A
RERRR BBIFE BBE2FE HEng =t-H
—-£x  TEB2f FEBSHE BE ZIRE{E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TR TR

Financial liabilities tHas
Accruals and other payables  JERTHIERE MR IRIE 7,032 — — 7,032 7,032
Obligations under OIS THEE
repurchase agreements 106,091 — — 106,091 105,170
Borrowings EE 545,159 — — 545,159 542,775
Lease liabilities (note) HEaBMEE) 6,159 6,263 5,746 18,168 17,058
664,441 6,263 5,746 676,450 672,035
note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified izt . AEEDSEALEITBENENSRE
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at | BEBHBREEME 1657 I
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which RER_Z-NE-A-BHHD
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 7. Lease BMARRAAREE BT LR
liabilities include amounts recognised at the date of transition to BT BAKEHERTHERH
HKFRS 16 in respect of leases previously classified as operating leases MEEAE HEABRERNAE
under HKAS |7 and amounts relating to new leases entered into EERHBIMEENE 1655 A MR
during the year. Under this approach, the comparative information is FRRBEEBGIENE 17THAH
not restated. See Note 2(c). REEHENHERINEEIALR

FRTUMENEERENEHE -
REZFZE  UBRENTETUE
5l o FEHME2()
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ~ 25. BIBEREEREBIAEZATE

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ) RBELER(E)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued) RBELEGF(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZT-N\F+ZA=1+—HL
FE
Total Carrying
On demand undiscounted amount at
or within cash flows 3171212018
| year REEH RZE-N\F
BRERE ReRE€  T-A=T-H
—%R et ZEH{E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET
Financial liabilities THAR
Accruals and other payables JEsRUB R AR R 14,425 14,425 14,425
Obligations under e HETHEE
repurchase agreements 81,297 81,297 78918
Borrowings fiE3R 356,570 356,570 352,657

452,292 452,292 446,000
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 25, BIBEREERERMIAZAF¥E

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&
(d)  Fair value measurement d) DVEFE
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value () HURFEAENEHE
E
Fair value hierarchy NHEER

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS I3 “Fair Value
Measurement”. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

e  Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
I inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

®  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level I, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available

®  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the financial controller
performing valuations for the financial instruments, including
listed equity securities, corporate debt securities, the TRS,
US Dollar Bond Linked Notes and investment fund. The team
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit
committee. A valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at each interim
and annual reporting date, and is reviewed and approved by
the chief financial officer. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the chief financial officer and the audit
committee is held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting
dates.

TRITAEEAEREHR
EHAENEBTANRY
B BEAMBEHREEMSE
I3[ AFEFEIFRELZ
REDR=ZEARFHESR -
REGETERERBAR
RAUEELEBRME R
AT

.« F-ERME: EE
BE—ERRAE
B 2 E R A R
HEAMERREA
5 2 5B CK8 3
#))iHE2 AT
.« ECEMGE:ER
B-ERBAEEDA
EHAE-BRZT
BEHAG AU
EREATTRER
NEEZAFE -
o B3 A
ARG TENE 2B
NE
© BTERGE:ER
AR BEH AL
RO
AEEA—ERHBeE
FEHEY  HEWTA
(B L TRARS - A7
EHES  BEFHY-
EEHBOREREA
ES)ETHHE - BB
HRNERHBEREY
ZERHS - HEBES
o 5 B R
~(RA R AFHEHERE
WISERS B0 E R
BEBRRILE - §FS
MR E RIS E RE
ZERHBEEBERS
R RESAH-H -
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ~ 25. BIBEREEREBIAEZATE

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(d)  Fair value measurement (Continued) d) AFEFEE)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued) () HURFEAFAEZHZHE
E (%)
Recurring fair value Fair value as at  Fair value Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
measurements 31.12.2019 as at 31.12.2018 hierarchy  and key input(s)
R-B-NE RZB-NE
TZA=t-B +ZA=1-H
REHQFENE AN ZDVE DFERE FELERERSH
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER
Assets:
BE:
[) Listed equity securities ~— — 22518 Level | Current bid price in active market
held for trading
) REEEZ LWRAZESR — 22518 F RNERMSZERMEAE
I} Corporate debt securities 247,842 — Level 2 Quoted from brokers/financial institutions
and discounted cash flow
) DRAEBES 247,842 — E-H RELLE/ CREBORERRYERR
TIRE
1) US Dollar Bond Linked 134,347 163,674 Level 2 Quoted from brokers/financial institutions
Notes
)y ETEFHBER 134,347 163,674 F-& RELR,/ cHEBORE
V) TRS — 27,955 Level 2 Quoted from brokers/financial institutions
V) 48[ iz 5 — 27,955 F-H RELR/ SREEORE
V) Investment fund 168,143 — Level 2 Asset-based approach, quoted from

brokers/financial institutions and
discounted cash flow

V) BEES 168,143 — o AEERE RALK/SREBNR
ERRERAERE
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ~ 25. BIBEREEREBIAEZATE

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(d)  Fair value measurement (Continued) d) AFEFEE)
(1) Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued) () URFEFENZHE
E (%)
During the year ended 3| December 2019, there were no BE_Z-NE+HA
transfers between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or Z+—HLFE E-HKk
out of Level 3 (2018: Nil). The Group's policy is to recognise FR/zBEAREY %8
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of F-REASHELEZE=R
the reporting period in which they occur. (Z2-N\F: &) - F£5H
BRI EREBNREH
RER R FERAAZ R
ZRRER -
(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than (i) KR FEXIGRZEN T
fair value BEEREELTFE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities NN 3 N
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially different EReREEREGERE
from their fair values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, BEERAR_Z-NFR-F
—“NE+ZA=Z+—HHR
FETESAER -
26. COMMITMENTS 26. HEIE
(@)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2019 not provided for @ RZB-AF+ZA=+-HEX
in the financial statements were as follows: X EYEE AR HR 2 EARE
BT
2019 2018
“E-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
Capital contribution in respect of AE-BESNAR
limited partnership interests AR
in a fund — 100,000

— 100,000
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26.

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases were payable as follows:

2019 Annual Report

26. RIEE)

(b)

WZZ2-\E+-A=+—H
BARARECEHERNRRRE
HeeETSERMT

2018
—E-N\%F
HK$'000
FHET

Within one year —ER

In the second to fifth year E_ERF

5611

5611

The Group is the lessee in respect of its office premises under
leases which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS |7. The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group adjusted
the opening balances at | January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to these leases (see Note 2(c)). From | January 2019
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in
the statement of financial position in accordance with the policies set
out in Note 2(h), and the details regarding the Group's future lease

payments are disclosed in Note 23.

AEERRBEENFAZENR
ZEBA ZFEROLAREER
BEFENF 7RI ERKEH
o AEECBERERB MR
EERE 165 RALETES
B REWTE  AEEHE-F
—NE—R - BBNEHRAER
HZEFHERANEERRE(RN
#2) - B=F-NF—A—A
B RREENFURENEE 2(h) &
N2 BRNEGEBHERRRER R
HEARE BHAREARREDN
TV 23 B
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27. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 27. AFEBEZHBEMRRE
| January
2019
31 December (see note I) 31 December
2019 —E-NE 2018
—E-hE —A—H “E-N\F
+ZBA=+—-H (RMiz—-) +=-A=+—AH
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MiEE FTEx THER FAT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - THREE 16,142 22,386 1,494
Investments in subsidiaries RINB AR ZIRE 29 [ I |
Interest in joint venture REERRZER — 1,415 1,415
Rental deposits Meke 2,116 1,968 1,968
18,259 25,770 4,878
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and Be  BNFER
other receivables Hfth el 8= 18 4,198 5,435 5,435
Amounts due from subsidiaries e KB A R FUR 560,103 581,019 581,019
Financial assets at fair value through T§Q$f§§ﬂ')\ﬁﬁ§2
profit or loss EREE 168,143 — —
Bank balances and cash BIIHEBRRERS 54,867 110,554 110,554
787,311 697,008 697,008
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables JE T HRIE R EL A FE A BRIE 5,839 3,701 3,701
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B RIFE 9,176 21,922 21,922
Borrowings e 542,775 352,657 352,657
Lease liabilities MERE 5,244 4,632 —
563,034 382,912 378,280
Net current assets REBEEFE 224,277 314,096 318,728
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERRBER 242,536 339,866 323,606
Non-current liabilities FREas
Lease liabilities HEBRE 11,016 16,260 —
Net assets BEFE 231,520 323,606 32<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>